
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

 Putting our residents first 

   

Audit Committee 
  

Councillors on the Committee 
 
Rajiv P Vyas (Chairman) 
Councillor Scott Seaman-Digby (Vice-
Chairman) 
Councillor George Cooper 
Councillor Susan O'Brien 
Councillor Tony Eginton (Labour Lead) 
 

   

Date: THURSDAY, 15 DECEMBER 
2016 
 

 

Time: 5.00 PM * 
(* COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
ARE INVITED TO A 
PRIVATE MEETING AT 
4.45PM) 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

 

  

Published: Wednesday, 7 December 
2016 

 Contact: Kate Boulter 
Tel: 01895 556454 
Email: kboulter@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 

This Agenda is available online at:  
http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

 

Useful information for  

residents and visitors 
 
 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services. Please enter from the 
Council’s main reception where you will be 
directed to the Committee Room.  
 
Accessibility 
 
For accessibility options regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use in the various meeting rooms.  
 
Attending, reporting and filming of meetings 
 
For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if 
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt 
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular 
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an 
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the 
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the 
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode. 
 
Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online. 
 
Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. 
 
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations. 

 



 

 

Terms of Reference 
 
The Constitution defines the terms of reference for the Audit Committee as: 
 
Introduction 
 
The Audit Committee’s role will be to: 
 

• Review and monitor the Council’s audit, governance, risk management framework 
and the associated control environment, as an independent assurance mechanism; 

• Review and monitor the Council’s financial and non-financial performance to the 
extent that it affects the Council’s exposure to risk and/or weakens the control 
environment;  

• Oversee the financial reporting process of the Statement of Accounts. 
 
Decisions in respect of strategy, policy and service delivery or improvement are reserved 
to the Cabinet or delegated to Officers. 
 
Internal Audit 
 

1. Review and monitor, but not direct, Internal Audit’s work programmes, summaries of 
Internal Audit reports, their main recommendations and whether such 
recommendations have been implemented within a reasonable timescale, ensuring 
that work is planned with due regard to risk, materiality and coverage. 
 

2. Make recommendations to the Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Property and Business Services on any changes to the Council’s Internal 
Audit Strategy and plans. 
 

3. Review the Annual Report and Opinion and Summary of Internal Audit Activity 
(actual and proposed) and the level of assurance this can give over the Council’s 
corporate governance arrangements. 
 

4. Consider reports dealing with the management and performance of internal audit 
services. 
 

5. Following a request to the Corporate Director of Finance, and subject to the 
approval of the Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance, Property 
and Business Services, to commission work from Internal Audit. 

 
External Audit 

 
6. Receive and consider the External Auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports and the 

report to those charged with governance. 
 

7. Monitor management action in response to issues raised by External Audit. 
 

8. Receive and consider specific reports as agreed with the External Auditor. 



 

 

 
9. Comment on the scope and depth of External Audit work and ensure that it gives 

value for money, making any recommendations to the Corporate Director of 
Finance. 
 

10. Be consulted by the Corporate Director of Finance over the appointment of the 
Council’s External Auditor. 
 

11. Following a request to the Corporate Director of Finance, and subject to the 
approval of the Leader of the Council / Cabinet Member for Finance, Property and 
Business Services, to commission work from External Audit. 
 

12. Monitor effective arrangements for ensuring liaison between Internal and External 
audit, in consultation with the Corporate Director of Finance. 

 
Governance Framework 

 
13. Maintain an overview of the Council’s Constitution in respect of contract procedure 

rules and financial regulations. And, where necessary, bring proposals to the 
Leader of the Council or the Cabinet for their development. 
 

14. Review any issue referred to it by the Chief Executive, a Deputy Chief Executive, 
Corporate Director, or any Council body. 
 

15. Monitor and review, but not direct, the authority’s risk management arrangements, 
including regularly reviewing the corporate risk register and seeking assurances that 
action is being taken on risk related issues. 
 

16. Review and monitor Council policies on ‘Raising Concerns at Work’ and anti-fraud 
and anti-corruption strategy and the Council’s complaints process, making any 
recommendations on changes to the Leader of the Council and the Deputy Chief 
Executive and Corporate Director of Residents Services. 
 

17. Oversee the production of the authority’s Statement of Internal Control and 
recommend its adoption. 
 

18. Review the Council’s arrangements for corporate governance and make 
recommendations to the Corporate Director of Finance on necessary actions to 
ensure compliance with best practice. 
 

19. Where requested by the Leader of the Council, Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Property and Business Services or Corporate Director of Finance, provide 
recommendations on the Council’s compliance with its own and other published 
standards and controls. 

 



 

 

Accounts 
 

20. Review and approve the annual statement of accounts. Specifically, to consider 
whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether there are 
concerns arising from financial statements or from the auditor that need to be 
brought to the attention of the Council. 
 

21. Consider the External Auditor’s report to those charged with governance on issues 
arising from the audit of the accounts. 
 

Review and reporting 
 

22. Undertake an annual independent review of the Committee’s effectiveness and 
submit an annual report to Council on the activity of the Audit Committee. 



 

 

Agenda 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

Committee Members are invited to a private meeting with the Head of 
Business Assurance at 4.45pm. 
 

1 Apologies for absence  
 

2 Declarations of interest  
 

3 To confirm that all items marked Part I will be considered in public 
and that any items marked Part II will be considered in private 

 
 

4 Minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2016 1 - 8 
 

5 External Audit Annual Audit Letter 9 - 34 
 

6 Internal Audit Charter 2016/17 35 - 48 
 

7 Internal Audit Progress Report 2016/17 Quarter 3 and Operational 
Internal Audit Plan Quarter 4 

49 - 72 
 

8 Corporate Fraud Team Progress Report (to follow)  
 

9 National Scheme for Auditor Appointments 73 - 78 
 

10 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee 2016/17 79 - 94 
 

11 Audit Committee Terms of Reference (to follow)  
 

12 Audit Committee Forward Programme 95 - 100 
 

 

PART II 
 

13 Risk Management Report and Quarter 2 Corporate Risk Register 101 - 124 
 



_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

- Page 1 - 

                                                                                                                             
Minutes 
 

 

Audit Committee 
Thursday 22 September 2016  
Meeting held at Committee Room 4 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
  

 Members Present: 
Rajiv Vyas (Independent Chairman), Councillors Scott Seaman-Digby (Vice-
Chairman), George Cooper, Peter Davis and Tony Eginton. 
 
Apology for Absence: 
Susan O'Brien (Councillor Peter Davis substituting). 
 
Officers Present: 
Garry Coote (Corporate Fraud Investigation Manager), Nancy Le Roux (Deputy 
Director of Strategic Finance), Sian Kunert (Chief Accountant), Muir Laurie 
(Head of Business Assurance), Elaine Portess (Assistant Internal Audit 
Manager),  Martyn White (Senior Internal Audit Manager) and Khalid Ahmed 
(Democratic Services Manager).   
 
Others Present: 
Maria Grindley and Alan Witty (External Audit - Ernst & Young). 
 
Prior to the meeting, the Committee held a private meeting with the Corporate 
Director of Finance. 
 
Also the Committee were provided with a training session on the Role of the 
External Auditor. 
 

12. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
1.  That Mr Rajiv Vyas be appointed Chairman of the Committee for the   
rest of the Municipal Year. 
 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

- Page 2 - 
 

13. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Tony Eginton declared a Non-Pecuniary Interest in Agenda Item 7 - 
External Audit Report on the Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 
2015/16 because he was a retired member of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme. He remained in the room during discussion on the item.  
 
Councillor Scott Seaman-Digby declared a Non-Pecuniary Interest in Agenda 
Item 7 - External Audit Report on the Pension Fund Annual Report and 
Accounts 2015/16 because he was a deferred member of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme. He remained in the room during discussion on the item.  
 
Councillor George Copper declared a Non-Pecuniary Interest in Agenda Item 7 - 
External Audit Report on the Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 
2015/16 because he was a contributor to the Local Government Pension 
Scheme. He remained in the room during discussion on the item.    
 

14. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
It was agreed that all the items on the Agenda be considered in public with the 
exception of Agenda Item 12 - Business Assurance - Corporate Risk Register 
for Quarter 1 2016/17. 
  

15. MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 12 JULY 2016 
 
Agreed as an accurate record. 
 

16. APPROVAL OF THE 2015/16 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
AND EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT ON THE AUDIT FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 
 
The Committee was provided with a report which summarised 
the findings of EY, the External Auditor, on the audit of the 
2015/16 Statement of Accounts. The report summarised the 
Council's main financial statements. 
 
The Committee was informed that based on the work 
undertaken to date, EY anticipated issuing an unqualified 
opinion on the Council's financial statements, subject to the 
completion of outstanding work. 
 
The Committee was provided with details of audit differences, 
scope and materiality and significant audit risks. 
 
Members were informed that as new external auditors, EY had 
provided a more detailed audit and carried out more detailed 
testing. This was the reason why the audit of the Statement of 
Accounts was not finalised at this stage. 
 
The Committee expressed their dissatisfaction at the audit not 

Action By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

- Page 3 - 
 

being completed in time for the Committee to sign off the 
statement of accounts. The EY representatives reported that 
the audit would meet the statutory deadline of 30 September, 
but for next year's audit, planning and time lines for the audit 
would be brought forward to ensure the Audit Committee signs 
off the statement of accounts.       
 
RESOLVED –  
 
1.   That delegated authority be given to the Corporate 
Director of Finance, in consultation with the Chairman and 
/ or Vice-Chairman of the Committee, to sign the statement 
of accounts on completion of the audit. 
 

17. EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT ON THE PENSION FUND 
ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015/16 
 
The Committee was provided with a report which summarised 
the findings of EY, the External Auditor, on the audit of the 
Pension Fund Accounts. The report summarised the Pension 
Fund accounts audit. 
 
The Committee was informed that based on the work 
undertaken to date, EY anticipated issuing an unqualified 
opinion on the Fund's financial statements, subject to the 
satisfactory completion of outstanding work. 
 
Reference was made to the following detailed work areas 
where further work was required. 
 
Members expressed their disappointment that the audit had 
not been completed.  
 
The Committee was informed that at the Pensions Committee 
on 21 September, delegated authority had been given to the 
Corporate Director of Finance, to sign the Pension Fund 
accounts on completion of the audit. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 

1. That the initial auditor’s findings on the audit of the 
Pension Fund accounts for 2015/16 be noted. 

 
 2. That the Committee considered and approved the    
Accounts of the Pension Fund, subject to changes made 
and approved by the Corporate Director of Finance, in 
consultation with the Chairman of the Pensions 
Committee.  
 
 

 

Page 3



_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

- Page 4 - 
 

 

18. CORPORATE FRAUD INVESTIGATION TEAM PROGRESS 
REPORT - APRIL 2016 -AUGUST 2016 
 
The Committee was provided with a report which provided 
details of the work undertaken by the Corporate Fraud 
Investigation Team (CFIT) from April to August 2016. 
 
Members were informed that Corporate Fraud Investigation 
Team activities since April 2016 included the following: 
 

• Social Housing fraud  

• Council Tax/Business Rates inspections 

• Single Person Discount (SPD) 

• Residency and Verification checks  

• Right to Buy investigations 

• Proceeds of Crime investigations 

• Housing Waiting List 

• Enhanced Recruitment Verification 

• Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTR) 

• Trading Standards 

• Blue Badge 

• Bad debts 

• Students 

• Unaccompanied Asylum Seekers 

• Benchmarking 
 
The Corporate Fraud Investigation Manager reported that in 
relation to the Social Housing Fraud project, 40 properties had 
been recovered from April to August 2016. 
 
Reference was made to the work on the Housing Waiting List. 
Members were reminded that the purpose of the project was to 
identify through checking Council records, such as Council Tax 
information and electoral registration, people on the housing 
waiting list who were no longer entitled to Social Housing.  
 
Circumstances had either changed or people had provided 
false information on their application. Members were informed 
that removing these people from the waiting list meant that the 
Council would have an accurate data relating to current social 
housing needs for effective forward planning.  
 
The Committee noted that 1,909 applications had been 
removed from the waiting list since the project began.  
 
During the process, 32 cases had been identified where the 
household had been incorrectly claiming Single Person 
Discount for Council Tax which totalled £14.1k.  

 

Page 4



_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

- Page 5 - 
 

 
Reference was made to the work started in relation to 
benchmarking which would measure the performance of the 
Team. Work was taking place with neighbouring authorities to 
share information to enable benchmarking to take place. 
 
The Corporate Fraud Investigation Manager was asked to 
develop targets within the work programme of the Team, to 
enable the level of success of the Team to be measured 
against other local authorities.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
1. That the Committee considered and noted the   
Corporate Fraud Investigation Team report. 
 

19. BUSINESS ASSURANCE - INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS 
REPORT FOR 2016/17 QUARTER 2 (INCLUDING THE 
QUARTER 3 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN) 
 
The  Senior Internal Audit Manager presented the report which 
provided summary information on all Internal Audit work 
covered in relation to the 2016/17 Quarter 2, together with 
assurance levels in this respect. 
 
Members were informed that since the last progress report, 5 
assurance reviews had been concluded, 6 consultancy reviews 
and 2 follow-up reviews had been finalised and 2 grant claims 
had been certified. 
 
The Committee was provided with details of the Internal Audit 
Plan 2016/17 for Quarter 3. 
   
RESOLVED –  
 
1.   That the Internal Audit progress report for 2016/17 
Quarter 2 be noted and approval be given to the Quarter 3 
Internal Audit Plan for 2016/17. 
 
2.   That the Committee noted that the coverage, 
performance and results of Business Assurance Internal 
Audit activity within this quarter.   
 

 

20. BUSINESS ASSURANCE - EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL 
AUDIT 2016/17 
 
The Committee was provided with a report which provided 
details of the effectiveness of Internal Audit which had been 
assessed against the UK Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards. 

 

Page 5



_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

- Page 6 - 
 

 
Members were informed that overall the Internal Audit opinion 
was that they were able give reasonable assurance over the 
key risks to the achievement of objectives for the Internal Audit 
function. 
 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
1.   That the findings, recommendations and management 
action proposed in the report be noted. 
       

21. AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD PROGRAMME 2016/17 
AND 2017/18 
 
It was noted that there would be an item added to the meeting 
in December, on a Review of the Committee's Terms of 
Reference. 
 
In addition an item would also be added to the March 2017 
meeting on External Quality Assessment of Internal Audit. 
 
Noted.  
 

 

22. BUSINESS ASSURANCE  - CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 
FOR QUARTER 1 2015/16  
 
This item was discussed as a Part II item without the press or 
public present as the information under discussion contained 
confidential or exempt information as defined by law in the 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985.  This was 
because it discussed ‘information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the 
authority holding that information)’ (paragraph 3 of the 
schedule to the Act). 
 
The report presented to Members the Corporate Risk Register 
for Quarter 1 (April to June 2016). The report provided 
evidence about how identified corporate risks were being 
managed and the actions which were being taken to mitigate 
against those risks. 
 
          
RESOLVED –  
 

1. That the Committee reviewed the Corporate Risk 
Register for Quarter 4 (January to March 2016), as 
part of the Committee's role to independently assure 
the risk management arrangements in the Council. 

Action By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

- Page 7 - 
 

 

 The meeting which commenced at 5.10pm, closed at 
6.20pm 
 
Next meeting: 15 December 2016 at 5.00pm 

 

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions 
please contact Khalid Ahmed on 01895 250833. Circulation of these minutes are to 
Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public. 

 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



EXTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER  
 

Contact Officer: Nancy Leroux 
Telephone: 01895 205353 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 

This is a covering report to EY's Annual Audit Letter which provides a summary 
of the expected conclusions from their audit work undertaken for the year ended 
31 March 2016.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The committee is asked to note the report. 
 
 
INFORMATION 
 
The letter identifies the key areas of EY's audit work over the year, their findings 
in each area and the focus of their work going forward: 
 

1. The Council’s Financial Statements (including the Pension Fund) – an 
unqualified opinion on the Council’s accounts for the year ended 31 March 
2016 was issues. 

2. Value for Money conclusion – it was concluded that the Council has put in 
place proper arrangements to secure value for money in the use of 
resources. 

3. Whole of Government Accounts – it was reported to the National Audit 
Office that the consolidated return was consistent with the statutory 
accounts. 

4. Grants Certification – there will be a separate letter on grant certification 
issued to Audit Committee at the end of 2016. 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no legal implications arising from this report.   
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
None 

Agenda Item 5

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



E
rn

s
t 

&
 Y

o
u
n

g
 L

L
P

Lo
nd

on
 Bo

rou
gh

 of
 Hi

llin
gd

on
an

d H
illin

gd
on

 Pe
ns

ion
 Fu

nd
An

nu
al A

ud
it L

ett
er 

for
 th

e y
ea

r e
nd

ed
 31

 Ma
rch

 20
16

Oc
tob

er 
20

16

Page 11



Co
nte

nts

1.
EY


i

Co
nte

nts
Ex

ec
uti

ve
 Su

mm
ary

 ...
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

. 2
Pu

rpo
se .

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

. 5
Re

spo
nsi

bil
itie

s..
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

. 7
Fin

an
cia

l S
tat

em
en

t A
ud

it .
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

 10
Va

lue
 fo

r M
on

ey
 ....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

 13
Ot

he
r R

ep
ort

ing
 Iss

ue
s ..

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

 15
Foc

use
d o

n y
ou

r fu
tur

e ..
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
 18

Ap
pe

nd
ix A

Au
dit

 Fe
es 

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
. 2

0

In 
Ap

ril 
20

15
 Pu

bli
c S

ect
or 

Au
dit

 Ap
po

int
me

nts
 Lt

d (
PS

AA
) is

sue
d ‘

‘St
ate

me
nt 

of 
res

po
ns

ibil
itie

s o
f a

ud
ito

rs 
an

d a
ud

ite
d b

od
ies

 20
15

-16
’. I

t is
 av

aila
ble

 fro
m 

the
 Ch

ief
 Ex

ecu
tiv

e o
f

ea
ch 

au
dit

ed
 bo

dy
 an

d v
ia t

he
 PS

AA
 we

bsi
te 

(w
ww

.ps
aa

.co
.uk

)
Th

e S
tat

em
en

t o
f re

spo
nsi

bil
itie

s s
erv

es 
as 

the
 fo

rm
al t

erm
s o

f e
ng

ag
em

en
t b

etw
ee

n a
pp

oin
ted

 au
dit

ors
 an

d a
ud

ite
d b

od
ies

. It
 su

mm
ari

ses
 wh

ere
 th

e d
iffe

ren
t re

spo
nsi

bili
tie

s o
f

au
dit

ors
 an

d a
ud

ite
d b

od
ies

 be
gin

 an
d e

nd
, a

nd
 wh

at 
is t

o b
e e

xpe
cte

d o
f th

e a
ud

ite
d b

od
y in

 ce
rta

in 
are

as.
Th

e ‘T
erm

s o
f A

pp
oin

tm
en

t fr
om

 1 
Ap

ril 
20

15
’ is

sue
d b

y P
SA

A s
ets

 ou
t a

dd
itio

na
l re

qu
ire

me
nts

 th
at 

au
dit

ors
 m

ust
 co

mp
ly w

ith
, o

ver
 an

d a
bo

ve 
tho

se 
set

 ou
t in

 th
e N

ati
on

al 
Au

dit
Off

ice
 Co

de
 of

 Au
dit

 Pr
act

ice
 (th

e C
od

e) 
an

d s
tat

ute
, a

nd
 co

ve
rs 

ma
tte

rs 
of 

pra
cti

ce 
an

d p
roc

ed
ure

 wh
ich

 ar
e o

f a
 re

cur
rin

g n
atu

re.
Th

is A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it L

ett
er 

is p
rep

are
d in

 th
e c

on
tex

t o
f th

e S
tat

em
en

t o
f re

spo
nsi

bili
tie

s. I
t is

 ad
dre

sse
d t

o t
he

 Me
mb

ers
 of

 th
e a

ud
ite

d b
od

y, 
an

d is
 pr

ep
are

d f
or 

the
ir s

ole
 us

e. 
We

, a
s

ap
po

int
ed

 au
dit

or,
 ta

ke 
no

 re
spo

nsi
bili

ty 
to 

an
y t

hir
d p

art
y.

Ou
r C

om
pla

int
s P

roc
ed

ure
 – I

f a
t a

ny
 tim

e y
ou

 wo
uld

 lik
e t

o d
isc

uss
 wi

th 
us 

ho
w o

ur 
ser

vic
e t

o y
ou

 co
uld

 be
 im

pro
ved

, o
r if

 yo
u a

re 
dis

sat
isf

ied
 wi

th 
the

 se
rvi

ce 
yo

u a
re 

rec
eiv

ing
, y

ou
ma

y t
ake

 th
e is

sue
 up

 wi
th 

yo
ur 

usu
al p

art
ne

r o
r d

ire
cto

r c
on

tac
t. I

f y
ou

 pr
efe

r a
n a

lte
rna

tiv
e r

ou
te,

 ple
ase

 co
nta

ct 
Ste

ve 
Va

rle
y, 

ou
r M

an
ag

ing
 Pa

rtn
er,

 1 
Mo

re 
Lo

nd
on

 Pl
ace

, L
on

do
n

SE
1 2

AF
. W

e u
nd

ert
ake

 to
 lo

ok
 in

to 
an

y c
om

pla
int

 ca
ref

ull
y a

nd
 pr

om
ptl

y a
nd

 to
 do

 all
 we

 ca
n t

o e
xpl

ain
 th

e p
osi

tio
n t

o y
ou

. S
ho

uld
 yo

u r
em

ain
 di

ssa
tis

fie
d w

ith
 an

y a
spe

ct 
of 

ou
r

ser
vic

e, 
yo

u m
ay 

of 
cou

rse
 ta

ke 
ma

tte
rs 

up
 wi

th 
ou

r p
rof

ess
ion

al 
ins

titu
te.

 W
e c

an
 pr

ov
ide

 fu
rth

er 
inf

orm
ati

on
 on

 ho
w y

ou
 m

ay 
con

tac
t o

ur 
pro

fes
sio

na
l in

sti
tut

e.

Page 12



Ex
ec

uti
ve

 Su
mm

ary

Page 13



An
nu

al A
ud

it L
ett

er 
for

 th
e y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 31
 Ma

rch
 20

16
 – L

on
do

n B
oro

ug
h o

f H
illin

gd
on

EY


2

Ex
ecu

tiv
e S

um
ma

ry
We

 ar
e r

eq
uir

ed
 to

 iss
ue

 an
 an

nu
al a

ud
it l

ett
er 

to 
Lo

nd
on

 Bo
rou

gh
 of

 Hi
llin

gd
on

 (th
e C

ou
nci

l) a
nd

 Hi
llin

gd
on

 Pe
nsi

on
 Fu

nd
 (th

e P
en

sio
n F

un
d)

fol
low

ing
 co

mp
let

ion
 of

 ou
r a

ud
it p

roc
ed

ure
s fo

r th
e y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 31
 Ma

rch
 20

16
.

Be
low

 ar
e t

he
 re

sul
ts 

an
d c

on
clu

sio
ns 

on
 th

e s
ign

ific
ant

 ar
eas

 of
 th

e a
ud

it p
roc

ess
.

Ar
ea

 of
 W

ork
Co

nc
lus

ion
Op

ini
on

 on
the

 Co
un

cil’
s a

nd
 th

e P
en

sio
n

 Fu
nd

’s:
Fin

an
cia

l st
ate

me
nts

Un
qu

alif
ied

 – t
he

 fin
an

cia
l st

ate
me

nts
 giv

e a
 tru

e a
nd

 fa
ir v

iew
 of

 th
e f

ina
nci

al p
osi

tio
n o

f th
e

Co
un

cil 
an

d P
en

sio
n F

un
d a

s a
t 3

1 M
arc

h 2
01

6 a
nd

 of
 its

 ex
pen

dit
ure

 an
d in

com
e f

or 
the

 ye
ar

the
n e

nd
ed

.
Co

nsi
ste

ncy
 of

 ot
he

r in
for

ma
tio

n p
ub

lish
ed

wit
h t

he
 fin

an
cia

l st
ate

me
nts

Ot
he

r in
for

ma
tio

n p
ub

lish
ed

 wi
th 

the
 fin

an
cia

l st
ate

me
nts

 wa
s c

on
sis

ten
t w

ith
 th

e A
nn

ua
l

Ac
co

un
ts.

Co
nc

lud
ing

 on
 th

e c
ou

nc
il’s

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 fo

r
sec

uri
ng

 ec
on

om
y, 

eff
icie

nc
y a

nd
 ef

fec
tiv

en
ess

We
 co

ncl
ud

ed
 th

at 
yo

u h
ave

 pu
t in

 pla
ce 

pro
pe

r a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

to 
sec

ure
 va

lue
 fo

r m
on

ey
 in

yo
ur 

use
 of

 re
sou

rce
s.

Ar
ea

 of
 W

ork
Co

nc
lus

ion
Re

po
rts

 by
 ex

cep
tio

n:
Co

nsi
ste

ncy
 of

 Go
ver

na
nce

 St
ate

me
nt

Th
e G

ov
ern

an
ce 

Sta
tem

en
t w

as 
con

sis
ten

t w
ith

 ou
r u

nd
ers

tan
din

g o
f th

e C
ou

nci
l.

Pu
blic

 in
ter

est
 re

po
rt

We
 ha

d n
o m

att
ers

 to
 re

po
rt i

n t
he

 pu
blic

 in
ter

est
.

Wr
itte

n r
eco

mm
en

dat
ion

s t
o t

he
 Co

un
cil,

wh
ich

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 co
pie

d t
o t

he
 Se

cre
tar

y o
f

Sta
te

We
 ha

d n
o m

att
ers

 to
 re

po
rt.

Oth
er 

act
ion

s ta
ken

 in
 re

lat
ion

 to
 ou

r
res

po
nsi

bili
tie

s u
nd

er 
the

 Lo
cal

 Au
dit

 an
d

Ac
cou

nta
bili

ty 
Ac

t 2
01

4
We

 ha
d n

o m
att

ers
 to

 re
po

rt.

Page 14



An
nu

al A
ud

it L
ett

er 
for

 th
e y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 31
 Ma

rch
 20

16
 – L

on
do

n B
oro

ug
h o

f H
illin

gd
on

EY


3

Ar
ea

 of
 W

ork
Co

nc
lus

ion
Re

po
rtin

g t
o t

he
 Na

tio
na

l A
ud

it O
ffic

e (
NA

O) 
on

ou
r re

vie
w o

f th
e C

ou
nci

l’s 
Wh

ole
 of

 Go
ver

nm
en

t
Ac

cou
nts

 re
tur

n (
WG

A).
We

 ha
d n

o m
att

ers
 to

 re
po

rt.

As
 a r

esu
lt o

f th
e a

bo
ve 

we
 ha

ve 
als

o:
Ar

ea
 of

 W
ork

Co
nc

lus
ion

Iss
ue

d a
 re

po
rt t

o t
ho

se 
cha

rge
d w

ith
go

ver
na

nce
 of

 th
e C

ou
nci

l co
mm

un
ica

tin
g

sig
nif

ica
nt 

fin
din

gs 
res

ult
ing

 fro
m 

ou
r a

ud
it.

Ou
r A

ud
it R

esu
lts

 Re
po

rt w
as 

iss
ue

d o
n t

he
 Co

un
cil 

an
d P

en
sio

n F
un

d o
n 2

2 S
ep

tem
be

r 2
01

6.

Iss
ue

d a
 ce

rtif
ica

te 
tha

t w
e h

ave
 co

mp
let

ed
 th

e
au

dit
 in

 ac
cor

da
nce

 wi
th 

the
 re

qu
ire

me
nts

 of
 th

e
Lo

cal
 Au

dit
 an

d A
cco

un
tab

ilit
y A

ct 
20

14
 an

d t
he

Na
tio

na
l A

ud
it O

ffic
e’s

 20
15

 Co
de

 of
 Au

dit
Pra

cti
ce.

Ou
r c

ert
ific

ate
 wa

s is
sue

d o
n 7

 Oc
tob

er 
20

16
 fo

llo
win

g c
om

ple
tio

n o
f o

ur 
WG

A w
ork

.

We
 wo

uld
 lik

e t
o t

ake
 th

is o
pp

ort
un

ity
 to

 th
an

k t
he

 Co
un

cil’
s s

taf
f a

nd
 th

ose
 wo

rki
ng

 on
 th

e P
en

sio
n F

un
d o

r th
eir

 as
sis

tan
ce 

du
rin

g t
he

 co
urs

e o
f

ou
r w

ork
.

Ma
ria

 Gr
ind

ley
Ex

ecu
tiv

e D
ire

cto
r

For
 an

d o
n b

eh
alf

 of
 Er

nst
 & 

Yo
un

g L
LP

Page 15



Pu
rpo

se

Page 16



An
nu

al A
ud

it L
ett

er 
for

 th
e y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 31
 Ma

rch
 20

16
 – L

on
do

n B
oro

ug
h o

f H
illin

gd
on

EY


5

Pu
rpo

se
Th

e P
urp

ose
 of

 th
is L

ett
er

Th
e p

urp
ose

 of
 th

is a
nn

ua
l au

dit
 let

ter
 is 

to 
com

mu
nic

ate
 to

 Me
mb

ers
 an

d e
xte

rna
l st

ake
ho

lde
rs,

 inc
lud

ing
 me

mb
ers

 of
 th

e p
ub

lic,
 th

e k
ey 

iss
ue

s
ari

sin
g f

rom
 ou

r w
ork

, w
hic

h w
e c

on
sid

er 
sho

uld
 be

 br
ou

gh
t to

 th
e a

tte
nti

on
 of

 th
e C

ou
nci

l.
We

 ha
ve 

alr
ea

dy 
rep

ort
ed

 th
e d

eta
iled

 fin
din

gs 
fro

m 
ou

r a
ud

it w
ork

 in
 ou

r 2
01

5/1
6 A

ud
it R

esu
lts 

Re
po

rt t
o t

he
 22

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
16

 Au
dit

Co
mm

itte
e, 

rep
res

en
tin

g t
ho

se 
cha

rge
d w

ith
 go

ver
na

nce
. W

e d
o n

ot 
rep

eat
 th

ose
 de

tai
led

 fin
din

gs 
in 

thi
s le

tte
r. T

he
 m

att
ers

 re
po

rte
d h

ere
 ar

e t
he

mo
st 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

for
 th

e C
ou

nci
l.

Page 17



Re
spo

nsi
bil

itie
s

Page 18



An
nu

al A
ud

it L
ett

er 
for

 th
e y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 31
 Ma

rch
 20

16
 – L

on
do

n B
oro

ug
h o

f H
illin

gd
on

EY


7

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
ies

Re
spo

nsi
bil

itie
s o

f th
e A

pp
oin

ted
 Au

dit
or

Ou
r 2

01
5/1

6 a
ud

it w
ork

 ha
s b

een
 un

de
rta

ken
 in

 ac
cor

da
nce

 wi
th 

the
 Au

dit
 Pl

an
s t

ha
t w

e is
sue

d o
n 1

5 M
arc

h 2
01

6 a
nd

 is 
con

du
cte

d in
acc

ord
an

ce 
wit

h t
he

 Na
tio

na
l A

ud
it O

ffic
e's

 20
15

 Co
de 

of 
Au

dit
 Pr

act
ice

, In
ter

na
tio

na
l S

tan
da

rds
 on

 Au
dit

ing
 (U

K a
nd

 Ire
lan

d),
 an

d o
the

r g
uid

an
ce

iss
ue

d b
y t

he
 Na

tio
na

l A
ud

it O
ffic

e.
As

 au
dit

ors
 we

 ar
e r

esp
on

sib
le 

for
:

Ex
pre

ssi
ng

 an
 op

inio
n:

on
 th

e 2
01

5/1
6 f

ina
nci

al s
tat

em
en

ts;
 an

d
on

 th
e c

on
sis

ten
cy 

of 
oth

er 
inf

orm
ati

on
 pu

blis
he

d w
ith

 th
e f

ina
nci

al s
tat

em
en

ts.
For

mi
ng

 a c
on

clu
sio

n o
n t

he
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 th
e C

ou
nci

l ha
s to

 se
cur

e e
con

om
y, e

ffic
ien

cy 
an

d e
ffe

cti
ven

ess
 in 

its
 us

e o
f re

sou
rce

s.
Re

po
rtin

g b
y e

xce
pti

on
:

if t
he

 an
nu

al 
go

ver
na

nce
 st

ate
me

nt 
is m

isle
ad

ing
 or

 no
t c

on
sis

ten
t w

ith
 ou

r u
nd

ers
tan

din
g o

f th
e C

ou
nci

l;
an

y s
ign

ific
an

t m
att

ers
 th

at 
are

 in
 th

e p
ub

lic 
int

ere
st;

an
y w

ritt
en

 re
com

me
nd

ati
on

s to
 th

e C
ou

nci
l, w

hic
h s

ho
uld

 be
 co

pie
d t

o t
he

 Se
cre

tar
y o

f S
tat

e; 
an

d
if w

e h
ave

 dis
cha

rge
d o

ur 
du

tie
s a

nd
 re

spo
nsi

bili
tie

s a
s e

sta
blis

he
d b

y t
hy

 Lo
cal

 Au
dit

 an
d A

cco
un

tab
ilit

y A
ct 

20
14

 an
d C

od
e o

f A
ud

it
Pra

cti
ce.

Alo
ng

sid
e o

ur 
wo

rk 
on

 th
e f

ina
nci

al s
tat

em
en

ts,
 we

 als
o r

evi
ew

 an
d r

ep
ort

 to
 th

e N
ati

on
al 

Au
dit

 Of
fic

e (
NA

O) 
on

 yo
ur 

Wh
ole

 of
 Go

ver
nm

en
t

Ac
cou

nts
 re

tur
n.

Page 19



An
nu

al A
ud

it L
ett

er 
for

 th
e y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 31
 Ma

rch
 20

16
 – L

on
do

n B
oro

ug
h o

f H
illin

gd
on

EY


8

Re
spo

nsi
bil

itie
s o

f th
e C

ou
nc

il
Th

e C
ou

nci
l is

 re
spo

nsi
ble

 fo
r p

rep
ari

ng
 an

d p
ub

lish
ing

 its
 sta

tem
en

t o
f a

cco
un

ts 
acc

om
pa

nie
d b

y a
n A

nn
ua

l G
ove

rna
nce

 St
ate

me
nt 

(AG
S).

 As
ad

mi
nis

ter
ing

 au
tho

rity
 fo

r th
e P

en
sio

n F
un

d, 
it i

s r
esp

on
sib

le f
or 

pre
pa

rin
g t

he
 Pe

nsi
on

 Fu
nd

’s s
tat

em
en

t o
f a

cco
un

ts 
to 

be
 pu

blis
he

d w
ith

in 
the

Pe
nsi

on
 Fu

nd
’s a

nn
ua

l re
po

rt. 
 In

 th
e A

GS
, th

e C
ou

nci
l re

po
rts

 pu
blic

ly e
ach

 ye
ar 

on
 ho

w f
ar 

it c
om

plie
s w

ith
 its

 ow
n c

od
e o

f g
ove

rna
nce

, in
clu

din
g

ho
w i

t h
as 

mo
nit

ore
d a

nd
 ev

alu
ate

d t
he 

eff
ect

ive
nes

s o
f it

s g
ove

rna
nce

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 in

 ye
ar,

 an
d a

ny 
cha

ng
es 

pla
nn

ed
 in 

the
 co

mi
ng

 pe
rio

d.
Th

e C
ou

nci
l is

 als
o r

esp
on

sib
le 

for
 pu

ttin
g in

 pla
ce 

pro
pe

r a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

to 
sec

ure
 ec

on
om

y, e
ffic

ien
cy 

an
d e

ffe
cti

ven
ess

 in 
its

 us
e o

f re
sou

rce
s.

Page 20



Fin
an

cia
l S

tat
em

en
t

Au
dit

Page 21



An
nu

al A
ud

it L
ett

er 
for

 th
e y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 31
 Ma

rch
 20

16
 – L

on
do

n B
oro

ug
h o

f H
illin

gd
on

EY


1
0

Fin
an

cia
l S

tat
em

en
t A

ud
it

Ke
y I

ssu
es

Th
e C

ou
nci

l’s 
Sta

tem
en

t o
f A

cco
un

ts 
is a

n im
po

rta
nt 

too
l fo

r th
e C

ou
nci

l to
 sh

ow
 ho

w i
t h

as 
use

d p
ub

lic 
mo

ney
 an

d h
ow

 it 
can

 de
mo

nst
rat

e it
s

fin
an

cia
l m

an
age

me
nt 

an
d f

ina
nci

al h
ea

lth
.

We
 au

dit
ed

 th
e C

ou
nci

l an
d P

en
sio

n F
un

d’s
 St

ate
me

nt 
of 

Ac
cou

nts
 in

 lin
e w

ith
 th

e N
ati

on
al A

ud
it O

ffic
e’s

 20
15

 Co
de

 of
 Au

dit
 Pr

act
ice

,
Int

ern
ati

on
al S

tan
da

rds
 on

 Au
dit

ing
 (U

K a
nd

 Ire
lan

d),
 an

d o
the

r g
uid

an
ce 

iss
ue

d b
y t

he
 Na

tio
na

l A
ud

it O
ffic

e a
nd

 iss
ue

d u
nq

ua
lifi

ed
 au

dit
 re

po
rts

on
 30

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
16

.
Ou

r d
eta

iled
 fin

din
gs 

we
re 

inc
lud

ed
 in 

ou
r A

ud
it R

esu
lts 

Re
po

rts
 fo

r b
oth

 th
e m

ain
 Co

un
cil 

an
d P

en
sio

n F
un

d a
ud

its 
pre

sen
ted

 to
 th

e 2
2 S

ep
tem

be
r

me
eti

ng
 of

 th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi

tte
e. 

 In
 th

ose
 re

po
rts

, w
e n

ote
d t

ha
t th

ere
 we

re 
som

e a
rea

s w
he

re 
ou

r w
ork

 wa
s o

uts
tan

din
g a

nd
 wa

s t
o b

e
com

ple
ted

.  W
e c

om
ple

ted
 wo

rk 
in 

tho
se 

are
as 

an
d t

his
 en

ab
led

 us
 to

 iss
ue

 un
qu

alif
ied

 au
dit

 re
po

rts
 on

 th
e C

ou
nci

l an
d P

en
sio

n F
un

d f
ina

nci
al

sta
tem

en
ts.

Th
e k

ey 
iss

ue
s id

en
tifi

ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f o
ur 

au
dit

 we
re 

as 
fol

low
s:

Sig
nif

ica
nt 

Ris
k

Co
nc

lus
ion

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
ov

err
ide

 of
 co

ntr
ols

A r
isk

 pr
ese

nt 
on

 all
 au

dit
s is

 th
at 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
is i

n a
un

iqu
e p

osi
tio

n t
o p

erp
etr

ate
 fra

ud
 be

cau
se 

of 
its

 ab
ilit

y
to 

ma
nip

ula
te 

acc
ou

nti
ng

 re
cor

ds 
dir

ect
ly o

r in
dir

ect
ly,

an
d p

rep
are

 fra
ud

ule
nt 

fin
an

cia
l st

ate
me

nts
 by

 ov
err

idin
g

co
ntr

ols
 th

at 
oth

erw
ise

 ap
pe

ar 
to 

be
 op

era
tin

g
eff

ect
ive

ly.
Au

dit
ing

 sta
nd

ard
s r

eq
uir

e u
s t

o r
esp

on
d t

o t
his

 ris
k b

y
tes

tin
g t

he
 ap

pro
pri

ate
ne

ss 
of 

jou
rna

ls, 
tes

tin
g

acc
ou

nti
ng

 es
tim

ate
s f

or 
po

ssi
ble

 m
an

ag
em

en
t b

ias
 an

d
ob

tai
nin

g a
n u

nd
ers

tan
din

g o
f th

e b
usi

ne
ss 

rat
ion

ale
 fo

r
an

y s
ign

ific
an

t u
nu

sua
l tr

an
sac

tio
ns.

We
 ob

tai
ne

d a
 fu

ll li
st 

of 
jou

rna
ls p

ost
ed

 to
 th

e g
en

era
l le

dg
er 

du
rin

g t
he

 ye
ar,

 an
d

an
aly

sed
 th

ese
 jo

urn
als

 us
ing

 cr
ite

ria
 we

 se
t to

 ide
nti

fy 
an

y u
nu

sua
l jo

urn
al t

yp
es 

or
am

ou
nts

. W
e t

he
n t

est
ed

 a s
am

ple
 of

 jo
urn

als
 th

at 
me

t o
ur 

cri
ter

ia a
nd

 te
ste

d t
he

se
to 

sup
po

rtin
g d

ocu
me

nta
tio

n.
We

 co
nsi

de
red

 ac
cou

nti
ng

 es
tim

ate
s r

ela
tin

g t
o t

he 
Lo

cal
 Go

ver
nm

en
t P

en
sio

n
Sc

he
me

 an
d P

rop
ert

y, P
lan

t a
nd

 Eq
uip

me
nt 

an
d f

ou
nd

 th
at 

est
im

ate
s a

re 
rea

son
abl

e,
an

d t
he

re 
wa

s n
o i

nd
ica

tio
n o

f b
ias

 in
 th

e c
alc

ula
tio

n o
f th

e e
sti

ma
tes

.
We

 di
d n

ot 
ide

nti
fy 

an
y:

 m
ate

ria
l w

eak
ne

sse
s in

 co
ntr

ols
 or

 ev
ide

nce
 of

 m
ate

ria
l m

an
ag

em
en

t o
ver

rid
e;

ins
tan

ces
 of

 ina
pp

rop
ria

te 
jud

ge
me

nts
 be

ing
 ap

plie
d; 

or
oth

er 
tra

nsa
cti

on
s d

uri
ng

 ou
r a

ud
it, 

wh
ich

 ap
pe

are
d u

nu
sua

l, o
r o

uts
ide

 th
e

Co
un

cil’
s n

orm
al c

ou
rse

 of
 bu

sin
ess

.

Page 22



An
nu

al A
ud

it L
ett

er 
for

 th
e y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 31
 Ma

rch
 20

16
 – L

on
do

n B
oro

ug
h o

f H
illin

gd
on

EY


1
1

Re
ve

nu
e a

nd
 ex

pe
nd

itu
re 

rec
og

nit
ion

Un
de

r IS
A2

40
 th

ere
 is 

a p
res

um
ed

 ris
k t

ha
t re

ven
ue

 m
ay

be
 m

iss
tat

ed
 du

e t
o im

pro
pe

r re
cog

nit
ion

 of
 re

ven
ue

.
In 

the
 pu

blic
 se

cto
r, t

his
 re

qu
ire

me
nt 

is m
od

ifie
d b

y
Pra

cti
ce 

No
te 

10
, is

sue
d b

y t
he

 Fin
an

cia
l R

ep
ort

ing
Co

un
cil,

 wh
ich

 sta
tes

 th
at 

au
dit

ors
 sh

ou
ld 

als
o c

on
sid

er
the

 ris
k t

ha
t m

ate
ria

l m
iss

tat
em

en
ts 

ma
y o

ccu
r b

y t
he

ma
nip

ula
tio

n o
f e

xpe
nd

itu
re 

rec
og

nit
ion

.

Ou
r te

sti
ng

 did
 no

t id
en

tify
 an

y is
sue

s t
ha

t w
e n

eed
 to

 re
po

rt t
o y

ou
.

Ot
he

r K
ey

 Fi
nd

ing
s

Co
nc

lus
ion

Va
lua

tio
n o

f P
rop

ert
y, 

Pla
nt 

an
d E

qu
ipm

en
t

As
 at

 31
 Ma

rch
 20

15
, th

e t
ota

l va
lue

 of
 lan

d a
nd

 bu
ildi

ng
s

wa
s £

1,0
68

 m
illio

n w
hic

h r
ep

res
en

ts 
72

% o
f th

e C
ou

nci
l’s

tot
al a

sse
ts.

La
nd

 an
d b

uild
ing

s a
re 

init
iall

y m
ea

sur
ed

 at
 co

st 
an

d t
he

n
rev

alu
ed

 to
 fa

ir v
alu

e.
Re

val
ua

tio
ns 

are
 pe

rfo
rm

ed
 wi

th 
suf

fic
ien

t re
gu

lar
ity

 to
en

sur
e t

ha
t c

arr
yin

g a
mo

un
ts 

are
 no

t m
ate

ria
lly 

dif
fer

en
t

fro
m 

tho
se 

tha
t w

ou
ld b

e d
ete

rm
ine

d a
t th

e e
nd

 of
 th

e
rep

ort
ing

 pe
rio

d.
Th

e v
alu

ati
on

s a
re 

ba
sed

 on
 a n

um
be

r o
f c

om
ple

x
ass

um
pti

on
s. G

ive
n t

he 
hig

h v
alu

e o
f th

ese
 as

set
s, a

 sm
all

ch
an

ge
 in

 th
ese

 as
sum

pti
on

s c
an

 lea
d t

o a
 m

ate
ria

l
ch

an
ge

 in
 va

lue
.

We
 co

ncl
ud

ed
 th

at 
the

 va
lua

tio
n o

f P
rop

ert
y, P

lan
t a

nd
 Eq

uip
me

nt 
wa

s m
ate

ria
lly

cor
rec

t. W
e id

en
tifi

ed
 on

e e
rro

r th
at 

wa
s c

orr
ect

ed
. W

e h
ave

 no
 ot

he
r is

sue
s t

o
rep

ort
.

Page 23



Va
lue

 fo
r M

on
ey

Page 24



An
nu

al A
ud

it L
ett

er 
for

 th
e y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 31
 Ma

rch
 20

16
 – L

on
do

n B
oro

ug
h o

f H
illin

gd
on

EY


1
3

Va
lue

 fo
r M

on
ey

We
 ar

e r
eq

uir
ed

 to
 co

nsi
der

 wh
eth

er 
the

 Co
un

cil 
ha

s p
ut 

in 
pla

ce 
‘pr

op
er 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
’ to

 se
cur

e e
con

om
y, e

ffic
ien

cy 
an

d e
ffe

cti
ven

ess
 on

 its
 us

e
of 

res
ou

rce
s. T

his
 is 

kno
wn

 as
 ou

r v
alu

e f
or 

mo
ne

y c
on

clu
sio

n.
Pro

pe
r a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
are

 de
fin

ed
 by

 sta
tut

ory
 gu

ida
nce

 iss
ue

d b
y t

he
 Na

tio
na

l A
ud

it O
ffic

e. 
Th

ey 
com

pri
se 

you
r a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
to:

•
Tak

e in
for

me
d d

eci
sio

ns;
•

De
plo

y r
eso

urc
es 

in a
 su

sta
ina

ble
 m

an
ne

r; a
nd

•
Wo

rk 
wit

h p
art

ne
rs 

an
d o

the
r th

ird
 pa

rtie
s.

We
 iss

ue
d a

n u
nq

ua
lifi

ed
 va

lue
 fo

r m
on

ey
 co

ncl
usi

on
 on

 30
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

16
.

Ou
r a

ud
it d

id n
ot 

ide
nti

fy 
any

 sig
nif

ica
nt 

ma
tte

rs 
in 

rel
ati

on
 to

 th
e C

ou
nci

l’s 
arr

an
gem

en
ts.

Pro
pe

r a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

for
sec

uri
ng

 va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey

Inf
orm

ed
de

cis
ion

 m
aki

ng

Wo
rki

ng
 wi

th
pa

rtn
ers

 an
d

thi
rd 

pa
rtie

s
Su

sta
ina

ble
res

ou
rce

de
plo

ym
en

t

Page 25



Ot
he

r R
ep

ort
ing

Iss
ue

s

Page 26



An
nu

al A
ud

it L
ett

er 
for

 th
e y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 31
 Ma

rch
 20

16
 – L

on
do

n B
oro

ug
h o

f H
illin

gd
on

EY


1
5

Ot
he

r R
ep

ort
ing

 Iss
ue

s
Wh

ole
 of

 Go
ve

rnm
en

t A
cco

un
ts

We
 pe

rfo
rm

ed
 th

e p
roc

ed
ure

s r
eq

uir
ed

 by
 th

e N
ati

on
al A

ud
it O

ffic
e o

n t
he

 ac
cur

acy
 of

 th
e c

on
sol

ida
tio

n p
ack

 pr
ep

are
d b

y t
he

 Co
un

cil 
for

 W
ho

le 
of

Go
ver

nm
en

t A
cco

un
ts 

pu
rpo

ses
.

We
 ha

d n
o is

sue
s t

o r
ep

ort
.

Pe
nsi

on
 Fu

nd
 An

nu
al 

Re
po

rt
We

 pe
rfo

rm
ed

 pr
oce

du
res

 to
 en

sur
e t

ha
t in

for
ma

tio
n w

ith
in 

the
 Pe

nsi
on

 Fu
nd

 An
nu

al R
ep

ort
 wa

s c
on

sis
ten

t w
ith

 th
e a

ud
ite

d f
ina

nci
al s

tat
em

en
ts.

We
 ha

d n
o is

sue
s t

o r
ep

ort
.

An
nu

al 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e S

tat
em

en
t

We
 ar

e r
eq

uir
ed

 to
 co

nsi
der

 th
e c

om
ple

ten
ess

 of
 dis

clo
sur

es 
in 

the
 Co

un
cil’

s a
nn

ua
l g

ove
rna

nce
 st

ate
me

nt,
 ide

nti
fy 

an
y in

con
sis

ten
cie

s w
ith

 th
e

oth
er 

inf
orm

ati
on

 of
 wh

ich
 we

 ar
e a

wa
re 

fro
m 

ou
r w

ork
, a

nd
 co

nsi
de

r w
he

the
r it

 is 
mi

sle
ad

ing
.

We
 co

mp
let

ed
 th

is w
ork

 an
d d

id n
ot 

ide
nti

fy 
an

y a
rea

s o
f c

on
cer

n.

Re
po

rt 
in 

the
 Pu

bli
c I

nte
res

t
We

 ha
ve 

a d
uty

 un
de

r th
e L

oca
l A

ud
it a

nd
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty 

Ac
t 2

01
4 t

o c
on

sid
er 

wh
eth

er,
 in 

the
 pu

blic
 in

ter
est

, to
 re

po
rt o

n a
ny

 m
att

er 
tha

t c
om

es
to 

ou
r a

tte
nti

on
 in 

the
 co

urs
e o

f th
e a

ud
it i

n o
rde

r fo
r it

 to
 be

 co
nsi

de
red

 by
 th

e C
ou

nci
l or

 br
ou

gh
t to

 th
e a

tte
nti

on
 of

 th
e p

ub
lic.

We
 di

d n
ot 

ide
nti

fy 
an

y is
sue

s w
hic

h r
eq

uir
ed

 us
 to

 iss
ue

 a 
rep

ort
 in 

the
 pu

blic
 in

ter
est

.

Wr
itte

n R
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s

We
 ha

ve 
a d

uty
 un

de
r th

e L
oca

l A
ud

it a
nd

 Ac
cou

nta
bili

ty 
Ac

t 2
01

4 t
o d

esi
gn

ate
 an

y a
ud

it r
eco

mm
en

dat
ion

 as
 on

e t
ha

t re
qu

ire
s t

he
 Co

un
cil 

to
con

sid
er 

it a
t a

 pu
blic

 m
eet

ing
 an

d t
o d

eci
de

 wh
at 

act
ion

 to
 ta

ke 
in 

res
po

nse
.

We
 di

d n
ot 

ide
nti

fy 
an

y is
sue

s w
hic

h r
eq

uir
ed

 us
 to

 iss
ue

 a 
wr

itte
n r

eco
mm

en
da

tio
n.

Page 27



An
nu

al A
ud

it L
ett

er 
for

 th
e y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 31
 Ma

rch
 20

16
 – L

on
do

n B
oro

ug
h o

f H
illin

gd
on

EY


1
6

Ob
jec

tio
ns 

Re
cei

ve
d

We
 di

d n
ot 

rec
eiv

e a
ny

 ob
jec

tio
ns 

to 
the

 20
15

/16
 fin

an
cia

l st
ate

me
nts

 fro
m 

me
mb

ers
 of

 th
e p

ub
lic.

Ot
he

r P
ow

ers
 an

d D
uti

es
We

 id
en

tifi
ed

 no
 iss

ue
s d

uri
ng

 ou
r a

ud
it t

ha
t re

qu
ire

d u
s t

o u
se 

ou
r a

dd
itio

na
l po

we
rs 

un
de

r th
e L

oca
l A

ud
it a

nd
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty 

Ac
t 2

01
4.

Ind
ep

en
de

nce
We

 co
mm

un
ica

ted
 ou

r a
sse

ssm
en

t o
f in

de
pe

nd
en

ce 
in o

ur 
Au

dit
 Re

sul
ts 

Re
po

rts
 to

 th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi

tte
e o

n 2
2 S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
6. 

In o
ur

pro
fes

sio
na

l ju
dg

em
en

t th
e f

irm
 is 

ind
ep

en
den

t a
nd

 th
e o

bje
cti

vit
y o

f th
e a

ud
it e

ng
ag

em
en

t p
art

ne
r a

nd
 au

dit
 sta

ff h
as 

no
t b

een
 co

mp
rom

ise
d

wit
hin

 th
e m

ea
nin

g r
eg

ula
tor

y a
nd

 pr
ofe

ssi
on

al r
equ

ire
me

nts
.

Co
ntr

ol 
Th

em
es 

an
d O

bse
rva

tio
ns

As
 pa

rt o
f o

ur 
wo

rk,
 we

 ob
tai

ne
d a

n u
nd

ers
tan

din
g o

f in
ter

na
l co

ntr
ol 

suf
fic

ien
t to

 pla
n o

ur 
au

dit
 an

d d
ete

rm
ine

 th
e n

atu
re,

 tim
ing

 an
d e

xte
nt 

of
tes

tin
g p

erf
orm

ed
. A

lth
ou

gh
 ou

r a
ud

it w
as 

no
t d

esi
gn

ed
 to

 ex
pre

ss 
an

 op
ini

on
 on

 th
e e

ffe
cti

ven
ess

 of
 int

ern
al c

on
tro

l, w
e a

re 
req

uir
ed

 to
com

mu
nic

ate
 to

 yo
u s

ign
ific

an
t d

efi
cie

nci
es 

in 
int

ern
al c

on
tro

l id
en

tifi
ed

 du
rin

g o
ur 

au
dit

. W
e h

ave
 no

t id
en

tifi
ed

 an
y s

ign
ific

an
t d

efi
cie

nci
es 

in 
the

de
sig

n o
r o

per
ati

on
 of

 an
 int

ern
al c

on
tro

l th
at 

mi
gh

t re
sul

t in
 a m

ate
ria

l m
iss

tat
em

en
t in

 th
e f

ina
nci

al s
tat

em
en

ts 
an

d w
hic

h t
he

 Co
un

cil 
do

es 
no

t
kn

ow
 ab

ou
t.

Page 28



Foc
us

ed
 on

 yo
ur

fut
ure

Page 29



An
nu

al A
ud

it L
ett

er 
for

 th
e y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 31
 Ma

rch
 20

16
 –L

on
do

n B
oro

ug
h o

f H
illin

gd
on

EY


1
8

Foc
use

d o
n y

ou
r fu

tur
e

Ar
ea

Iss
ue

Im
pa

ct
Hig

hw
ay

s
Ne

tw
ork

As
set

s
Th

e 2
01

6/1
7 C

od
e o

f P
rac

tic
e o

n L
oca

l A
uth

ori
ty

Ac
cou

nti
ng

 inc
lud

es 
the

 re
qu

ire
me

nt 
for

 loc
al

au
tho

riti
es 

to 
me

asu
re 

Hig
hw

ay
s N

etw
ork

 As
set

s
usi

ng
 de

pre
cia

ted
 re

pla
cem

en
t c

ost
 fo

r th
e f

irs
t

tim
e.

Th
e c

ha
ng

e in
 th

e m
eas

ure
me

nt 
of 

Hig
hw

ays
 Ne

tw
ork

 As
set

s w
ill r

esu
lt

in a
n a

dju
stm

en
t to

 th
e o

pe
nin

g b
ala

nce
 of

 th
ese

 as
set

s a
t 1

 Ap
ril 

20
16

.
Th

e v
alu

e o
f th

ese
 as

set
s w

ill b
e s

ign
ific

an
t to

 th
e C

ou
nci

l’s 
ba

lan
ce

she
et.

 Th
ere

 is 
a h

igh
er 

inh
ere

nt 
ris

k o
f m

ate
ria

l m
iss

tat
em

en
t d

ue
 to

va
lue

 of
 th

is c
las

s o
f a

sse
ts.

We
 ar

e p
rov

idin
g t

rai
nin

g s
ess

ion
s t

o c
lien

ts 
to 

sup
po

rt k
ey

 of
fic

ers
 wi

th
the

 ne
w a

cco
un

tin
g r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
an

d o
ur 

exp
ect

ati
on

s a
s y

ou
r a

ud
ito

rs.

Fa
ste

r c
los

e
Fro

m 
the

 20
17

/18
 fin

an
cia

l ye
ar,

 th
e d

ea
dlin

e f
or

pre
pa

rin
g t

he
 Co

un
cil’

s f
ina

nci
al s

tat
em

en
ts 

wil
l

mo
ve 

to 
31

 Ma
y f

rom
 30

 Ju
ne

.  I
n a

dd
itio

n, 
the

de
ad

line
 fo

r c
om

ple
tin

g t
he

 st
atu

tor
y a

ud
it w

ill
mo

ve 
to 

31
 Ju

ly f
rom

 30
 Se

pte
mb

er.

Th
e f

ast
er 

clo
sed

ow
n t

im
eta

ble
 re

qu
ire

s t
he

 Co
un

cil 
to 

ad
jus

t it
s

tim
eta

ble
 fo

r p
rep

ari
ng

 th
e a

cco
un

ts,
 an

d m
ay

 im
pa

ct 
on

 th
e b

ud
ge

t
set

tin
g p

roc
ess

 an
d t

he
 tim

ing
 of

 co
mm

itte
e m

ee
tin

gs.
It r

eq
uir

es 
up

fro
nt 

pla
nn

ing
 to

 id
en

tify
 ar

eas
 of

 th
e a

cco
un

ts t
ha

t c
an

 be
pre

pa
red

 ea
rlie

r, b
efo

re 
the

 31
Ma

rch
, a

nd
 th

ere
 wi

ll b
e a

 ne
ed

 to
est

ab
lish

 ro
bu

st 
ba

sis
 fo

r e
sti

ma
tio

ns 
acr

oss
 a w

ide
r n

um
be

r o
f e

ntr
ies

in 
the

 fin
an

cia
l st

ate
me

nts
.

Fo
r th

e 2
01

6/1
7 a

ud
it, 

we
 ar

e w
ork

ing
 wi

th 
off

ice
rs 

to 
bri

ng
 ou

r w
ork

for
wa

rd 
to 

sup
po

rt t
he

 tra
nsi

tio
n a

he
ad

 of
 th

e n
ew

 de
ad

lin
es 

in
20

17
/18

.

Page 30



Au
dit

 Fe
es

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A

Page 31



An
nu

al A
ud

it L
ett

er 
for

 th
e y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 31
 Ma

rch
 20

16
– L

on
do

n B
oro

ug
h o

f H
illin

gd
on

EY
 | 2

0

Ap
pe

nd
ix A

Au
dit

 Fe
es

Ou
r fe

e f
or 

the
 20

15
/16

 au
dit

 is 
in 

line
 wi

th 
the

 sc
ale

 fe
e s

et 
by

 th
e P

SA
A a

nd
 re

po
rte

d in
 ou

r A
nn

ua
l R

esu
lts 

Re
po

rts
.

De
scr

ipt
ion

Fin
al 

Fe
e 2

01
5/1

6
£

Pla
nn

ed
 Fe

e2
01

5/1
6

£
Sc

ale
 Fe

e 2
01

5/
16

£
Fin

al 
Fe

e 2
01

4/1
5*

*
£

To
tal

 Au
dit

 Fe
e –

 Co
de

 wo
rk

15
7,2

68
15

7,2
68

15
7,2

68
21

0,6
00

To
tal

 Au
dit

 Fe
e –

 Pe
ns

ion
 Fu

nd
21

,00
0

21
,00

0
21

,00
0

21
,00

0
To

tal
 Au

dit
 Fe

e –
 Ce

rti
fic

ati
on

 of
 cla

im
s

an
d r

etu
rns

  - 
Ho

usi
ng

 Be
ne

fits
TB

C*
17

,79
7

24
,44

5
38

,30
0

*  O
ur 

wo
rk 

to 
cer

tify
 th

e H
ou

sin
g B

en
efi

t c
laim

 is 
on

go
ing

 an
d w

e w
ill r

ep
ort

 an
y c

ha
ng

es 
to 

the
 fe

e.
** 

We
 we

re 
no

t th
e a

ud
ito

rs 
in 

20
14

/15
 so

 th
ese

 fe
es 

are
 in

clu
de

d f
or 

inf
orm

ati
on

 on
ly b

ut 
we

re 
no

t p
aid

 to
 EY

.
We

 co
nfi

rm
 we

 ha
ve 

no
t u

nd
ert

ake
n a

ny
 no

n-a
ud

it w
ork

 ou
tsi

de
 of

 th
e P

SA
A’s

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
. W

e a
re 

wo
rki

ng
 on

 Te
ach

ers
 Pe

nsi
on

 an
d P

oo
lin

g o
f H

ou
sin

g C
ap

ita
l

Re
cei

pts
 an

d w
ill r

ep
ort

 on
 th

e f
ina

l fe
e w

he
n t

he
 wo

rk 
is c

om
ple

te.

Page 32



EY
 | A

ssu
ran

ce 
| Ta

x |
 Tr

an
sac

tio
ns 

| A
dvi

sor
y

Ern
st 

& Y
ou

ng
 LL

P
© 

Ern
st 

& Y
ou

ng
 LL

P. 
Pu

bli
she

d i
n t

he
 UK

.
All

 Ri
gh

ts 
Re

ser
ved

.
ED

 No
ne

Th
e U

K f
irm

 Er
nst

 & 
Yo

un
g L

LP
 is 

a li
mi

ted
 lia

bili
ty 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 re
gis

ter
ed 

in E
ng

lan
d a

nd
 W

ale
s

wit
h r

eg
ist

ere
d n

um
be

r O
C3

00
00

1 a
nd

 is 
a m

em
be

r fi
rm

 of
 Er

nst
 & 

Yo
un

g G
lob

al L
im

ite
d.

Ern
st 

& Y
ou

ng
 LL

P, 
1 M

ore
 Lo

nd
on

 Pl
ace

, L
on

do
n, 

SE
1 2

AF
.

ey.
com

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Committee  15 December 2016 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

Business Assurance – Revised Internal Audit Charter 

Contact Officer: Muir Laurie 
Telephone: 01895 556132 

REASON FOR ITEM 

The Internal Audit (IA) Charter sets out the purpose, authority, responsibility and position of 
the IA Service within the London Borough of Hillingdon. As such it is a key document in 
respect to the Council's internal control, risk management and corporate governance 
framework. The IA Charter was last agreed by the Council’s Corporate Management Team 
and Audit Committee in March 2015. However, the IA Charter has now been further 
updated to provide clearer compliance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS), which came into effect on 1st April 2013. 
 
Whilst the main changes to the IA Charter are presentational, it has also been updated to 
include a new section on the wider remit of Business Assurance (ref. para 8.1). This area is 
specifically referred to in the PSIAS and therefore the revision results in the IA Charter now 
being more closely aligned with the PSIAS. The IA Charter will continue to be reviewed 
periodically and be approved by the Council’s Corporate Management Team and Audit 
Committee to ensure that it remains relevant to the needs of the Council. 
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 

The Audit Committee is asked to review and approve the revised IA Charter. 
 
INFORMATION 

The IA Charter sets out how IA complies with the PSIAS across the following key areas: 

1. Purpose 

2. Statutory Requirement & Authority 

3. Status of IA within the Council 

4. Objectives & Mission 

5. Scope of IA 

6. Responsibility 

7. Reporting Lines 

8. Other IA Work 

9. Ethics 

10. Quality Assurance 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

The IA Terms of Reference March 2015 (attached). 

Agenda Item 6

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Reviewed by Muir Laurie, Head of Internal Audit - 8
th

 March 2015,  Page 1 of 4 

Approved by Audit Committee - 17
th

 March 2015 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

 
 
 

Internal Audit Charter 
 

1. Purpose 

 
1.1 The London Borough of Hillingdon Internal Audit (IA) Charter describes the purpose, authority, 

responsibility and position of the IA Service within the London Borough of Hillingdon. The Head 
of Internal Audit (HIA) is responsible for applying this IA Charter and ensuring it is kept up to 
date. The IA Charter shall be reviewed annually and be approved by the Board (Audit 
Committee) to ensure that it remains relevant to the needs of the Council. 

 

2. Statutory Requirement 

 
2.1 The Local Government Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 require every local authority to 

maintain an adequate and effective IA of its accounting records and its systems of internal 
control. IA's work will be performed with due professional care in accordance with these 
regulations and in line with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 

 
2.2 The IA service is responsible for providing assurance to all of its key stakeholders including the 

Audit Committee, senior management and in particular the Chief Financial Officer to help him 
discharge his statutory responsibilities under Section 151 (S151) of the Local Government Act 
1972. An effective IA service will be seen as a catalyst for improvement at the core of the 
Council and will become recognised across the Council as a value added, trusted advisor and 
business assurance provider. 

 

3. Responsibilities and Objectives 

 
3.1 IA is defined in the PSIAS as “an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity 

designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation 
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and 
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes". 

 
3.2 IA is not responsible for control systems and managing risks. Responsibility for effective internal 

control and management of risks rests with the management of the Council. 
 

4. Status of Internal Audit within the Council 

 
4.1 IA will be independent of all activities that it audits to enable internal auditors to perform their 

duties in a way that allows them to make professional and impartial judgements and 
recommendations. 

 
4.2 The IA activity will remain free from interference by any element in the Council, including 

matters of audit selection, scope, procedures, frequency, timing, or report content to permit 
maintenance of a necessary independent and objective mental attitude. Internal auditors will 
have no direct operational responsibility or authority over any of the activities they review. 
Accordingly, internal auditors will not engage in any activity that may impair their judgement or 
objectivity. 

Page 37



 

Reviewed by Muir Laurie, Head of Internal Audit - 8
th

 March 2015,  Page 2 of 4  

Approved by Audit Committee - 17
th

 March 2015 

4.3 Internal auditors will exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, evaluating, 
and communicating information about the activity or process being examined. Internal auditors 
must make a balanced assessment of all the relevant circumstances and not be unduly 
influenced by their own interests or by others in forming judgements. 

 
4.4 The IA service is part of the Finance Group and is led by the HIA who reports directly to the 

Corporate Director for Finance (& S151 Officer). The HIA also has unrestricted access to the 
independent Chair of the Audit Committee, the Chief Executive, External Audit (Deloitte), the 
Leader of the Council and all other Members and staff. The HIA will also confirm to the Board 
(which for the purposes of the PSIAS is the Audit Committee), at least annually, the 
organisational independence of the IA activity. 

 

5. Authority and Rights of Access to Obtain Information 

 
5.1 IA's authority is defined in statute and internally is derived from policies, procedures, rules and 

regulations established by the Council. This includes the IA Charter, the Council's Financial 
Regulations and the Employee Code of Conduct and Conditions of Service. 

 
5.2 IA, with strict accountability for confidentiality and safeguarding information, is authorised to 

have full and unrestricted access to all Council records (both manual and computerised), 
Council property, and personnel pertinent to carrying out any engagement. All employees are 
requested to assist IA in fulfilling its roles and responsibilities. IA will also have free and 
unrestricted access to the Audit Committee. 

 

6. Scope of Internal Audit 

 
6.1 The HIA is required to give an annual opinion to the Council and to the S151 Officer, through 

the Audit Committee, on the overall adequacy and the effectiveness of the Council's risk 
management, internal control and governance arrangements. In support of this, IA undertakes 
risk based assurance reviews. 

 
6.2 IA also has the responsibility to provide consulting and advisory services to management 

relating to risk management, control and governance as appropriate for the Council. The IA 
service may also evaluate specific operations at the request of the Audit Committee or senior 
management, as appropriate. Before any consultancy work is agreed, the HIA will ensure that 
IA has the appropriate skills, resources and approval to undertake the review. The HlA will also 
ensure that appropriate safeguards are in place to preserve objectivity in areas subject to future 
IA activity. This may include assigning this work to a different internal auditor. 

 

7. Fraud and Corruption 

 
7.1. IA does not have responsibility for the prevention or detection of fraud and corruption. Managing 

the risk of fraud and corruption is the responsibility of management. IA procedures alone, even 
when performed with due professional care, cannot guarantee that fraud or corruption will be 
detected. Internal auditors will, however, be alert in all their work to risks and exposures that 
could allow fraud or corruption. The Council's Corporate Fraud Investigations Team provides 
expertise in investigating fraud, corruption and malpractice. There is active joined-up working 
between IA and the Corporate Fraud Investigations Team. 

 
7.2. Management has a responsibility to promptly inform the HlA of all suspected or detected fraud, 

corruption or improprieties. This allows consideration to be given to the adequacy of the relevant 
controls, and to evaluate the implication of fraud and corruption in informing the opinion on the 
Council's internal control environment. 

Page 38



 

Reviewed by Muir Laurie, Head of Internal Audit - 8
th

 March 2015,  Page 3 of 4  

Approved by Audit Committee - 17
th

 March 2015 

8. Professional Standards 

 

8.1. In undertaking its work, IA adopts the professional standards set out in the PSIAS. These have 
been set in collaboration with the UK Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors and the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy. 

 

9. The Internal Audit Plan 

 

9.1. The IA plan is a crucial component of the annual assurance statement provided by the HIA to 
those charged with governance. In order to deliver this assurance it is vital to have a 
comprehensive IA plan which gives sufficient risk-based coverage.The HlA will seek to co-
ordinate the IA plan using a risk based methodology, including input from senior management, 
the Audit Committee and other Members. The HIA seeks to ensure that the most effective IA 
coverage is achieved which focuses on the Council's key risks. Managers are required to 
ensure that key staff are available to IA during the agreed period of an IA review and for 
ensuring that information requested by IA is accurate, timely and reliable. 

 

9.2. The IA plan is presented to the Council's Corporate Management Team (CMT) and Audit 
Committee for approval. Any significant deviation from the approved IA plan will be 
communicated to senior management and the Audit Committee through periodic activity 
progress reports. 

 

10. Management of Internal Audit Engagements and Follow-up  

 

10.1. For each IA engagement, a detailed Terms of Reference (ToR) will be prepared and discussed 
with the relevant managers. The ToR will establish the engagement's key risks and scope for 
the review that is aligned to service objectives. Each engagement will be sponsored by a 
member of the CMT and engagements intended to provide an IA assurance opinion will be 
undertaken using a risk-based approach. IA will promptly communicate its findings and 
conclusions to management, proposing recommendations to address any weaknesses. The HlA 
will inform the Council (via the Audit Committee) of any remaining material weaknesses. 

 

10.2. A report is issued following the conclusion of each IA engagement and is distributed to the 
review sponsor and relevant key contact(s). The report includes an executive summary with a 
particular emphasis on risk management, internal control and governance strengths and 
weaknesses identified during the review. A management action plan is appended to reports 
(where applicable) which provides management with the opportunity to respond to the 
recommendation(s) raised and set out what action they propose to address the risk(s) identified. 

 

10.3. The HlA will have systems in place to ensure that internal auditors obtain and record sufficient 
evidence to support their conclusions and that they can demonstrate the adequacy of evidence 
obtained to support professional judgements. IA will follow-up all but 'low' risk-rated 
recommendations to establish if management has taken appropriate action to address any 
weaknesses identified. Escalation procedures are in place for any management responses that 
are judged to be inadequate in relation to the identified risk. These procedures will ensure that 
the risks of not taking action have been understood and accepted at a sufficiently senior 
management level. 

 

11. Staff Training and Development 

 

11.1. IA will be appropriately staffed in terms of numbers, professional qualifications and experience, 
having regard to the IA objectives and to the standards set out in the PSIAS. The staffing of IA 
will be kept under review by the HlA and the Audit Committee. 

Page 39



 

Reviewed by Muir Laurie, Head of Internal Audit - 8
th

 March 2015,  Page 4 of 4  

Approved by Audit Committee - 17
th

 March 2015 

11.2 All IA staff will be properly trained to fulfill their roles and responsibilities and they will each 
maintain their professional competence through an appropriate on-going professional 
development programme. When necessary, in-house IA resources will be supplemented by 
external resources. 

 

12. Proficiency and Due Professional Care 

 

12.1. IA will abide by the Code of Ethics set out in the PSIAS. IA staff are bound by the two essential 
components of the Code of Ethics: 1) Principle; and 2) Rules of Conduct, applicable to the four 
elements of a) Integrity; b) Objectivity; c) Confidentiality; and d) Competency. IA will apply the 
four Attribute Standards and the seven Performance Standards set out in the PSIAS. Any 
instances of non-conformance with the Code of Ethics or the PSIAS that impact the scope or 
operation of IA activity will be reported to CMT and the Audit Committee. Internal auditors will 
also abide by the Committee on Standards of Public Life's Seven Principles of Public Life. 

 

12.2. IA staff must apply the care and skill expected of a reasonably prudent and competent internal 
auditor. Due professional care does not imply infallibility. The HIA must hold a professional 
qualification (CMIIA, CCAB, or equivalent) and be suitably experienced. 

 

12.3 The HIA will maintain and regularly review a register of the internal auditors’ declarations of 
business and personal interests. If there are occasions where internal auditors undertake non-IA 
activities including the development, design or implementation of systems, then that individual 
will not subsequently perform an IA review of those systems.  

 

13. Reporting 

 

13.1. In agreement with those charged with governance (CMT and the Audit Committee), the HlA will 
determine the way in which findings will be reported. Standards will be set for reporting and will 
include arrangements for the review and approval of reports by the HIA before issue. Reports 
will be balanced, clear, concise and constructive and will be issued within laid-down timescales. 

 

13.2. The HlA will provide a written annual report to those charged with governance timed to support 
the Council's Annual Governance Statement. The annual report will provide the statutory 
opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's system of internal control, 
risk management framework and corporate governance arrangements. The report will also 
include a summary of the work that supports the opinion, a statement on conformance with the 
PSIAS and the results of the IA quality assurance process (as detailed in section 14 below). 

 

13.3 IA may carry out assurance work for third parties (i.e. organisations outside of the Council).  
Assurances provided to third parties are provided in line with the assurance provided to the 
Council, as described within this document.  

 

14. Quality Assurance 

 

14.1. The work of IA will be controlled at each level of operation to ensure that a continuously 
effective level of performance is being maintained. The HlA will develop a Quality Assurance 
and Improvement Programme (QAIP) designed to gain assurance that the work of IA is 
compliant with the PSIAS and achieves its objectives. The QAIP will cover all aspects of the IA 
activity, including but not limited to: 

· Client Feedback Questionnaires (CFQs) that are sent out at the completion of each audit; 

· A self-assessment of the IA service each year and its compliance with the PSIAS; and 

· On-going internal performance monitoring and reporting by the HIA, as well as an external 
assessment at least once every five years by a suitably qualified, independent assessor. 

Page 40



Internal Audit Charter - November 2016 Page 1 of 7 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

 
 
 

Internal Audit Charter 
 

1. Purpose 

 
1.1 In accordance with the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) International Professional Practices 

Framework (IPPF) the purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal audit activity must 
be formally defined in an Internal Audit (IA) Charter, consistent with the Definition of Internal 
Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Standards. 

 
1.2 The London Borough of Hillingdon IA Charter defines the purpose, authority and responsibility 

of the IA Service within the Council. The Charter establishes the Head of IA's (HIA's) position 
within the Council including the nature of the HIA's functional reporting relationships. The 
Charter authorises access to records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the 
performance of engagement and defines the scope of IA activities. 

 
1.3 The HIA is responsible for applying this IA Charter and ensuring it is maintained up to date 

and, in line with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAs), this IA Charter shall be 
reviewed periodically, presented to senior management (Corporate Management Team [CMT]) 
and the Board (which for the purpose of the PSIAs is the Audit Committee) for approval to 
ensure that it remains relevant to the needs of the Council. 

 

2. Statutory Requirement and Authority 

 
2.1 The Local Government Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require every local authority to 

undertake an effective IA to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and 
governance processes, taking into account the Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards 
(PSIAS) or guidance. 

 
2.2 The IA service is responsible for providing assurance to all of its key stakeholders including the 

Audit Committee, Senior Management and in particular the Chief Financial Officer to help them 
discharge their statutory responsibilities under Section 151 (S151) of the Local Government 
Act 1972. An effective IA service will be seen as a catalyst for improvement at the core of the 
Council and will become recognised across the Council as a value added, trusted advisor and 
business assurance provider. 

 
2.3 Deriving from those regulations, and those authorising this Charter, the IA service has free 

unrestricted access and ability to plan and undertake audit assignments necessary to fulfil its 
scope. To enable full discharge of its duties, the HIA and the IA service has authority to: 

• Have right of direct access to the Chair of the Audit Committee; 

• Have unrestricted access to all Council functions, records, property and personnel; and 

• Obtain assistance, where necessary, from Council officers and contractors involved in the 
subject of audit engagements. 

The HIA has overall accountability for ensuring the IA service safeguards information it has 
obtained and for maintaining confidentiality of information where applicable. 

Page 41



Internal Audit Charter - November 2016 Page 2 of 7 

3. Status of Internal Audit within the Council 

 
3.1 IA will be independent of all activities that it audits to enable internal auditors to perform their 

duties in a way that allows them to make professional and impartial judgements and 
recommendations. 

 
3.2 The IA activity will remain free from interference by any element in the Council, including 

matters of audit selection, scope, procedures, frequency, timing, or report content to permit 
maintenance of a necessary independent and objective mental attitude. Internal auditors will 
have no direct operational responsibility or authority over any of the activities they review. 
Accordingly, internal auditors will not engage in any activity that may impair their judgement or 
objectivity. 

 
3.3 IA will exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, evaluating, and 

communicating information about the activity or process being examined. Internal auditors 
must make a balanced assessment of all the relevant circumstances and not be unduly 
influenced by their own interests or by others in forming judgements. 

 
3.4 The Council's IA service is part of the Finance Group and is led by the Head of Business 

Assurance, as the Council's HIA, who reports directly to the Corporate Director for Finance (& 
S151 Officer). However, the HIA has unrestricted access to the independent Chair of the Audit 
Committee, the Chief Executive, External Audit (Ernst and Young), the Leader of the Council 
and all other Members and staff. 

 
3.5 The HIA will annually confirm to the Board (which for the purposes of the PSIAS is the Audit 

Committee), the organisational independence of the IA activity with any impairments disclosed 
to the appropriate parties. 

 

4. Objectives and Mission 

 
4.1 IA is defined in the PSIAS as “an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity 

designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation 
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and 
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes". 

 
4.2 The IA service acknowledges and aspires to achieving the mission of Internal Auditing as 

provided by the IIA: 

 "To enhance and protect organisational value by providing stakeholders with risk based and 
objective assurance, advice and insight." 

 
4.3 IA is not responsible for control systems and managing risks. Responsibility for effective 

internal control and management of risks rests with the management of the Council. 
 

5. Scope of Internal Audit 

 
5.1 The HIA will provide an annual HIA Opinion Statement to the Council, assisting the S151 

Officer, through the Board (Audit Committee) in completing the AGS, which forms part of the 
statutory Statement of Accounts. The AGS provides public assurances about the effectiveness 
of the Authority’s risk management framework, corporate governance arrangements and the 
system of internal control. The HIA opinion statement (see 3 core areas overleaf) meets the 
Authority's statutory requirement under Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit (Amendments) 
(England) Regulations 2015 and is in line with the UK PSIAS. 

 

Page 42



Internal Audit Charter - November 2016 Page 3 of 7 

(i) Risk Management - Risk Management is the process of identifying, quantifying and 
managing the risks that the Council faces in attempting to achieve its objectives. 

(ii) Corporate Governance - Corporate governance is the system of rules, practices and 
processes by which the Council is directed and controlled. 

(iii) System of Internal Controls - The system of internal control is a process for assuring 
achievement of the Council’s objectives in operational effectiveness and efficiency, reliable 
financial reporting and compliance with laws, regulations and policies. It incorporates both 
financial and nonfinancial systems. 

 
5.2 In addition to the above 3 core annual opinion areas, IA may, subject to specific 

arrangements, undertake engagements in the areas of anti- fraud and anti-corruption as 
detailed within this IA Charter. 

 
5.3 IA also has the responsibility to provide consulting and advisory services to management 

relating to risk management, control and governance as appropriate for the Council. The IA 
service may evaluate specific operations at the request of the Audit Committee or Senior 
Management, as appropriate. Before any consultancy work is agreed, the HIA will ensure that 
IA has the appropriate skills, resources and approval to undertake the review. The HlA will also 
ensure that appropriate safeguards are in place to preserve objectivity in areas subject to 
future IA activity. 

 

6. Responsibility 

 
Professional Standards 

6.1 The HIA and their team have responsibility to undertake their work at all times in accordance 
with the PSIAS (the ‘Standards’) and, the IIA’s Code of Ethics (the ‘Code’) and the broader 
International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) which applies across the global practice 
of IA. Those members of the IA team who have membership of professional bodies will comply 
with the relevant requirements of that organisation. 

 
6.2 Deriving from those regulations, and those authorising this Charter, the IA service has free 

unrestricted ability to plan and undertake IA assignments necessary to fulfil its scope. IA 
undertakes work in accordance with the Standards as set out below. 

 
Risk Based IA Strategy and IA Plan 

6.3 The IA plan is a crucial component of the annual IA opinion statement provided by the HIA to 
those charged with governance. In order to deliver this assurance it is vital to have a 
comprehensive risk-based IA plan to determine the priorities of the IA activity, consistent with 
the organisation's goals. The overarching IA plan is presented to the Council's Corporate 
Management Team (CMT) and Audit Committee for approval. This plan is supplemented by 
quarterly operational risk based IA plans for approval. Any significant deviation from the 
approved quarterly IA plans will be communicated to senior management and the Audit 
Committee through quarterly IA progress reports. 

 
6.4 The quarterly IA plan is undertaken based on a documented risk assessment, enabling the HIA 

to ensure that the most effective IA coverage is achieved, which focuses on the Council's key 
risks. Managers are required to ensure that key staff are available to IA during the agreed 
period of a review and for ensuring that information requested is accurate, timely and reliable. 

 
6.5 The quarterly IA plan, including resource requirements and limitations, is presented to CMT 

and Audit Committee for approval. Any significant deviation from the approved IA plan will be 
communicated to CMT and the Audit Committee through periodic activity progress reports. 

Page 43



Internal Audit Charter - November 2016 Page 4 of 7 

 
Management of Engagements 

6.6 For each IA engagement, a detailed Terms of Reference (ToR) will be prepared and discussed 
with the relevant managers. The ToR will establish the engagement's service objectives, key 
risks, scope, timing and resource allocations for the review. Each IA engagement will be 
sponsored by a member of CMT and engagements intended to provide an IA assurance 
opinion will be undertaken using a risk-based approach. IA will promptly communicate its 
findings and conclusions to management, proposing recommendations to address any 
identified weaknesses. The HlA will inform the Council (via the Audit Committee) of any 
remaining material weaknesses. 

 
6.7 The HlA will have systems in place to ensure that internal auditors obtain and record sufficient 

evidence to support their conclusions and engagement results to demonstrate the adequacy of 
evidence obtained to support professional judgements made. This includes management 
supervision to ensure objectives are achieved, quality assured and staff developed. 

 
6.8 A report is issued to appropriate parties following the conclusion of each IA engagement and is 

distributed to the review sponsor and relevant key contact(s). The report includes an executive 
summary with a particular emphasis on risk management, internal control and governance 
strengths and weaknesses identified during the review. A management action plan is 
appended to reports (where applicable) which provides management with the opportunity to 
respond to the recommendation(s) raised and set out what action (risk response) they propose 
to address the risk(s) identified. 

 
Follow-up 

6.9 IA follows-up all 'High' and 'Medium' risk-rated recommendations to establish if management 
has taken appropriate action to address any weaknesses identified. Escalation procedures are 
in place for any management responses that are judged to be inadequate in relation to the 
identified risk. These procedures will ensure that the impact of not taking action (Tolerating the 
risk) have been understood and accepted at a sufficiently senior management level. 

 
Management Responsibilities 

6.10 In order to be effective, the IA service requires full co-operation of senior management. IA 
is not responsible for control systems and managing risks. Responsibility for effective internal 
control and management of risks rests with the management of the Council. 

 
6.11 Senior management must also keep the IA service abreast of significant proposed changes in 

processes, systems, newly identified significant risks and all suspected or detected fraud or 
corruption. Senior management will also ensure that the IA service has access to sufficient 
resources in order to deliver the IA plan as directed by the Audit Committee. Responsibility for 
the deployment of resources in delivery of the IA plan rests with the HIA. 

 

7. Reporting Lines 

 
Reporting Lines 

7.1 The Head of Business Assurance, in his role as HIA, has overall responsibility for the day to 
day management of the IA service. The HIA reports administratively to the Corporate Director 
of Finance. 

 
7.2 Organisationally, the HIA reports to the Audit Committee. The HIA also has direct right of 

access to the Chief Executive, Chair of Audit Committee and Leader of the Council as and 
when required, as set out at para. 3.4. 

Page 44



Internal Audit Charter - November 2016 Page 5 of 7 

7.3 In agreement with those charged with governance, the HlA will determine the way in which 
findings will be reported. Standards will be set for reporting and will include arrangements for 
the review and approval of reports by the HIA before issue. Reports will be balanced, clear, 
concise and constructive and will be issued within laid-down timescales. 

 
7.4 The IA service will maintain effective relationships with management within the Council, 

including consultation in the IA planning process at quarterly planning level and with respect to 
individual reviews. The HIA will share information and coordinate activities with other internal 
and external providers of assurance and consulting services to ensure proper coverage and 
minimise duplication of efforts. 

 
Staff Training and Development 

7.5 IA will be appropriately staffed in terms of numbers, professional qualifications and experience, 
having regard to the IA objectives and to the standards set out in the PSIAS. The staffing of IA 
will be kept under review by the HlA and the Audit Committee. 

 
7.6 The HIA holds a professional qualification (CMIIA, CCAB, or equivalent) and be suitably 

experienced. All IA staff will be properly trained to fulfil their roles and responsibilities and they 
will each maintain their professional competence through an appropriate on-going professional 
development programme. When necessary, in-house IA resources will be supplemented by 
external resources. 

 

8. Other Internal Audit Work  

 
Wider Remit of Business Assurance 

8.1 The IA activity sits within the Council's Business Assurance service. The role of the Head of 
Business Assurance incorporates wider responsibilities of Information Governance (as the 
Council's Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO), Business Continuity, Risk Management, 
Insurance as well as Health & Safety. Whilst expanding the remit of Business Assurance we 
will continue to focus on delivering consistently high quality value added IA reviews to help 
services to succeed. This will be undertaken in such a way to maintain our independence and 
objectivity to ensure an unbiased assessment of the Council's control environment. 

 
Third Parties 

8.2 IA may carry out assurance work for third parties (i.e. organisations outside of the Council). 
Assurances provided to third parties are provided in line with the assurance provided to the 
Council, as described within this document. 

 
Consulting and Advisory Services 

8.3 IA may perform consulting and advisory services related to governance, risk management and 
controls as appropriate for the Council. IA may also evaluate specific operations at the request 
of the Audit Committee or CMT, as appropriate. Based on its activity, IA is responsible for 
reporting significant risk exposures and control issues identified to the Audit Committee/ CMT. 

 
Anti-Fraud & Anti-Corruption 

8.4 IA's role in any fraud or corruption related work will be in accordance with the Council’s Anti-
Fraud and Anti-Corruption Strategy and with resources approved by the Audit Committee in 
the Quarterly IA Plans. However, Internal Auditors will have sufficient knowledge to evaluate 
the risk of fraud and the manner in which it is managed by the organisation. In addition, IA may 
assist or lead, as needed, in the identification and investigation of suspected fraudulent 
activities within the Council and notify Management and the Audit Committee of the results. 

 

Page 45



Internal Audit Charter - November 2016 Page 6 of 7 

Major Projects 

8.5 The IA service will be informed of major projects and their progress through continued 
discussion with Management and attendance at project working groups, where invited to 
attend. Where a project team seeks advice or further support from the IA service, we will treat 
the request as one for consultancy support and make appropriate arrangements to ensure 
future objectivity is not impaired. 

 
Risk Management 

8.6 Business Assurance will be guided by the IIAs position paper on The Role of Internal Auditing 
in Enterprise-Wide Risk Management and therefore Business Assurance will not undertake 
any roles defined as inappropriate by that guidance. Inappropriate roles include setting the 
Council’s risk appetite, imposing a risk management process and taking on full accountability 
for risk management. The position paper lists the following as legitimate roles (with 
safeguards): 

• Co-ordination of risk management activities; 

• Consolidating risk reporting; 

• Developing a risk approach for approval and its subsequent maintenance; 

• Facilitating identification and evaluation of risks; and 

• Coaching management in responding to risks. 
 

8.7 The Council's Risk Management Policy and Guidance defines the role of Business Assurance 
in relation to risk management, including safeguards put in place, which include: 

• Internal separation of duties within the Business Assurance team, managed through the 
roles of Business Assurance Manager and the Senior Internal Audit Manager. Any Internal 
Audit review of risk management will be undertaken by an external provider to enhance 
independence and objectivity in this area.  

• The Cabinet holding responsibility for approving the Authority's risk management policy 
statement and strategy. 

• The Corporate Director of Finance, as Chief Finance Officer, being responsible for 
preparing the Authority's risk management policy statement and for promoting it throughout 
the authority; 

• The Audit Committee will monitor and review, but not direct, the authority’s risk 
management arrangements, including regularly reviewing the corporate risk register and 
seeking assurances that action is being taken on risk related issues. 

 

9. Ethics  

 
Code of Ethics 

9.1. IA will abide by the Code of Ethics set out in the PSIAS. IA staff are bound by the two essential 
components of the Code of Ethics: 1) Principle; and 2) Rules of Conduct, applicable to the four 
elements of a) Integrity; b) Objectivity; c) Confidentiality; and d) Competency. 

 
9.2 IA will apply the four Attribute Standards and the seven Performance Standards set out in the 

PSIAS. Any instances of non-conformance with the Code of Ethics or the PSIAS that impact 
the scope or operation of IA activity will be reported to CMT and the Audit Committee. Internal 
auditors will also abide by the Committee on Standards of Public Life's Seven Principles of 
Public Life. 

 

Page 46



Internal Audit Charter - November 2016 Page 7 of 7 

Due Professional Care and Competency 

9.3 IA staff will apply the care and skill expected of a reasonably prudent and competent internal 
auditor. Due professional care does not imply infallibility.  

 
Independence and Objectivity 

9.4 The HIA will maintain and regularly review a register of the internal auditors’ declarations of 
business and personal interests. If there are occasions where internal auditors undertake non-
IA activities including the development, design or implementation of systems, then that 
individual will not subsequently perform an IA review of those systems. 

 

10. Quality Assurance 

 
Professional Standards 

10.1. The IA activity will govern itself by adherence to The Institute of Internal Auditors' mandatory 
guidance including the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the International 
Professional Practices Framework (IPPF), incorporating the Mandatory Standards. 

 
10.2 This mandatory guidance constitutes principles of the fundamental requirements for the 

professional practice of internal auditing and for evaluating the effectiveness of the internal 
audit activities performance to ensure that engagements are performed with proficiency and 
due professional care. In addition, IA will adhere to the Council's relevant policies and 
procedures and the internal audit activity's standard operating procedures manual. 

 
Staff Training and Development 

10.3 All IA staff will be properly trained (ref para. 7.5) to fulfil their roles and responsibilities and they 
will each maintain their professional competence through an appropriate on-going professional 
development programme. When necessary, in-house IA resources will be supplemented by 
external resources. 

 
Quality Assurance Improvement Programme 

10.4 The work of IA will be controlled at each level of operation to ensure that a continuously 
effective level of performance is being maintained. The HlA maintains a Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme (QAIP) designed to gain assurance that the work of IA is compliant 
with the PSIAS and achieves its objectives. The QAIP will cover all aspects of the IA activity, 
including but not limited to: 

• Client Feedback Questionnaires (CFQs) that are sent out at the completion of each audit; 

• A self-assessment of the IA service each year and its compliance with the PSIAS; 

• On-going internal performance monitoring and reporting by the HIA, as well as an external 
assessment at least once every five years by a suitably qualified, independent assessor. 

 
10.5 The results of the QAIP and progress against any improvement plans will be reported to Senior 

Management and the Board through quarterly IA progress reports, as well as within the Annual 
IA Report.  

 
10.6 To demonstrate conformance with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and 

the Standards, the results of external and periodic internal assessments are communicated 
upon completion of such assessments and the results of ongoing monitoring are 
communicated at least annually. The results include the assessor’s or assessment team’s 
evaluation with respect to the degree of conformance. 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Committee  15 December 2016 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

Business Assurance - IA Progress Report for 2016/17 Quarter 3 
(including the Quarter 4 IA Plan) 

Contact Officer: Muir Laurie 
Telephone: 01895 556132 

 

REASON FOR ITEM 

The attached report presents the Audit Committee with summary information on all Internal 
Audit (IA) work covered in relation to 2016/17 Quarter 3 and assurance in this respect. It 
also provides an opportunity for the Head of Business Assurance to highlight to the Audit 
Committee any significant issues that have arisen which they need to be aware of. 
 
Further, the report enables the Audit Committee to hold the Head of Business Assurance 
to account on delivery of the Quarter 3 IA Plan and facilitates in holding management to 
account for managing risk/control weaknesses identified during the course of IA activity. 
 
The attached report also presents the Audit Committee with the Quarter 4 IA Plan which 
has been produced in consultation with senior managers. The Plan sets out the 
programme of IA coverage which is due to commence in the 1st January to 31st March 
2017 period. 
 

OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 

The Audit Committee is asked to note the IA Progress Report for 2016/17 Quarter 3 and 
consider the Quarter 4 IA Plan and subject to any further minor amendments, approve it. 
 
The Audit Committee should ensure that the coverage, performance and results of 
Business Assurance IA activity in this quarter are considered and any additional assurance 
requirements are communicated to the Head of Business Assurance. 
 

INFORMATION 

Business Assurance provides an independent appraisal and consultancy service that 
underpins good governance, which is essential in helping the Council achieve its strategic 
objectives and realise its vision for the borough of Hillingdon. It is also a requirement of the 
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 that the Council undertakes an adequate 
and effective IA of its accounting records and of its system of internal control in 
accordance with the proper practices. 
 
New IA standards came into force on 1st April 2013, revised in April 2016, which further 
promote improvement in the professionalism, quality, consistency and effectiveness of IA 
across the public sector. They stress the importance of robust, independent and objective 
IA arrangements to provide senior management with the key assurances they need to 
support them both in managing the organisation and in producing the Annual Governance 
Statement. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

The Business Assurance service holds various background research papers in relation to 
the IA Plan. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



BUSINESS ASSURANCE 

 

 

 

 

 Internal Audit Progress Report to 
Audit Committee: 2016/17 Quarter 3 
(including the Quarter 4 Internal Audit Plan) 

6th December 2016 

Page 51



London Borough of Hillingdon Business Assurance 

 
 

 

 

Contents 

The Internal Audit key contacts in 
connection with this report are: 
 
Muir Laurie 

Head of Business Assurance 

t: 01895 556132 

e: mlaurie@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 

Martyn White 

Senior Internal Audit Manager 

t: 01895 250354 

e: mwhite@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 

Elaine Polton 

Assistant Internal Audit Manager 

t: 01895 556128 

e: epolton@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 Page 

1. Introduction 3 

2. Executive Summary   3 

3. Analysis of IA Activity in Quarter 3 4 

4. Analysis of IA Performance in Quarter 3 7   

5. Forward Look 8 

Appendix A – Detailed IA Work Undertaken 9 

Appendix B – Revisions to 2016/17 

Quarter 3 IA Plan 13 

Appendix C – 2016/17 Quarter 4 IA Plan 16 

Appendix D – IA Assurance Level Definitions 

and IA Recommendation Risk Ratings 21 

 

 

Page 52



London Borough of Hillingdon Business Assurance 

IA Progress Report - 2016/17 Quarter 3 & 2016/17 Quarter 4 IA Plan  3. 

1. Introduction  

 
1.1 The Role of Internal Audit 
 
1.1.1 Internal Audit (IA) provides an independent assurance and consultancy service that 

underpins good governance, which is essential in helping the Council achieve its corporate 
objectives and realise its vision for the borough of Hillingdon. It is also a requirement of the 
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 that the Authority undertakes an effective 
IA to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, internal control and corporate 
governance processes, taking into account UK Public Sector IA Standards (PSIAS) or 
guidance. 

 
1.1.2 The PSIAS define the nature of IA and set out basic principles for carrying out IA within the 

public sector. The PSIAS helps the Council to establish a framework for providing IA 
services, which adds value to the organisation, leading to improved organisational 
processes and operations.  

 
1.2 The Purpose of the Internal Audit Progress Report to Audit Committee 
 
1.2.1 This progress report presents the Council’s Corporate Management Team (CMT) and Audit 

Committee with summary information on 2016/17 IA assurance, consultancy and grant 
claim verification work covered during the period 13th September to 6th December 2016. In 
addition, it provides an opportunity for the Head of Business Assurance, as the Council's 
Head of Internal Audit (HIA), to highlight significant issues arising from IA work in Quarter 3. 
It also highlights to CMT, the Audit Committee and other IA stakeholders the revisions to 
the Quarter 3 IA plan since its approval in September 2016 (refer to Appendix B). 

 
1.2.2 A key feature of the Quarter 3 IA progress report is the inclusion of the Quarter 4 IA plan 

(refer to Appendix C). This has been produced in consultation with senior managers over 
the last few weeks and sets out the planned programme of IA coverage due to commence 
in the 1st January to 31st March 2017 period. 

 

2. Executive Summary  

 
2.1 Since the last IA Progress Report to CMT and the Audit Committee in September 2016, 10 

assurance reviews have concluded (including 2 follow-ups), 1 consultancy review has 
been finalised and 1 grant claim has been certified. We are therefore nearing completion 
of the programme of IA work for Quarters 1 and 2, with significant progress made on 
Quarter 3. 

 
2.2 Our work on the 2016/17 Quarter 3 IA plan commenced on 1st October and work is now 

well underway on all Quarter 3 planned work (refer to Appendix A) with positive progress 
made. It should however be noted that whilst we have maintained capacity during the 
quarter, we have lost resource through an internal secondment to Business Improvement 
which, in addition to a changing skills mix within the team, has impacted delivery within the 
quarter. We are confident that the enhanced robustness of IA resource through recent 
recruitment exercises will enable delivery of the 2016/17 plan despite continuing requests 
for business assurance advice and expertise to undertake supplementary work. 

 
2.3 Key assurance reviews finalised this quarter have included Physical Access Controls 

(including Security Arrangements), Lease Agreements and Sheltered Housing. One 
assurance audit finalised in this quarter received a NNOO  assurance opinion with a further 
three reviews receiving a LLIIMMIITTEEDD assurance opinion over the management of the key 
risks. These results are in line with our expectations and the risk-based approach which we 
deploy. Specifically, IA resources have been targeted on the areas of the highest risk as 
part of a reduced IA assurance programme. Positive action has been proposed by 
management to address all of the HHIIGGHH and MMEEDDIIUUMM risk recommendations raised within 
each respective review and these will be followed-up by us in due course. 

Page 53



London Borough of Hillingdon Business Assurance 

IA Progress Report - 2016/17 Quarter 3 & 2016/17 Quarter 4 IA Plan  4. 

2.4 The consultancy work within Business Support / Technical Admin in relation to data 
protection was a significant piece of work for us this quarter. IA also continues to undertake 
a variety of valuable advisory work across the Council. Further details of all IA work carried 
out in this period are included section 3 of this report. 

 

3. Analysis of Internal Audit Activity in 2016/17 Quarter 3 

 
3.1 Assurance Work in Quarter 3 
 
3.1.1 All IA assurance reviews carried out in the financial year to date are individually listed at 

Appendix A. This list details the assurance levels achieved (in accordance with the 
assurance level definitions outlined at Appendix D) and provides an analysis of 
recommendations made (in accordance with the recommendation risk categories outlined 
at Appendix D). During this quarter 88 2016/17 IA assurance reviews have been completed 
to final report stage (excluding follow-ups), with 33 others progressed to draft report stage 
and 1122 reviews at the testing stage. In addition, 22 follow-ups reviews have been finalised 
this quarter (refer to Appendix A for details). 

 
3.1.2 Key assurance reviews finalised this quarter have included Physical Access Controls 

(including Security Arrangements), Lease Agreements, Sheltered Housing and the Anti 
Social Behaviour and Investigations Team (ASBIT). For Physical Access Controls 
including Security Arrangements we raised 3  HHIIGGHH  and  55  MMEEDDIIUUMM risk 
recommendation and gave an overall NNOO assurance opinion. We are aware that a number 
of the issues highlighted within our report are intrinsic to the Civic Centre and, due to the 
current austerity measures imposed, may be risk tolerated by management due to the cost 
benefit provided. However, we have identified numerous and significant gaps in relation to 
physical access controls and security arrangements at the Civic Centre.  

 
3.1.3 Specifically, our testing identified a combination of preventative and detective control gaps 

which consequently mean there are considerable opportunities for an unauthorised person 
to gain access to restricted staff areas. The high likelihood of physical access controls 
being breached substantially increases the opportunity for Council assets to be 
misappropriated and/or damaged; in addition to compromising the safe working 
environment for Council staff, Councillors and visitors. 

 
3.1.4 The IA review of Lease Agreements raised 1  HHIIGGHH  and  11  MMEEDDIIUUMM risk recommendation. 

Our testing highlighted that there is an absence of centrally held lease records. Whilst 
records were maintained by the various service areas across the Council, these were found 
to be inconsistent in terms of the accuracy and completeness of information.  In order to 
assess for value for money, we reviewed a sample of tenders with our testing finding that 
leases consistently continue to run after contract expiry and we were therefore unable to 
provide assurance that these historic lease arrangements continue to provide value for 
money to the Council, and therefore an overall LLIIMMIITTEEDD assurance opinion was provided. 

 
3.1.5 The IA review of Sheltered Housing raised 3  HHIIGGHH  and  66  MMEEDDIIUUMM risk recommendations, 

with a LLIIMMIITTEEDD assurance opinion provided. This review highlighted that there are many 
areas of the Sheltered Housing (SH) service which we consider to require management 
attention. However, at the time of review the service was under consultation which may 
have had an impact on the service and the control environment. We found that there were 
documented procedures and guidance manuals in critical need of review, with gaps 
identified in relation to mandatory training and health and safety compliance. 

 
3.1.6 During our review of the application and assessment process, we noted gaps in supporting 

documentation and it was apparent that several pieces of evidence to support the SH 
applications were not stored on the Civica document management system. In addition, we 
believe the SH assessment process itself requires review to ensure that complete, 
accurate, relevant and timely information is captured to ensure the appropriate approval 
and allocation of the service user. 

Page 54



London Borough of Hillingdon Business Assurance 

IA Progress Report - 2016/17 Quarter 3 & 2016/17 Quarter 4 IA Plan  5. 

3.1.7 The IA review of the ASBIT raised 1  HHIIGGHH  and  44  MMEEDDIIUUMM risk recommendations, with a 

LLIIMMIITTEEDD assurance opinion provided. This review highlighted a distinct lack of consistency 
in how onyx is operated throughout the team, significantly reducing the integrity and quality 
of data within the system. Management are aware of some of the historic issues highlighted 
below and have actively sought a new IT solution, CIVICA APP, which is at an advanced 
stage of implementation scheduled for December 2016. 

 
3.1.8 Due to reported onyx system functionality issues the service lacks a performance 

management culture with no robust or formal mechanisms in place to monitor and report 
performance information to key stakeholders. The absence of management information 
prevents ASBIT management from fully scrutinising the workload and performance of the 
Service. This coupled with the absence of regular training and execution of quality spot 
checks appears to be impacting the accuracy within the system, as well as the quality and 
quantity of management information.  

 
3.1.9 Other assurance reviews finalised this quarter included Fees and Charges, Corporate 

Debtors, Council Stores and the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee (which is being 
reported as a separate agenda item to the Audit Committee). Each of these three reviews 
provided a RREEAASSOONNAABBLLEE assurance opinion and together raised 20 MMEEDDIIUUMM, 12 LLOOWW 
risk recommendations. Positive management action has been proposed to address all 

HHIIGGHH  and  MMEEDDIIUUMM risk recommendations raised this quarter. 
 
3.1.10 Further, as at 6th December, 33 assurance reviews have been progressed to draft report 

stage, 1122 at the testing stage with 11  at planning stage. The summary results of these 1166 
assurance audits will be included in the Quarter 4 progress report due to be presented to 
Audit Committee on 16th March 2017. 

 
3.2 Consultancy Work in Quarter 3 
 
3.2.1 IA continues to undertake a variety of consultancy work across the Council. The 

consultancy coverage includes IA staff attending working and project groups, whilst 
ensuring they are clear about whether they are attending in an assurance or advisory 
capacity. This type of approach continues to help increase IA’s knowledge of corporate 
developments that feed into the risk based deployment of IA resource on assurance work. 
Also, participation in working and project groups as well as secondments within the Council 
continues to help individual IA staff develop, whilst at the same time increasing the value IA 
provides to the Council. 

 
3.2.2 Due to the nature of consultancy work, we do not provide an assurance opinion or formal 

recommendations for management action. However, as part of our advisory reports and 
memos we do provide specific observations and improvement suggestions for senior 
management to consider. Attached at Appendix A is a list of consultancy work carried out 
in Quarter 3 with 11  consultancy review completed within the period. A further 2 
consultancy reviews were added to the Quarter 3 IA plan as detailed at Appendix B. 

 
3.2.3 IA was requested to provide independent assurance that following two very similar Data 

Protection (DP) breaches within the remit of Business Support / Technical Admin in the 
space of a few months earlier this year. Overall, we concluded that since the occurrence of 
the first and second incidents, processes have been enhanced and along with the further 
planned improvements, the control framework has been sufficiently strengthened. These 
improvements will help prevent a reoccurrence of a similar incident in the future, providing 
the processes now in place continue to be adhered to.  

 
3.3 Grant Claim Verification Work in Quarter 3 
 
3.3.1 During this quarter IA has also assisted the Council in certifying three grant claims. As 

detailed at Appendix A, IA continues to carry out verification work on the Troubled 
Families Grant as well as undertaking verification work regarding the Disabled Facilities 
Grant (DFG), which equates to £1.76m within the quarter. 

Page 55



London Borough of Hillingdon Business Assurance 

IA Progress Report - 2016/17 Quarter 3 & 2016/17 Quarter 4 IA Plan  6. 

3.3.2 The DFG provides a framework for local authorities to provide mandatory grants for 
housing adaptations for disabled people to enable them to live independently in their own 
homes, whether they be privately owned, rented or social housing. Our DFG certification 
work confirmed compliance, in particular expenditure, against the set grant conditions. As a 
result of our testing, we are pleased to state that the grant claim to Department for 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) was signed off by the HIA and Chief 
Executive, prior to the 30th September 2016 deadline, with an unqualified opinion. 

 
3.3.3 There has been one other grant claim verification work undertaken within the quarter in 

relation to the Hillingdon Teaching Schools Alliance (HTSA). This work, currently at testing 
stage, was an addition to the Quarter 3 IA Plan detailed at Appendix B. 

 
3.4 Follow-up of Previous Internal Audit Recommendations in Quarter 3 
 
3.4.1 IA continues to monitor all HHIIGGHH and MMEEDDIIUUMM risk recommendations raised, through to the 

point where the recommendation has either been implemented, or a satisfactory alternative 
risk response has been proposed by management. In addition to this, we have taken a 
renewed approach to follow-up work within the year, actively following up on prior LLiimmiitteedd 
or NNoo assurance reports within 6 months to a year after their issue. This approach provides 
additional assurance to CMT and the Audit Committee over the implementation of IA 
recommendations and whether the control environment is now operating as intended. 

 
3.4.2 Attached at Appendix A is a list of follow-up work carried out in Quarter 3. This highlights 

that 22  ffoollllooww--uupp  reviews have been completed within the period, with one further review 
currently at an advanced stage. The two follow-up reviews completed this quarter were on 
the LLiimmiitteedd assurance 2015/16 review of Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards and 2015/16 
IA consultancy review of Library Imprest Accounts. 

 
3.4.3 Within the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards follow-up we are pleased to report that all 6 

recommendations raised were deemed IImmpplleemmeenntteedd  as at 13th October 2016. The IA 
follow up review of the Library Imprest Accounts concluded that only 1 out of 6 
improvement suggestions were deemed Implemented at the time of this review. Further 
action is required to ensure that the associated risks are being appropriately controlled in 
the remaining five suggested improvements raised.  

 
3.4.4 Due to the lack of action taken to address identified weaknesses, it has been agreed with 

management that the improvement suggestions deemed not implemented will be tracked 
on TeamCentral against the agreed implementation date. Thus, we will monitor the 
implementation against each of these five improvement suggestions through this dedicated 
resource to ensure a robust control environment is in place, providing assurance to CMT 
and the Audit Committee on the progress made. 

 
3.5 Other Internal Audit Work in Quarter 3 
 
3.5.1 We continue to undertake a quarterly approach to IA planning to ensure emerging risks and 

new areas of concern are captured, particularly within the fast changing environment the 
Council operates in. Over the last month we have undertaken our risk based planning 
meetings, alongside operational and corporate risk discussions due to the synergies 
between these two functions. Further to this, we have produced the detailed operational IA 
plan for Quarter 4 (refer to Appendix C) in consultation with management. 

 
3.5.2 This quarterly planning cycle helps ensure that IA resources are directed in a more flexible 

and targeted manner, maximising resources as well as benefiting our stakeholders. 
 
3.5.3 Within the quarter, and following the recent review of the effectiveness of IA, we have 

undertaken a review of audit evidence as part of our Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme (QAIP). The QAIP is designed to provide assurance that IA 
work continues to be fully compliant with the UK PSIAS and also helps enable the ongoing 
performance monitoring and improvement of IA activity.  

Page 56



London Borough of Hillingdon Business Assurance 

IA Progress Report - 2016/17 Quarter 3 & 2016/17 Quarter 4 IA Plan  7. 

3.5.4 This review identified a small number of instances where audit evidence, supporting the 
recommendations raised and/or assertions made, was saved on the shared drive rather 
than on the TeamMate file. This issue has been highlighted and communicated to the team 
with an evidence based training exercise provided at a recent Business Assurance team 
meeting. 

 

4. Analysis of Internal Audit Performance in 2016/17 Quarter 3 

 
4.1 The IA Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) measure the quality, efficiency and effectiveness 

of the IA service. They assist IA and the Council in helping measure how successful IA has 
been in achieving its strategic and operational objectives. We believe that these KPIs to be 
meaningful and provide sufficient challenge to the service. They measure the quality, 
efficiency and effectiveness of the IA service and thus assist us in providing an added value 
assurance and consulting service to our range of stakeholders. Cumulative performance 
against KPIs in the 1st April to 6th December 2016 period is highlighted in the table below: 

KPI 
Ref. 

Performance Measure 
Target 

Performance 
Actual 

Performance 
RAG 

Status 

KPI 1 

2016/17 HHIIGGHH risk IA 
recommendations where positive 
management action is proposed  

98% 100% GGRREEEENN 

KPI 2 

2016/17 MMEEDDIIUUMM risk IA 
recommendations where positive 
management action is proposed 

95% 100% GGRREEEENN 

KPI 3 

2016/17 HHIIGGHH risk IA 
recommendations where 
management action is taken 
within agreed timescale  

90% 100% GGRREEEENN 

KPI 4 

2016/17 MMEEDDIIUUMM risk IA 
recommendations where 
management action is taken 
within agreed timescale 

75% 91% GGRREEEENN 

KPI 5 
Percentage of annual (Q1 to Q4) 
IA Plan delivered to draft report 
stage by 31st March 

90% 90% GGRREEEENN 

KPI 6 
Percentage of annual (Q1 to Q4) 
IA Plan delivered to final report 
stage by 31st March 

80% 80% GGRREEEENN 

KPI 7 
Percentage of draft reports 
issued as a final report within 15 
working days 

75% 50% RED 

KPI 8 
Client Satisfaction Rating (from 
CFQs) 

85% 85% GGRREEEENN 

KPI 9 
IA work fully compliant with the 
UK PSIAS and IIA Code of 
Ethics 

100% 100% GGRREEEENN 

 
4.2 Performance against KPI 7 is currently being reported as RREEDD. This is primarily due to six 

instances where management responses to the draft reports have not been received within 
the set timescales. Whilst we facilitate this process, we are reliant on timely management 
responses to achieve this indicator. On 4 of the 12 assurance reviews finalised to date, we 
experienced significant delays receiving management responses.  

Page 57



London Borough of Hillingdon Business Assurance 

IA Progress Report - 2016/17 Quarter 3 & 2016/17 Quarter 4 IA Plan  8. 

4.3 The time taken to finalise final reports from draft stage is on average 20 working days, an 
increase of 9 days from the quarter 2 progress report. Due to historic non performance 
against KPI 7 we have commenced providing greater oversight of compliance against this 
KPI to Corporate Directors as part of a quarterly IA dashboard, reporting a snapshot of IA 
performance at a Group level. 

 
4.4 We are currently exceeding several of our KPI targets, including achieving the ambitious 

KPI 8, Client Satisfaction Rating which we are hopeful will continue throughout the 
remainder of the year as the volume of CFQ feedback increases. In addition, due to the 
increasing trend of consultancy reviews undertaken within the service, we have 
commenced sending formal CFQs for consultancy reviews within the quarter. This should 
therefore provide an accurate quantitative indicator as to the value and quality of the range 
of services provided by IA. 

 
4.5 KPI 9 refers to the IA process complying with the PSIAS and the IIA Code of Ethics. We 

have a duty to complete reviews within these guidelines, which is encompassed in our IA 
and management review processes. This is reported as 100% compliant following the 
annual Effectiveness of IA review. However, our External Quality Assessment (EQA), 
scheduled for January 2017, will provide an enhanced value against this KPI. 

 

5. Forward Look 

 
5.1 A key member of the IA team is due to leave the Council later this month, moving to an IT 

audit role within the banking industry. Given the recent recruitment exercise for a Trainee 
Internal Auditor, in line with the recently updated IA Strategy 2015-20, we are looking at a 
number of recruitment options to fill the resulting vacancy in the team providing other 
members of the IA team with an opportunity to take on more responsibility.  

 
5.2 IIA Standard 1312-1 states that an IA service must undergo an external quality assessment 

(EQA) at least once every five years by a qualified, independent assessor or assessment 
team from outside the organisation. In response to this requirement, most London 
authorities have signed up to a partnership arrangement whereby each HIA carries out an 
external review of another London authority. We are awaiting to confirm arrangements and 
timing with the HIA from the London Borough of Lambeth who will be carrying out the 
assessment of our IA service. The review is expected to take place over 5 days and will be 
conducted within existing IA resources. 

 
5.3 IA would like to take this opportunity to formally record its thanks for the co-operation and 

support it has received from the management and staff of the Council during Quarter 3. 
There are no other matters that the HIA needs to bring to the attention of CMT or the Audit 
Committee at this time. 

 
Muir Laurie FCCA, CMIIA  
Head of Business Assurance 

6th December 2016

Page 58



L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

H
il

li
n

g
d

o
n

 
B

u
s
in

e
s

s
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

IA
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 -
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 &

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 I
A

 P
la

n
 

9
. 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
 

D
E

T
A

IL
E

D
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 W

O
R

K
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 I

N
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
 

 

K
e

y
: 

IA
 =

 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

HH
 =

 H
ig

h
 R

is
k
 

MM
 =

 M
e
d
iu

m
 R

is
k
 

LL
 =

 L
o
w

 R
is

k
 

NN
PP

 =
 N

o
ta

b
le

 P
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

C
F

Q
 =

 C
lie

n
t 

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 Q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 

T
o

R
 =

 T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e

 

 
2
0
1
6
/1

7
 I

A
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
: 

IA
 R

e
f.

 
IA

 R
e

v
ie

w
 A

re
a

 
S

ta
tu

s
 a

s
 a

t 
6

th
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 

R
is

k
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
C

F
Q

 
R

e
c
e
iv

e
d

?
 

H
 

M
 

L
 

N
P

 

1
6
-A

4
 

P
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
A

c
c
e
s
s
 C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

S
e
c
u
ri
ty

 A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

) 
F

in
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 7

th
 N

o
v
 2

0
1
6

 
NN

oo
  

3
 

5
 

0
 

0
 

N
o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u
e
 

1
6
-A

9
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 V

is
it
in

g
 

F
in

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 2

0
th
 J

u
l 
2
0
1
6
 

LL
ii mm

ii tt
ee
dd

  
1
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

ü
 

1
6
-A

1
 

L
e
a
s
e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 
F

in
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 4

th
 N

o
v
 2

0
1
6
 

LL
ii mm

ii tt
ee
dd

  
1
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

ü
 

1
6
-A

1
6
 

S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

F
in

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 1

7
th
 N

o
v
 2

0
1
6

 
LL

ii mm
ii tt

ee
dd

  
3
 

6
 

1
 

0
 

N
o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u
e
 

1
6
-A

2
4
 

A
n
ti
 S

o
c
ia

l 
B

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
s
 

T
e
a
m

 (
A

S
B

IT
) 

F
in

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 1

s
t  D

e
c
 2

0
1
6
 

LL
ii mm

ii tt
ee
dd

  
1
 

4
 

4
 

0
 

N
o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u
e
 

1
6
-A

1
1
 

R
is

k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

F
in

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 7

th
 J

u
l 
2
0
1
6
 

RR
ee
aa
ss
oo

nn
aa
bb

ll ee
  

0
 

5
 

3
 

0
 

N
/A

 

1
6
-A

1
2
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
IA

 
F

in
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 7

th
 J

u
l 
2
0
1
6
 

RR
ee
aa
ss
oo

nn
aa
bb

ll ee
  

0
 

2
 

3
 

2
 

N
/A

 

1
6
-A

5
 

N
e
w

 Y
e
a
rs

 G
re

e
n
 L

a
n
e
 (

N
Y

G
L
) 

F
in

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 2

0
th
 J

u
l 
2
0
1
6
 

RR
ee
aa
ss
oo

nn
aa
bb

ll ee
  

0
 

6
 

2
 

0
 

ü
 

1
6
-A

3
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 
F

in
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 2

6
th
 J

u
l 
2
0
1
6
 

RR
ee
aa
ss
oo

nn
aa
bb

ll ee
  

0
 

3
 

5
 

1
 

ü
 

1
6
-A

1
0
 

F
e
e
s
 a

n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 

F
in

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 3

0
th
 S

e
p
 2

0
1
6
 

RR
ee
aa
ss
oo

nn
aa
bb

ll ee
  

0
 

4
 

1
 

0
 

ü
 

1
6
-A

7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

e
b
to

rs
 

F
in

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 4

th
 O

c
t 

2
0
1
6
 

RR
ee
aa
ss
oo

nn
aa
bb

ll ee
  

0
 

9
 

5
 

0
 

ü
 

1
6
-A

1
3
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

F
in

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 1

8
th
 N

o
v
 2

0
1
6

 
RR

ee
aa
ss
oo

nn
aa
bb

ll ee
  

0
 

4
 

3
 

0
 

N
o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u
e
 

1
6
-A

1
7
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

S
to

re
s
 

F
in

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 1

s
t  D

e
c
 2

0
1
6
 

RR
ee
aa
ss
oo

nn
aa
bb

ll ee
  

0
 

3
 

3
 

0
 

N
o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u
e
 

1
6
-A

2
8
 

In
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
D

ra
ft

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

1
6
-A

1
5
 

IC
S

 D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
- 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
D

ra
ft

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

1
6
-A

2
0
 

L
o
g

ic
a
l 
A

c
c
e
s
s
 C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
D

ra
ft

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

1
6
-A

6
a
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

- 
P

a
rk

in
g
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

T
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

Page 59



L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

H
il

li
n

g
d

o
n

 
B

u
s
in

e
s

s
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

IA
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 -
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 &

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 I
A

 P
la

n
 

1
0
. 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
 

D
E

T
A

IL
E

D
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 W

O
R

K
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 I

N
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
 

IA
 R

e
f.

 
IA

 R
e

v
ie

w
 A

re
a

 
S

ta
tu

s
 a

s
 a

t 
6

th
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 

R
is

k
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
C

F
Q

 
R

e
c
e
iv

e
d

?
 

H
 

M
 

L
 

N
P

 

1
6
-A

6
b
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
(S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

) 
T

e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

1
6
-A

2
5
 

B
e
tt

e
r 

C
a
re

 F
u
n
d
 

T
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

1
6
-A

2
7
 

S
e
m

i-
In

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

L
iv

in
g
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t)

 
T

e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

1
6
-A

3
0
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 

te
a
m

 -
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 

T
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

1
6
-A

3
1
 

L
o
c
a
l 
L
a
n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 

T
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

1
6
-A

3
2
 

B
u
ild

in
g

 C
o
n
tr

o
l 

T
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

1
6
-A

3
3
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

ra
u
d
 I

n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 

T
e
a
m

 
T

e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

1
6
-A

3
5
 

F
o
s
te

ri
n
g

 P
a
th

w
a
y
 

T
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

1
6
-A

3
7
  

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

T
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

1
6
-A

3
8
 

T
e
n
a
n
c
y
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

1
6
-A

4
0
 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
t 

T
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

1
6
-A

3
4
 

M
a

in
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 S

y
s
te

m
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

T
o

ta
l 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

IA
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 R

a
is

e
d

 i
n

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
  

99
  

55
33

  
33
00
  

33
  

 

T
o

ta
l 

%%
 o

f 
IA

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 R

a
is

e
d

 i
n

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
  

11
00
%%

  
55
88
%%

  
33
22
%%

  
--   

 

Page 60



L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

H
il

li
n

g
d

o
n

 
B

u
s
in

e
s

s
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

IA
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 -
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 &

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 I
A

 P
la

n
 

1
1
. 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 (
c

o
n

t'
d

) 
 

D
E

T
A

IL
E

D
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 W

O
R

K
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 I

N
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
 

 

2
0
1
6
/1

7
 I

A
 F

o
ll

o
w

-U
p

 R
e
v
ie

w
s
:  

IA
 R

e
f.

 
IA

 F
o

ll
o

w
-U

p
 R

e
v
ie

w
 A

re
a

 
S

ta
tu

s
 a

s
 a

t 
6

th
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
  

C
F

Q
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

?
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 
P

a
rt

ly
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 
N

o
t 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

1
6
-A

1
4
 

H
o
m

e
 t
o
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 -
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

  
F

in
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 6

th
 J

u
l 
2
0
1
6
 

3
 

6
 

- 
ü

 

1
6
-A

2
3
 

M
u
s
ic

 S
e
rv

ic
e

 
F

in
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 8

th
 A

u
g
 2

0
1
6
 

4
 

3
 

1
 

ü
 

1
6
-A

2
1
 

D
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
L
ib

e
rt

y
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

s
 

(D
o
L
S

) 
 

F
in

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 1

3
th
 O

c
t 

2
0
1
6
 

6
 

- 
- 

ü
 

1
6
-A

2
2
 

L
ib

ra
ry

 I
m

p
re

s
t 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

  
F

in
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 2

4
th
 O

c
t 

2
0
1
6
 

1
 

- 
5
 

ü
 

1
6
-A

4
0
 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
t 

T
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

 
 

 
 

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 I

A
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
n

c
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
s

:  

IA
 R

e
f.

 
IA

 R
e

v
ie

w
 A

re
a

 
S

ta
tu

s
 a

s
 a

t 
6

th
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

C
F

Q
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

?
 

1
6
-C

4
 

S
to

re
s
 -

 Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
 S

to
c
k
 T

a
k
e
 

M
e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 2

1
s
t  A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6

 
ü

 

1
6
-C

2
a
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p
le

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 (

C
Y

P
S

) 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 -
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e
s
 

M
e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 1

9
th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
6

 
ü

 

1
6
-C

2
b
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p
le

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 (

C
Y

P
S

) 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 -
 P

'C
a
rd

s
 &

 
Im

p
re

s
t 

M
e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 1

9
th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
6

 
ü

 

1
6
-C

8
 

S
to

re
s
 -

 S
to

c
k
 T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
M

e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 2

0
th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
6

 
ü

 

1
6
-C

6
 

P
ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
L
a
n
d
lo

rd
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 

M
e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 3

rd
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
6
 

N
o
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

 

1
6
-C

3
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 -
 B

A
C

s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 

M
e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 1

4
th
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
6
 

ü
 

1
6
-C

9
 

D
a
ta

 A
n
a
ly

ti
c
s
 (

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
v
e
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t)

 
M

e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 1

8
th
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
6
 

ü
 

1
6
-C

5
 

D
ig

it
a
l 
b
ro

a
d
c
a
s
ti
n
g

 o
f 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

M
e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 1

9
th
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
6
 

ü
 

1
6
-C

1
3
 

D
a
ta

 A
n
a
ly

ti
c
s
 (

c
o
n
s
e
n
t 
to

 d
ri
v
e
 v

s
. 

m
ile

a
g

e
 c

la
im

e
d

) 
M

e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 3

rd
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
6
 

ü
 

1
6
-C

7
 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 -

 P
ro

v
id

e
r 

P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 P
ro

c
e
s
s
 (

P
h
a
rm

a
c
y
) 

M
e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 1

1
th
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
1
6
 

ü
 

1
6
-C

1
2
 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 -

 P
ro

v
id

e
r 

P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 P
ro

c
e
s
s
 (

G
P

s
) 

- 
C

o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 1

6
-C

7
 

M
e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 1

1
th
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
1
6
 

Page 61



L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

H
il

li
n

g
d

o
n

 
B

u
s
in

e
s

s
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

IA
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 -
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 &

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 I
A

 P
la

n
 

1
2
. 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 (
c

o
n

t’
d

) 
 

D
E

T
A

IL
E

D
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 W

O
R

K
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 I

N
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
 

 
2
0
1
6
/1

7
 I

A
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
n

c
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
s

 (
c
o

n
t'

d
):

 

IA
 R

e
f.

 
IA

 R
e

v
ie

w
 A

re
a

 
S

ta
tu

s
 a

s
 a

t 
6

th
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

C
F

Q
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

?
 

1
6
-C

1
1
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 -

 D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
in

in
g

 
M

e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 5

th
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

ü
 

1
6
-A

2
6
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 /
 T

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
A

d
m

in
 -

 D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

  
M

e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 4

th
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

 

1
6
-C

1
4
 

S
E

N
D

 O
fs

te
d
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

 

1
6
-C

1
5
 

M
a

y
o
r'
s
 C

h
a
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 
T

e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

 

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 I

A
 G

ra
n

t 
C

la
im

 V
e
ri

fi
c
a
ti

o
n

 R
e
v
ie

w
s
:  

IA
 R

e
f.

 
IA

 R
e

v
ie

w
 A

re
a

 
S

ta
tu

s
 a

s
 a

t 
6

th
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

1
6
-G

C
1
 

T
ro

u
b
le

d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 G

ra
n
t 

- 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 

C
e
rt

if
ie

d
 a

n
d
 m

e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 3

rd
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
6

 

1
6
-G

C
2
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
G

ra
n
t 

C
e
rt

if
ie

d
 a

n
d
 m

e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 3

0
th
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
6
 

1
6
-G

C
5
 

T
ro

u
b
le

d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 G

ra
n
t 

- 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 

C
e
rt

if
ie

d
 a

n
d
 m

e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 3

0
th
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
6
 

1
6
-G

C
3
 

B
u
s
 S

u
b
s
id

y
 G

ra
n
t 

C
e
rt

if
ie

d
 a

n
d
 m

e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 1

s
t  S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6

 

1
6
-G

C
4
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

S
u
b
s
id

y
 G

ra
n
t 

IA
 t

e
s
ti
n
g

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 1

2
th
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

1
6
-G

C
6
 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
t 

C
e
rt

if
ie

d
 a

n
d
 m

e
m

o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 2

0
th
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

1
6
-G

C
7
 

T
ro

u
b
le

d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 G

ra
n
t 

- 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 

T
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

1
6
-G

C
8
 

H
ill

in
g

d
o
n
 T

e
a
c
h
in

g
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 A
lli

a
n
c
e
 (

H
T

S
A

) 
T

e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

Page 62



L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

H
il

li
n

g
d

o
n

 
B

u
s
in

e
s

s
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

IA
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 -
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 &

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 I
A

 P
la

n
 

1
3
. 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 

 

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 T

O
 T

H
E

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 ~
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 

 

IA
 w

o
rk

 D
E

F
E

R
R

E
D

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
IA

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
: 

IA
 R

e
f.

 
P

la
n

n
e
d

 I
A

 R
e
v
ie

w
 A

re
a

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 T

y
p

e
 

IA
 R

is
k
 

R
a
ti

n
g

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 S

p
o

n
s
o

r 
S

c
o

p
e
 /

 R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 

1
6
-A

3
6

 
O

fs
te

d
 R

e
a
d
in

e
s
s
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

T
o

n
y
 Z

a
m

a
n

, 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 
in

it
ia

l 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

to
 
th

is
 

a
u
d

it
 

w
e
 

w
e
re

 
a

d
v
is

e
d
 

th
a
t 

th
e
re

 
is

 
s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
o
n
g
o

in
g
 

w
o
rk

 
in

 
th

is
 

a
re

a
. 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

h
a
v
e

 
th

e
re

fo
re

 
re

q
u
e
s
te

d
 

th
is

 
re

v
ie

w
 

b
e
 

d
e
fe

rr
e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

g
re

a
te

r 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

ri
s
k
s
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
a
n
d

 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 m
o
v
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 

1
6
-A

2
9
 

L
ib

ra
ry

 B
o
o
k
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

J
e
a
n

 P
a
lm

e
r 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 

&
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
h
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 i

n
it
ia

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

D
e

liv
e
ry

 
(B

ID
) 

T
e
a
m

 
w

it
h
 

th
e

ir
 

w
o
rk

 
c
o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

n
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

H
e

a
d

 
o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
, 

d
e

p
e
n
d

in
g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 
m

o
d
e
l 

d
e
c
id

e
d
 u

p
o
n

, 
w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

  

1
6
-A

3
7
  

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 (

Y
O

S
) 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

T
o

n
y
 Z

a
m

a
n

, 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 i

n
it
ia

l 
re

q
u
e
s
t,

 d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

to
 
th

is
 
a

u
d

it
 
w

e
 
w

e
re

 
th

e
n
 
a
d

v
is

e
d
 
a
s
 
p
a
rt

 
o
f 

o
u
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 Y

O
S

 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
w

e
re

 
a
t 

a
 

v
e
ry

 
e

a
rl

y
 

s
ta

g
e
 

a
n
d

 
a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
v
a
lu

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
is

 a
u
d
it
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 o

b
ta

in
e
d
 i

n
 

s
ix

 m
o
n
th

s
 t

im
e
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 r
e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 t

h
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
 

b
e
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 o

f 
2
0
1
7
/1

8
. 

1
6
-C

1
0

 
D

o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 C
a
re

 P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

T
o

n
y
 Z

a
m

a
n

, 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

D
o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 c
a
re

 r
e
fe

rs
 t

o
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 
p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
c
a
re

 
d
e

liv
e
re

d
 
to

 
a
n

 
in

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
w

it
h

in
 

th
e
ir
 
h

o
m

e
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 
u
s
e
rs

 
w

ill
 
u
n

d
e
rg

o
 
a

 
v
a
ri

e
ty

 
o
f 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 
to

 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 
th

e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
rs

 
o
f 

c
a
re

 
th

e
y
 

re
q

u
ir
e
 

p
e
r 

w
e
e
k
; 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e

y
 a

re
 e

lig
ib

le
 t
o

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p

o
rt

.  

T
h
e
 

IA
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

re
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

D
e
b

to
rs

 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 

w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 

in
 

th
is

 
a
re

a
, 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
in

g
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
to

 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 

a
ro

u
n
d

 
c
lie

n
t 

b
ill

in
g
, 

re
lie

v
in

g
 

th
e
 

n
e
e
d

 
fo

r 
th

is
 

IA
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

n
c
y
 

re
v
ie

w
. 

Page 63



L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

H
il

li
n

g
d

o
n

 
B

u
s
in

e
s

s
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

IA
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 -
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 &

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 I
A

 P
la

n
 

1
4
. 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 (
c

o
n

t'
d

) 
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
S

 T
O

 T
H

E
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 ~
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 

 

IA
 w

o
rk

 D
E

F
E

R
R

E
D

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
IA

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
:  

IA
 R

e
f.

 
P

la
n

n
e
d

 I
A

 R
e
v
ie

w
 A

re
a

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 T

y
p

e
 

IA
 R

is
k
 

R
a
ti

n
g

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 S

p
o

n
s
o

r 
S

c
o

p
e
 /

 R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 

1
6
-A

3
9

 
C

h
a
n
g

e
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

J
e
a
n

 P
a
lm

e
r 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

&
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
e
d
u

lin
g
 t

h
e
 

w
o
rk

 w
it
h

in
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r ,

 w
e

 h
a

v
e
 s

in
c
e
 b

e
e

n
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 
th

a
t,

 
d
u
e

 
to

 
th

e
 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 
w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 
IT

 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 l

a
c
k
 o

f 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
, 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

h
a
v
e
 

re
q
u

e
s
te

d
 

to
 

d
e
fe

r 
th

is
 

IA
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

o
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
. 

 
IA

 w
o

rk
 A

D
D

E
D

 t
o

 t
h

e
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
IA

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
:  

IA
 R

e
f.

 
P

la
n

n
e
d

 I
A

 R
e
v
ie

w
 A

re
a

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 T

y
p

e
 

IA
 R

is
k
 

R
a
ti

n
g

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 S

p
o

n
s
o

r 
S

c
o

p
e
 /

 R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 

1
6
-A

4
0
 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
t 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

( F
o
llo

w
-u

p
) 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
 

J
e
a
n

 P
a
lm

e
r 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

&
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 
th

e
 
2
0
1

5
/1

6
 
IA

 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 
re

v
ie

w
 
in

 
th

is
 

a
re

a
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

 
LL

II MM
II TT

EE
DD

  a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

p
in

io
n

, 
th

is
 f

o
llo

w
-u

p
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 

w
it
h

 a
 r

e
fi
n
e

d
 s

c
o
p
e

, 
fo

c
u
s
e
s
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

8
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
 

ri
s
k
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 r

a
is

e
d
. 

1
6
-G

C
8
 

H
ill

in
g

d
o
n
 T

e
a
c
h
in

g
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 
A

lli
a
n
c
e
 (

H
T

S
A

) 
G

ra
n
t 

C
la

im
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

J
e
a
n

 P
a
lm

e
r 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

&
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
e
a
c
h
in

g
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

, 
a
p
p

o
in

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 N
a
ti
o

n
a
l 

C
o

lle
g
e

 
fo

r 
T

e
a
c
h
in

g
 a

n
d
 L

e
a

d
e
rs

h
ip

 (
N

C
T

L
),

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 h

ig
h
 

q
u
a

lit
y
 t

ra
in

in
g
, 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 n

e
w

 a
n

d
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e

n
c
e
d
 

s
c
h
o
o

l 
s
ta

ff
. 

T
h
e

y
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
 

a
n

n
u

a
l 

g
ra

n
t 

fr
o
m

 
N

C
T

L
 

to
 

h
e
lp

 
fu

n
d
 

th
e
 

c
o
s
t 

o
f 

th
is

 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 

 A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 g

ra
n
t 

c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 e

a
c
h
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
re

c
e
iv

in
g

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 i
s
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d
 

to
 

o
b

ta
in

 
in

d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

t 
e
x
te

rn
a

l 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

th
a

t 
th

is
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 

h
a
s
 

b
e

e
n
 

s
p
e

n
t 

in
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

im
s
 a

n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ra
n
t 

a
s
 
in

d
ic

a
te

d
 
in

 
th

e
 
G

ra
n
t 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

 
T

h
is

 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 g
ra

n
t 

is
 n

o
t 

p
a
rt

 
o
f 

c
o
re

 
s
c
h
o
o

l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 h

e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 c
o
s
t 

to
 b

e
 m

e
t 

b
y
 

th
e
 

s
c
h
o
o

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

g
ra

n
t 

c
la

im
 

a
u
d

it
. 

 

Page 64



L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

H
il

li
n

g
d

o
n

 
B

u
s
in

e
s

s
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

IA
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 -
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 &

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 I
A

 P
la

n
 

1
5
. 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 (
c

o
n

t'
d

) 
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
S

 T
O

 T
H

E
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 ~
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 

 

IA
 w

o
rk

 A
D

D
E

D
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
IA

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
:  

IA
 R

e
f.

 
P

la
n

n
e
d

 I
A

 R
e
v
ie

w
 A

re
a

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 T

y
p

e
 

IA
 R

is
k
 

R
a
ti

n
g

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 S

p
o

n
s
o

r 
S

c
o

p
e
 /

 R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 

1
6
-C

1
4
 

S
E

N
D

 O
fs

te
d
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

T
o

n
y
 Z

a
m

a
n

, 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

IA
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

0
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
to

 
C

h
ild

re
n
 

a
n

d
 

Y
o
u

n
g

 
P

e
o

p
le

's
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

(C
Y

P
S

) 
th

ro
u
g
h

o
u
t 

th
e
 

S
E

N
D

 
O

fs
te

d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
in

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

3
. 

1
6
-C

1
5
 

M
a

y
o
r'
s
 C

h
a
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 

LL
OO

WW
  

P
a
u

l 
W

h
a
y
m

a
n

d
, 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

T
h
e
 

M
a

y
o
r'
s
 

C
h

a
ri
ty

 
h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

re
g
is

te
re

d
 

a
s
 

a
 

c
h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 t
ru

s
t 

in
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1

5
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 a
re

 
re

q
u
ir
e

d
 

to
 

c
o
m

p
ly

 
a

n
d

 
o
p
e
ra

te
 

w
it
h

in
 

C
h
a
ri

ty
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
. 

 

T
h
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 
p

re
p
a
ri
n

g
 
th

e
 
a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

M
a

y
o
r'
s
 

C
h
a
ri
ty

 
a
n

d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d

it
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e

n
 

a
s
k
e
d
 

to
 

a
s
s
is

t 
a
s
 

p
a
rt

 
o
f 

th
is

 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 d
o
 n

o
t 

fo
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 f

in
a
n
c
e
s
 

s
o
 

th
e
re

 
w

o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

n
o
 

c
o

n
fl
ic

t 
in

 
u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 

th
is

 
re

v
ie

w
. 

 
 

 

Page 65



L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

H
il

li
n

g
d

o
n

 
B

u
s
in

e
s

s
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

IA
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 -
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 &

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 I
A

 P
la

n
 

1
6
. 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 
 

D
E

T
A

IL
E

D
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
 ~

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 4

 
 

IA
 w

o
rk

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 1

s
t  J

a
n

u
a
ry

 t
o

 3
1

s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
7
 p

e
ri

o
d

: 

IA
 R

e
f.

 
P

la
n

n
e
d

 A
u

d
it

 A
re

a
 

A
u

d
it

 T
y
p

e
 

IA
 R

is
k
 

A
s

s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 S

p
o

n
s
o

r 
R

a
ti

o
n

a
le

 

1
6
-A

4
1
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

HH
II GG

HH
  

J
e
a
n

 P
a
lm

e
r 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 &

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 

it
s
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u

o
u
s
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

  
It

 b
ri
n

g
s
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
a
n
d
 

ri
s
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 
a
n
d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
c
o
h
e
s
io

n
 

in
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

d
ir
e

c
ti
o
n

 
a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
d

e
c
is

io
n
 

m
a
k
in

g
 

th
u
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

th
e

 
lik

e
lih

o
o
d

 o
f 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 g

o
a

ls
. 

It
 a

llo
w

s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 d

e
fi
n
e
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
, 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

re
p

o
rt

 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
s
 

w
e

ll 
a
s
 

p
ri
o
ri

ti
s
in

g
 

w
h
a
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 
w

e
 
n

e
e
d

 
to

 
d
e

liv
e
r 

to
 
m

e
e
t 

th
e
 
n
e
e

d
s
 
o
f 

o
u
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

. 

1
6
-A

4
2
 

T
e
n
a
n
c
y
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

- 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R

is
k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

HH
II GG

HH
  

J
e
a
n

 P
a
lm

e
r 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 &

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 

re
n

t 
a
rr

e
a
rs

 
re

c
o
v
e
ry

 
is

 
d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

t 
o

n
 

ta
k
in

g
 

p
ro

m
p
t 

a
n
d
 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
a

c
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
is

 
a
c
ti
o

n
 
s
h

o
u
ld

 
h
a
v
e

 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 
s
e
v
e
ri
ty

 
w

h
e
re

 
th

e
 
le

v
e

l 
o
f 

re
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 
d
e
b
t 

d
o
e
s
 

n
o
t 

re
d
u
c
e
. 

A
t 

H
ill

in
g
d
o

n
, 

re
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 
h
a
v
e

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 i

n
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

y
e

a
rs

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e

fi
t 

p
a
id

 t
o
 t

e
n

a
n
ts

. 
 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
th

is
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

ill
 s

e
e
k
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

k
e

y
s
 

ri
s
k
s
 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

ri
s
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

. 
 

1
6
-A

4
3
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 N

e
e
d
s
 -

 A
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

(F
o
llo

w
-u

p
) 

HH
II GG

HH
 

J
e
a
n

 P
a
lm

e
r 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 &

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 
th

e
 
2

0
1
5
/1

6
 
IA

 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 
re

v
ie

w
 
in

 
th

is
 
a
re

a
 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
d
 a

 LL
II MM

II TT
EE

DD
  a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

p
in

io
n
 t

h
is

 f
o
llo

w
-

u
p
 

re
v
ie

w
, 

w
it
h
 

a
 

re
fi
n

e
d

 
s
c
o
p
e
, 

th
a

t 
fo

c
u
s
e
s
 

o
n
 

th
e

 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

3
 

HH
II GG

HH
 

a
n
d
 

7
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
 

ri
s
k
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
. 

T
h
is

 
fo

llo
w

-u
p

 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 
re

v
ie

w
 

w
ill

 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 
h
o

w
 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 

th
e

 
ri
s
k
 

o
f 

n
o
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 

n
e
e
d
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 c

a
u

s
e
d
 b

y
 i

n
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 
w

h
ic

h
 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 
th

e
 
s
u
p

p
ly

 
o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 
h
o
u
s
in

g
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
.  

Page 66



L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

H
il

li
n

g
d

o
n

 
B

u
s
in

e
s

s
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

IA
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 -
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 &

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 I
A

 P
la

n
 

1
7
. 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 (
c

o
n

t'
d

) 
 

D
E

T
A

IL
E

D
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
 ~

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 4

 
 

IA
 w

o
rk

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 1

s
t  O

c
to

b
e
r 

to
 3

1
s
t  D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 p

e
ri

o
d

: 

IA
 R

e
f.

 
P

la
n

n
e
d

 A
u

d
it

 A
re

a
 

A
u

d
it

 T
y
p

e
 

IA
 R

is
k
 

A
s

s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 S

p
o

n
s
o

r 
R

a
ti

o
n

a
le

 

1
6
-A

4
4
 

F
le

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

(F
o
llo

w
-u

p
) 

HH
II GG

HH
  

J
e
a
n

 P
a
lm

e
r 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 &

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
h
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
 w

ill
 s

e
e
k
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 F

le
e
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

(F
M

S
) 

w
h
ic

h
 

is
 

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
 

fo
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

 f
it
 f

o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
, 

s
a
fe

, 
re

lia
b

le
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 
v
e
h

ic
le

 
fl
e
e
t .

 
T

h
is

 
e

n
a
b

le
s
 
L
B

H
 
to

 
d

e
liv

e
r 

k
e

y
 
fr

o
n
t 

lin
e
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

to
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 

F
M

S
 

p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
w

a
s
te

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

a
n
d
 

p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 
th

e
 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
 
IA

 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 
re

v
ie

w
 
in

 
th

is
 
a
re

a
 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
d
 a

 LL
II MM

II TT
EE

DD
  a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

p
in

io
n
 t

h
is

 f
o
llo

w
-

u
p
 

re
v
ie

w
, 

w
it
h
 

a
 

re
fi
n

e
d

 
s
c
o
p
e
, 

th
a

t 
fo

c
u
s
e
s
 

o
n
 

th
e

 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

1
 

HH
II GG

HH
 

a
n
d
 

8
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
 

ri
s
k
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
. 

1
6
-A

4
5
 

N
e
w

 Y
e
a
rs

 G
re

e
n
 L

a
n
e
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

(F
o
llo

w
-u

p
) 

HH
II GG

HH
 

J
e
a
n

 P
a
lm

e
r 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 &

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 t

w
o
 l

o
c
a
l 

c
iv

ic
 a

m
e
n
it
y
 s

it
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

u
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

is
p
o
s
a
l 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o

ld
 r

u
b
b

is
h
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
. 

T
h
e
 

H
a
re

fi
e
ld

 
c
iv

ic
 

a
m

e
n

it
y
 

s
it
e
 a

t 
N

e
w

 
Y

e
a
rs

 
G

re
e
n
 

L
a
n
e

 a
c
c
e
p
ts

 v
a
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
rs

 a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 p

e
rm

it
s
 t

h
e
 d

is
p

o
s
a
l 

o
f 

tr
a
d
e
 w

a
s
te

 m
a
te

ri
a
ls

. 
 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 
th

e
 
2

0
1

6
/1

7
 
IA

 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 
re

v
ie

w
 
in

 
th

is
 
a
re

a
 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
d
 a

 LL
II MM

II TT
EE

DD
  a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

p
in

io
n
 t

h
is

 f
o
llo

w
-

u
p
 

re
v
ie

w
, 

w
it
h
 

a
 

re
fi
n

e
d

 
s
c
o
p
e
, 

th
a

t 
fo

c
u
s
e
s
 

o
n
 

th
e

 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 6

 MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
 r

is
k
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
. 

1
6
-A

3
6
 

O
fs

te
d
 R

e
a
d
in

e
s
s
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

T
o

n
y
 Z

a
m

a
n

, 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

T
h
e
 O

fs
te

d
 i

n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 l

o
o
k
 a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 n

e
e
d
 o

f 
h
e
lp

 a
n
d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
; 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o

k
e
d
 

a
ft

e
r 

a
n
d
 

c
a
re

 
le

a
v
e
rs

. 
D

e
fe

rr
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
, 

th
is

 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

ill
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
d

in
e
s
s
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n
 

a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n

g
 

P
e

o
p

le
's

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

fo
r 

a
n
 

O
fs

te
d
 

in
s
p
e

c
ti
o
n
 

s
e
e
k
in

g
 t

o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
e

 C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 h

ig
h

 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
, 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 l

e
a

d
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n

 t
h
e

 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
. 

 
 

Page 67



L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

H
il

li
n

g
d

o
n

 
B

u
s
in

e
s

s
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

IA
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 -
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 &

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 I
A

 P
la

n
 

1
8
. 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 (
c

o
n

t'
d

) 
 

D
E

T
A

IL
E

D
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
 ~

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 4

 
 

IA
 w

o
rk

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 1

s
t  J

a
n

u
a
ry

 t
o

 3
1

s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
7
 p

e
ri

o
d

: 

IA
 R

e
f.

 
P

la
n

n
e
d

 A
u

d
it

 A
re

a
 

A
u

d
it

 T
y
p

e
 

IA
 R

is
k
 

A
s

s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 S

p
o

n
s
o

r 
R

a
ti

o
n

a
le

 

1
6
-A

3
9
 

C
h
a
n
g

e
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

J
e
a
n

 P
a
lm

e
r 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 &

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
h
a
n

g
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

is
 

a
 

fo
rm

a
l 

s
e
t 

o
f 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 s

te
p
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 s
e
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 a

ll 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 

u
p

d
a
te

s
, 

o
r 

m
o
d
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

to
 

h
a
rd

w
a
re

 
a
n
d

 
s
o
ft

w
a
re

 
(s

y
s
te

m
s
) 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
.  

 
T

h
is

 
IT

 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 
re

v
ie

w
, 

d
e
fe

rr
e

d
 
fr

o
m

 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
, 

w
ill

 
a

im
 
to

 
a
s
s
e
s
s
 w

h
e

th
e
r 

c
h
a

n
g
e

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 i

n
 l

in
e
 

w
it
h
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
p
o

lic
y
. 

1
6
-A

4
6
 

P
a
y
ro

ll 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

F
ra

n
 B

e
a
s
le

y
, 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 &

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

ff
 

c
o
s
ts

 
fo

rm
 

a
 

m
a
jo

r 
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n

c
il'

s
 

e
x
p
e
n
d

it
u
re

. 
T

h
e
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 

c
o
s
ts

, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 

s
o
u
n
d

 
b
u
d
g

e
ti
n
g

 a
n

d
 h

u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 i

s
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 v
it
a
l 

to
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 H
a

v
in

g
 a

 r
o

b
u
s
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
lia

b
le

 p
a

y
ro

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
 m

a
k
e
 s

u
re

 
p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 a
re

 m
a
d
e
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

p
tl
y
. 

D
u
e
 t

o
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 t
h
is

 I
A

 a
s
s
u

ra
n
c
e
 

re
v
ie

w
 

w
ill

 
f o

c
u
s
 

s
o
le

ly
 

o
n
 

s
e
g
re

g
a

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

d
u

ti
e
s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o
u

t 
th

e
 f

u
n
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 

o
f 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u
t 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

1
6
-A

4
7
 

E
s
ta

te
s
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

- 
L
e
a
s
e
s
  

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

J
e
a
n

 P
a
lm

e
r 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 &

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 

th
e
 

2
0
1

6
/1

7
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

re
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

L
e

a
s
e
 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

, 
fo

c
u
s
in

g
 

o
n

 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il'

s
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 
to

 
o
b
ta

in
in

g
 l

e
a
s
e
s
, 

th
is

 a
s
s
u

ra
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

ill
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

le
a
s
e

 
o
f 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 

a
n
d

 
la

n
d

 
a
s
s
e
ts

 
w

it
h

in
 

th
e
 

E
s
ta

te
s
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 
a
re

 
b
e

in
g
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 m

a
x
im

is
e
d
. 

 

1
6
-A

4
8
 

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
in

 
G

re
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
, 
S

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

J
e
a
n

 P
a
lm

e
r 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 &

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

(F
M

) 
is

 
a
 
m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

d
is

c
ip

lin
e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 

w
it
h

in
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 
m

a
in

ta
in

 
a
n

d
 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
 
a

g
re

e
d

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 
w

h
ic

h
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
a
n
d

 
im

p
ro

v
e
 

th
e

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 

it
s
 

p
ri

m
a
ry

 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 i

s
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 a

n
 o

u
ts

o
u
rc

e
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
r,

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 r
e

v
ie

w
 w

ill
 

s
e
e
k
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 o
v
e
r 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

fo
c
u
s
 w

it
h
in

 G
re

e
n
 S

p
a

c
e

s
, 

S
p
o
rt

 a
n
d

 C
u

lt
u
re

. 

Page 68



L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

H
il

li
n

g
d

o
n

 
B

u
s
in

e
s

s
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

IA
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 -
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 &

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 I
A

 P
la

n
 

1
9
. 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 (
c

o
n

t'
d

) 
 

D
E

T
A

IL
E

D
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
 ~

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 4

 
 

IA
 w

o
rk

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 1

s
t  J

a
n

u
a
ry

 t
o

 3
1

s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
7
 p

e
ri

o
d

: 

IA
 R

e
f.

 
P

la
n

n
e
d

 A
u

d
it

 A
re

a
 

A
u

d
it

 T
y
p

e
 

IA
 R

is
k
 

A
s

s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 S

p
o

n
s
o

r 
R

a
ti

o
n

a
le

 

1
6
-A

4
9
 

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 w

it
h
in

 T
ra

d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 R

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

J
e
a
n

 P
a
lm

e
r 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 &

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 e

n
s
u
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 

o
b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
 
to

 
c
o
n
s
u
m

e
rs

 
a
n
d
 
d
o
 
n
o
t 

in
fr

in
g
e
 
c
o
n
s
u

m
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 

la
w

s
 

w
h

ils
t 

th
e

 
R

e
g
u

la
to

ry
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 
fo

r 
lic

e
n
c
e
s
, 

p
e
rm

it
s
 
a
n
d
 
n
o
ti
c
e
s
 
u
n

d
e
r 

th
e
 

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 A

c
t 

2
0
0
3
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 G
a
m

b
lin

g
 A

c
t 

2
0

0
5
. 

 

T
h
is

 
re

v
ie

w
 

w
ill

 
a
im

 
to

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

a
ro

u
n

d
 

th
e

 
q
u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 h
e
ld

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

w
it
h
 a

 
p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

fo
c
u
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 e

v
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 

D
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 

re
fe

rs
 

to
 

th
e
 

a
c
c
u
ra

c
y
, 

c
o
m

p
le

te
n
e
s
s
, 

v
a

lid
it
y
 

a
n
d

 
ti
m

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d

 a
id

 
in

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
. 

1
6
-A

5
0
  

/ 
 

1
6
-C

1
6
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 C
o
n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
y
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 /
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

T
o

n
y
 Z

a
m

a
n

, 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

W
e
 

h
a
v
e
 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 

c
o
n

ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

w
it
h

in
 

th
e
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 
p

la
n
 
to

 
e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

a
n

y
 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 
a
n

d
 
/ 

o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

n
c
y
 

a
d

v
ic

e
 
n
e

e
d
e

d
 
a
ri
s
in

g
 
fr

o
m

 
ri
s
k
s
 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 

th
e
 

O
fs

te
d
 

S
E

N
D

 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 

c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

b
e
in

g
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 

1
6
-G

C
9
 

T
ro

u
b
le

d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 G

ra
n
t 
- 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 

G
ra

n
t 

C
la

im
 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

T
o

n
y
 Z

a
m

a
n

, 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

T
h
e
 

T
ro

u
b
le

d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

is
 

a
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

(D
C

L
G

) 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

ta
te

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
h
e

lp
in

g
 

tr
o
u
b
le

d
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 

tu
rn

 
th

e
ir
 

liv
e
s
 

a
ro

u
n
d
. 

T
h
e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

re
c
e
iv

e
s
 a

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 g

ra
n
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 D

C
L

G
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 i

d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 '
tu

rn
e

d
 a

ro
u

n
d
' 
tr

o
u
b

le
d
 f

a
m

ily
. 

A
s
 p

e
r 

th
e

 
g
ra

n
t 

c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
, 

IA
 

w
ill

 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 

v
e
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
o
rk

 
to

 
c
o
n
fi
rm

 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

tr
o

u
b
le

d
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 

'tu
rn

e
d

 
a
ro

u
n

d
'.
 

Page 69



L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

H
il

li
n

g
d

o
n

 
B

u
s
in

e
s

s
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

IA
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 -
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 &

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 I
A

 P
la

n
 

2
0
. 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 (
c

o
n

t’
d

) 
 

D
E

T
A

IL
E

D
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
 ~

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 4

 (
c
o

n
t’

d
) 

 
IA

 w
o

rk
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 1

s
t  J

a
n

u
a
ry

 t
o

 3
1

s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
7
 p

e
ri

o
d

 –
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 b
y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r:
 

 

 
 

 

·
 

T
h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 D

e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r/
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 e

x
a
c
t 
ti
m

in
g
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
IA

 r
e
v
ie

w
; 

a
n
d

 

·
 

W
h
e
re

 a
n
 I
A

 r
e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d
 o

r 
c
a
n
c
e
lle

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r,

 t
h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 S

p
o
n
s
o
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

s
k
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 a

u
d
it
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 G

ro
u
p
.

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
  

8
%

 (
1
) F

in
a
n
c
e
  

0
%

 (
0
) 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

6
9
%

 (
9
) 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
2
3
%

 (
3
) 

Page 70



London Borough of Hillingdon Business Assurance 

IA Progress Report - 2016/17 Quarter 3 & 2016/17 Quarter 4 IA Plan 21. 

APPENDIX D 
 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT ASSURANCE LEVELS AND DEFINITIONS 
 

ASSURANCE LEVEL DEFINITION 

SSUUBBSSTTAANNTTIIAALL  

There is a good level of assurance over the management of the 
key risks to the Council objectives. The control environment is robust 
with no major weaknesses in design or operation. There is positive 
assurance that objectives will be achieved. 

RREEAASSOONNAABBLLEE  

There is a reasonable level of assurance over the management of 
the key risks to the Council objectives. The control environment is in 
need of some improvement in either design or operation. There is a 
misalignment of the level of residual risk to the objectives and the 
designated risk appetite. There remains some risk that objectives 
will not be achieved. 

LLIIMMIITTEEDD  

There is a limited level of assurance over the management of the 
key risks to the Council objectives. The control environment has 
significant weaknesses in either design and/or operation. The level 
of residual risk to the objectives is not aligned to the relevant risk 
appetite. There is a significant risk that objectives will not be 
achieved. 

NNOO  

There is no assurance to be derived from the management of key 
risks to the Council objectives. There is an absence of several key 
elements of the control environment in design and/or operation. 
There are extensive improvements to be made. There is a 
substantial variance between the risk appetite and the residual risk 
to objectives. There is a high risk that objectives will not be 
achieved. 

 

1. Control Environment: The control environment comprises the systems of governance, risk 
management and internal control. The key elements of the control environment include: 

· establishing and monitoring the achievement of the authority’s objectives; 

· the facilitation of policy and decision-making; 

· ensuring compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations – including 
how risk management is embedded in the activity of the authority, how leadership is given 
to the risk management process, and how staff are trained or equipped to manage risk in a 
way appropriate to their authority and duties; 

· ensuring the economical, effective and efficient use of resources, and for securing 
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness; 

· the financial management of the authority and the reporting of financial management; and  

· the performance management of the authority and the reporting of performance 
management. 

 
2. Risk Appetite: The amount of risk that the Council is prepared to accept, tolerate, or be 

exposed to at any point in time. 
 
3. Residual Risk: The risk remaining after management takes action to reduce the impact and 

likelihood of an adverse event, including control activities in responding to a risk.

Page 71



London Borough of Hillingdon Business Assurance 

IA Progress Report - 2016/17 Quarter 3 & 2016/17 Quarter 4 IA Plan 22. 

APPENDIX D (cont’d) 
 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATION RISK RATINGS AND DEFINITIONS 
 

RISK DEFINITION 

HHIIGGHH  

��  

The recommendation relates to a significant threat or opportunity that impacts 
the Council’s corporate objectives. The action required is to mitigate a substantial 
risk to the Council. In particular it has an impact on the Council’s reputation, 
statutory compliance, finances or key corporate objectives. The risk requires 
senior management attention. 

MMEEDDIIUUMM  

��  

The recommendation relates to a potentially significant threat or opportunity 
that impacts on either corporate or operational objectives. The action required is 
to mitigate a moderate level of risk to the Council. In particular an adverse impact 
on the Department’s reputation, adherence to Council policy, the departmental 
budget or service plan objectives. The risk requires management attention. 

LLOOWW  

��  

The recommendation relates to a minor threat or opportunity that impacts on 
operational objectives. The action required is to mitigate a minor risk to the 
Council as a whole. This may be compliance with best practice or minimal 
impacts on the Service's reputation, adherence to local procedures, local budget 
or Section objectives. The risk may be tolerable in the medium term. 

NNOOTTAABBLLEE  

PPRRAACCTTIICCEE  

��  

The activity reflects current best management practice or is an innovative 
response to the management of risk within the Council. The practice should be 
shared with others. 

 
 

Page 72



NATIONAL SCHEME FOR AUDITOR APPOINTMENTS 
 

Contact Officer: Nancy Leroux 
Telephone: 01895 205353 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
 
Under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 the Audit Commission was 
abolished and new arrangements established to audit local public bodies. The 
act sets out the new regime for local authority audits and reforms the way audit is 
procured by Councils.  An external auditor for the audit of the Council's accounts 
for 2018/19 must be appointed before the end of 2017.   
 
Council's may make the appointment themselves, or in conjunction with other 
bodies, or they can take advantage of a national collective scheme. The decision 
on the Council's approach is required to be taken by Full Council and to align 
with the timetable for decision making a report will need to go to the January 
meeting of Full Council. 
 
There are significant advantages to be gained from opting in to the national 
scheme and this report explains the role of Public Sector Audit Appointments 
Limited (PSAA), who has been given the role of appointing local auditors under 
the national scheme.  It also outlines a timetable for appointing auditors under 
the scheme. The Council has been formally invited to opt into these 
arrangements and should the Council decide to join, then a formal acceptance by 
Council is required by 9 March.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The committee is asked to note the contents of the report and the 
recommendation to Council to formally opt in to the national scheme for 
appointing local authority auditors. 
 
 
INFORMATION 
 
Information on the national scheme: Public Sector Audit Appointments 
Limited (PSAA)  
 
PSAA are a not-for-profit company established by the Local Government 
Association (LGA). They administer the current audit contracts, let by the Audit 
Commission before it closed.  
The PSAA have the support of the LGA, which has worked to secure the option 
for principal local government and police bodies to appoint auditors through a 
dedicated sector-led national procurement body. They have established an 

Agenda Item 9

Page 73



advisory panel, drawn from representative groups of local government and police 
bodies, to give access to your views on the design and operation of the scheme.  
 
PSAA have been specified by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government as the appointing person for principal local government bodies. This 
means that they will make auditor appointments to principal local government 
bodies that choose to opt into the national appointment arrangements they will 
operate for audits of the accounts from 2018/19.  
 
PSAA will appoint an auditor for all opted-in authorities for each of the five 
financial years beginning from 1 April 2018, unless the Secretary of State 
chooses to terminate their role as the appointing person beforehand. He or she 
may only do so after first consulting opted-in authorities and the LGA.  
 
What the appointing person scheme will offer  
 
PSAA are committed to making sure the national scheme will be an excellent 
option for auditor appointments.  They intend to run the scheme in a way that will 
save time and resources for local government bodies. A collective procurement, 
which they will carry out on behalf of all opted-in authorities, will enable PSAA to 
secure the best prices, keeping the cost of audit as low as possible for the bodies 
that choose to opt in, without compromising on audit quality.  Their current role 
means they have a unique experience and understanding of auditor procurement 
and the local public audit market.  
 
Using the scheme will avoid the need for Councils to: 
  

• establish an audit panel with independent members;  

• manage their own auditor procurement and cover its costs;  

• monitor the independence of their appointed auditor for the duration of the 
appointment;  

• deal with the replacement of any auditor if required; and  

• manage the contract with their auditor.  

 
The PSAA scheme will endeavour to appoint the same auditors to other opted-in 
bodies that are involved in formal collaboration or joint working initiatives.  They 
will also try to be flexible about changing an auditor during the five-year 
appointing period if there is good reason, for example where new joint working 
arrangements are put in place.  
 
Securing a high level of acceptances to the opt-in invitation will provide the best 
opportunity for PSAA to achieve the most competitive prices from audit firms. 
The LGA has previously sought expressions of interest in the appointing person 
arrangements, and received positive responses from over 270 relevant 
authorities. They ultimately hope to achieve participation from the vast majority of 
eligible authorities.  
 

Page 74



High quality audits  
 
The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 provides that firms must be 
registered as local public auditors with one of the chartered accountancy 
institutes acting in the capacity of a Recognised Supervisory Body (RSB). The 
quality of registered firms’ work will be subject to scrutiny by both the RSB and 
the Financial Reporting Council (FRC), under arrangements set out in the Act.  
 
PSAA will:  

• only contract with audit firms that have a proven track record in 
undertaking public audit work;  

• include obligations in relation to maintaining and continuously improving 
quality in their contract terms and in the quality criteria in their tender 
evaluation;  

• ensure that firms maintain the appropriate registration and will liaise 
closely with RSBs and the FRC to ensure that any quality concerns are 
detected at an early stage; and  

• take a close interest in your feedback and in the rigour and effectiveness 
of firms’ own quality assurance arrangements.  

 
They will also liaise with the National Audit Office to help ensure that guidance to 
auditors is updated as necessary.  
 
Procurement strategy  
 
In developing a procurement strategy for the contracts with audit firms, PSAA will 
have input from the advisory panel they have established. The panel will assist 
PSAA in developing arrangements for the national scheme; provide feedback on 
proposals as they develop, and helping maintain effective channels of 
communication. PSAA think it is particularly important to understand Council's 
preferences and priorities, to ensure they develop a strategy that reflects 
customer's needs within the constraints set out in legislation and in professional 
requirements. In order to secure the best prices they are minded to let audit 
contracts:  
 

• for 5 years;  

• in 2 large contract areas nationally, with 3 or 4 contract lots per area, 
depending on the number of bodies that opt in; and  

• to a number of firms in each contract area to help them manage 
independence issues.  

 
The value of each contract will depend on the prices bid, with the firms offering 
the best value being awarded larger amounts of work. By having contracts with a 
number of firms, they will be able to manage issues of independence and avoid 
dominance of the market by one or two firms. Limiting the national volume of 
work available to any one firm will encourage competition and ensure the plurality 
of provision.   

Page 75



 
Auditor appointments and independence  
 
Auditors must be independent of the bodies they audit, to enable them to carry 
out their work with objectivity and credibility, and in a way that commands public 
confidence.   PSAA plan to take great care to ensure that every auditor 
appointment passes this test. They will also monitor significant proposals for 
auditors to carry out consultancy or other non-audit work, to protect the 
independence of auditor appointments.  They will consult on the appointment of 
auditors, most likely from September 2017.  Auditor appointments for the audit of 
the accounts of the 2018/19 financial year must be made by 31 December 2017.  
 
Fee scales  
 
PSAA will ensure that fee levels are carefully managed by securing competitive 
prices from firms and by minimising their own costs. Any surplus funds will be 
returned to scheme members under our articles of association and their 
memorandum of understanding with the Department for Communities and Local 
Government and the LGA.  
 
Costs for setting up and managing the scheme will need to be covered by audit 
fees.  PSAA expect their annual operating costs will be lower than their current 
costs as they expect to employ a smaller team to manage the scheme. They are 
intending to fund an element of the costs of establishing the scheme, including 
the costs of procuring audit contracts, from local government’s share of their 
current deferred income. They think this is appropriate because the new scheme 
will be available to all relevant principal local government bodies.  
 
PSAA will pool scheme costs and charge fees to audited bodies in accordance 
with a fair scale of fees which have regard to size, complexity and audit risk, 
most likely as evidenced by audit fees for 2016/17. Pooling means that everyone 
in the scheme will benefit from the most competitive prices. Fees will reflect the 
number of scheme participants – the greater the level of participation, the better 
the value represented by the scale fees.  
 
Scale fees will be determined by the prices achieved in the auditor procurement 
that PSAA will need to undertake during the early part of 2017. Contracts are 
likely to be awarded at the end of June 2017, and at this point the overall cost 
and therefore the level of fees required will be clear. They expect to consult on 
the proposed scale of fees in autumn 2017 and to publish the fees applicable for 
2018/19 in March 2018.   
 
Opting in  
 
The closing date for opting in is 9 March 2017 and the formal approval process is 
a decision made by the members of an authority meeting as a whole.  
 
 

Page 76



Timetable  
 
The draft timeline for the new arrangements: 
 
Closing date for receipt of notices to opt in  9 March 2017 
Contract notice published     20 February 2017 
Award audit contracts     End of June 2017 
Consult on and make auditor appointments  End of December 2017 
Consult on and publish scale fees    End of March 2018 
 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no legal implications arising from this report.   
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Committee  15 December 2016 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 
 

Internal Audit - Effectiveness of the Audit Committee 2016/17 

Contact Officer: Muir Laurie 
Telephone: 01895 556132 

REASON FOR ITEM 
 
An effective and independent Audit Committee is a key element in the Council’s 
corporate governance and risk management framework. An effective Audit Committee 
leads to improved internal control, risk management and financial reporting.  

 
Best practice guidance states that in order for the Audit Committee to be fully effective 
and therefore able to provide meaningful advice and assurance to the Council, its 
Members need to be independent, diligent, knowledgeable, and receive relevant, timely 
and reliable information. The guidance also sets out that Audit Committee Members 
must be in a position to feel able to challenge Directors and the Cabinet, as well as draw 
attention to any significant governance weaknesses. 
 
In addition, the guidance states that the Audit Committee should have clear reporting 
lines and unrestricted rights of access to other Council committees and senior managers 
(as required/ appropriate). The Audit Committee should also have sufficient 
administrative support and access to all relevant and timely information. 
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 
The Audit Committee is asked to review and discuss the findings, conclusions and 
recommendations presented and the management action proposed in the final report. 
 
INFORMATION 
 
The report aims to provide independent, objective assurance to the Council over the 
Effectiveness of the Audit Committee. Specifically Internal Audit (IA) reviewed the 
following key areas: 

· Terms of Reference; 

· Independence & Membership; 

· Members Skills, Training & Development; 

· Audit Committee Meetings - Review of key documentation;  

· Audit Committee Benchmarking; and 

· Follow-up of recommendations arising from the 2014/15 IA Assurance Review. 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Final IA Assurance Report - Effectiveness of the Audit Committee, published on 24th 
June 2015. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



     

BUSINESS ASSURANCE 
Final Internal Audit Assurance Report 2016/17 

 
Effectiveness of Audit Committee 

 
18th November 2016 

 
 

Overall IA Assurance Opinion: 

RREEAASSOONNAABBLLEE  
 

 

Recommendation Overview: 

HHiigghh  RRiisskk  00  

MMeeddiiuumm  RRiisskk    44  

LLooww  RRiisskk    33  

NNoottaabbllee  PPrraaccttiiccee  00  

 

Review Sponsor: 

Fran Beasley  Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Administration  

Report Distribution: 

Audit Committee 
All Audit Committee Members (including the Independent Chairman 
and substitute Audit Committee Members) 

Lloyd White  Head of Democratic Services 

Khalid Ahmed  Democratic Services Manager  

Muir Laurie Head of Business Assurance  

 
 
Ownership of all final Internal Audit assurance reports rests with the relevant Audit Sponsor. 
However, we will disclose final Internal Audit assurance reports to the Audit Committee upon their 
specific request. 

Page 81



  

Effectiveness of the Audit Committee – Final IA Assurance Report 2016/17 Page 1   

1. Introduction  

 
1.1 This risk based Internal Audit (IA) assurance review forms part of the 2016/17 Quarter 2 IA 

Operational Plan, presented to Audit Committee on 12th July 2016. The purpose of this 
review is to provide assurance to the Corporate Management Team (CMT) and the 
Audit Committee over the key risks in relation to the Effectiveness of the Audit 
Committee, as follows: 

· The scope of work to be performed by the Audit Committee is not suitably defined in the 
Terms of Reference and therefore it may not encompass all the assurance needs of the 
Council and the Cabinet. As a result there is an increased risk that the Audit Committee 
is not performing its role and responsibilities in line with best practice guidelines; 

· The Audit Committee members are not suitably independent and objective, resulting in 
potential biased and ineffective decisions being made. Members may not have a good 
understanding of the Council's objectives, priorities, risks and strategies and therefore 
decision making by the Audit Committee may not be suitably aligned; 

· The Audit Committee does not contain or have at its disposal an appropriate mix of 
skills or its Members may not have been adequately trained. Consequently, there is a 
risk that Members may not be able to perform their duties effectively and fulfil the 
requirements of their role, which may result in reputational damage for the council; 

· The Audit Committee does not effectively support the Council by reviewing and 
scrutinising the completeness of key documentation to satisfy their needs, and by 
reviewing the reliability and integrity of documentation. As a result, the Council may be 
in breach of their statutory obligations which could cause reputational damage or 
financial loss for the Council; 

· The Audit Committee does not engage effectively with financial and performance 
reporting issues, and with the work of key stakeholders, primarily IA and External Audit; 
Furthermore, the Audit Committee may not communicate effectively with the Council’s 
CMT, Cabinet and other stakeholders. This may result in a loss of public money 
resulting in adverse public reaction and reputational loss; and  

· The Audit Committee's reputational image amongst other local authorities audit 
committee's is considered weak and ineffective in its role, scrutiny, decision making and 
therefore may result in further adverse reputational damage for the Council.  

 
1.2 This report is produced on an exception basis, highlighting the key aspects from the IA 

assurance review to management. Further detailed findings are available upon specific 
request. 

 

2. Background  

 
2.1 An effective and independent Audit Committee (AC) is a key component of the Council's 

corporate governance and risk management framework. The purpose of an AC is to 
provide those charged with governance independent assurance on the adequacy of the risk 
management framework, the internal control environment and the integrity of the financial 
reporting and annual governance processes. 

 
2.2 An effective AC leads to improved internal control, risk management and financial reporting. 

It provides a forum for discussing key issues raised by IA and External Audit, working 
independently to provide assurance to the Council. 

 
2.3 CIPFA best practice guidance states that in order for the AC to be fully effective and 

therefore able to provide meaningful advice to the Council, its Members need to be 
independent, diligent, knowledgeable, and receive relevant, timely and reliable information. 
This guidance also indicates that AC Members must be in a position to challenge Directors 
and the Cabinet and draw attention to any governance weaknesses. 

Page 82



  

Effectiveness of the Audit Committee – Final IA Assurance Report 2016/17 Page 2   

2.4 Best practice guidance also states the AC should have clear reporting lines and 
unrestricted rights of access to other Council committees and senior managers (as 
required). In addition, the AC will have sufficient administrative support and access to all 
relevant and timely information. 

 
2.5 The AC currently comprises of five members including an independent Chair. The 

remainder of the Committee, in accordance with best practice, is representative of the 
political make up of the Council which helps to ensure that no political agenda is given 
priority at meetings with decisions made by the Committee are free from political influence. 

 

3. Executive Summary  

 
3.1 Overall, the IA opinion is that we are able to give RREEAASSOONNAABBLLEE  assurance over the key 

risks to the achievement of objectives for Effectiveness of the AC. Definitions of the IA 
assurance levels and IA risk ratings are included at Appendix C. 

 
3.2 We were pleased to confirm that the AC's Terms of Reference (located within the Council's 

Constitution) is appropriately made available to its users in addition to being presented 
within each meeting agenda. It was however identified that the Terms of Reference has not 
been subject to review since May 2013. 

 
3.3 In addition, AC report packs are issued to members six working days in advance of a 

meeting, which is in line with best practice and provides sufficient time to allow AC 
members to review reports ahead of meetings. Furthermore, it was confirmed through our 
bench-marking exercise against nine other local authorities that relevant and appropriate 
documentation is provided to the AC for review. 

 
3.4 It was confirmed that the composition of the committee is in line with the Constitutional 

requirements, with four elected Councillors and an independent Chairman and the Vice-
Chair from the majority group. However, a bench-marking exercise, assessing LBH against 
nine other local authorities, identified that an average committee membership consisted of 
six Members. With quorate currently requiring four members, there is an increased 
likelihood of AC meetings being delayed or cancelled. Assessment of Member's attendance 
to the first AC meeting of 2016/17 (12th July 2016) was the lowest with only two Members 
present and therefore requiring two substitutes to meet quorum requirements.  

 
3.5 We undertook a review of the last six meetings of the AC and noted that, due to unforeseen 

circumstances, two Members, including the Independent Chairman, were unable to attend 
two of the last six AC meetings. We are aware that the Council's Constitution (Section 
2.05b) places responsibilities on Members and co-opted Members for meeting attendance. 
Further, upon discussion of this issue with Democratic Services, we were advised that no 
role description is in place for the Independent Chairman, outlining their role, 
responsibilities and the Council's expectations.  

 
3.6 Declarations of interests are initially completed by members following election via the 

"Register of Interest Form", which we were able to confirm evidence of for all four elected 
committee members. It was however noted that the Independent Chairman's latest 
declaration was completed in November 2014. In addition, any conflicts of interests arising 
through meeting agenda items are required to be declared at the commencement of the AC 
meeting and recorded within meeting minutes. Review of the last six committee minutes 
identified one instance where there was no record within the meeting minutes that the 
agenda item "Declaration of Interests" was discussed.  

 
3.7 During the assurance review, we concluded that, whilst AC Members inherently possess 

key attributes required of committee Members, there is still a requirement to understand 
relevant service areas across the Council where further specific AC related training is 
necessary. AC Members had previously been consulted on a Skills Matrix developed by the 
Head of Business Assurance (HBA).  

Page 83



  

Effectiveness of the Audit Committee – Final IA Assurance Report 2016/17 Page 3   

3.8 Whilst there was some appetite from Committee Members for this, we note this has not 
been progressed further by Democratic Services. The Skills Matrix would help in the 
identification of specific AC training requirements and help inform a tailored Training and 
Development Plan (T&DP) for AC Members. This gap, coupled with the limited induction 
process upon appointment, may impact the effectiveness of the Audit Committee. 

 
3.9 As recorded within the AC's ToR, an Annual Report is required to be submitted to Full 

Council on the activities of the AC. It was confirmed that this was last completed and 
submitted to AC in 2013/14, although was not subsequently presented to Full Council for 
consideration. In addition, no annual report has been produced by the AC and reported to 
Council for 2014/15 or 2015/16. 

 
3.10 It was also identified that a formal assurance mapping exercise to identify the sources of 

assurance from across the Council is currently not in place. This was also raised within the 
IA 15/16 Assurance Review of the Effectiveness of the AC and the recent IA 16/17 
Assurance Review of the Effectiveness of IA. As a result we will not be re-raising this 
recommendation within this assurance review. 

 
3.11 The detailed findings and conclusions of our testing which underpin the above IA opinion 

have been discussed at the exit meeting with the Head of Democratic Services and the 
Democratic Services Manager and are available to management upon specific request. The 
key findings and IA recommendations raised in respect of the risk and control issues 
identified are set out in the Management Action Plan included at Appendix A. Good 
practice suggestions and notable practices are set out in Appendix B of the report. 

 

4. Acknowledgement  

 
4.1 Business Assurance would like to formally thank all of the officers contacted during the 

course of this review for their co-operation and assistance. In particular the Democratic 
Services Manager, whose advice and help were gratefully appreciated. 

 

5. Business Assurance Contact Details  

 
This audit was led by:   Priyanka Mittal  

Senior Internal Auditor 

This audit was reviewed by:  Elaine Polton CPFA  
Assistant Internal Audit Manager 

Thank you, 

 
Martyn White, CIA 
Senior Internal Audit Manager

Page 84



 
 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 –

 F
in

a
l 
IA

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1

6
/1

7
 

P
a
g

e
 4

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 

M
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

 

N
o

. 
K

e
y
 F

in
d

in
g

 

1
 

It
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 m
in

u
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
's

 (
A

C
) 

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e

 (
T

o
R

) 
w

a
s
 l
a
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 o

n
 

th
e
 9

th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
3
. 

E
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

C
 T

o
R

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
ie

s
: 

·
 

It
e
m

 2
 o

f 
th

e
 T

o
R

 s
ta

te
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 A

C
 w

ill
 "

M
a
k
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 L

e
a
d
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

F
in

a
n
c
e
, 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 a

n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
 a

n
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
".

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 d
o
e
s
 

n
o
t 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

C
; 

·
 

It
e
m

 5
 o

f 
th

e
 T

o
R

 s
ta

te
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 A

C
 w

ill
 "

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
, 

a
n
d
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

F
in

a
n
c
e
, 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 a

n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

to
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 w

o
rk

 f
ro

m
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
".

 
O

n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

 t
h
is

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
re

fl
e
c
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

C
 i
n
 r

e
g

a
rd

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
; 

·
 

It
e
m

 1
6
 o

f 
th

e
 T

o
R

 s
ta

te
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 A

C
 w

ill
 "

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 o

n
 '
R

a
is

in
g
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

t 
W

o
rk

' a
n
d
 a

n
ti
-f

ra
u
d
 a

n
d
 a

n
ti
-

c
o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 

m
a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 L

e
a
d
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 D

e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
".

 W
e
 w

e
re

 u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 A

C
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 R

a
is

in
g
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

t 
W

o
rk

 p
o
lic

y
 o

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
3
 y

e
a
rs

; 
a
n
d

  

·
 

It
e
m

 1
7
 o

f 
th

e
 T

o
R

 s
ta

te
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 A

C
 i

s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 "

O
v
e
rs

e
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

In
te

rn
a
l 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 

a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
 i

ts
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
".

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 t
e
rm

in
o
lo

g
y
 i

s
 i

n
c
o
rr

e
c
t 

a
s
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

In
te

rn
a
l 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 

c
e
a
s
e
d
 t

o
 e

x
is

t 
in

 2
0
0
8
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 

s
u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t.

  
 In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
,  

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 A

C
 T

o
R

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 b
y
 C

IP
F

A
 (

P
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 
G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 &

 P
o
lic

e
, 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
) 

a
n
d
 

H
M

 
T

re
a
s
u
ry

 
(A

u
d
it
 

a
n
d
 

R
is

k
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

H
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
, 

M
a

rc
h
 

2
0
1
6
),

 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 

th
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

m
is

s
in

g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
: 

·
 

R
ig

h
ts

 o
f 

A
C

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

; 

·
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 r

ig
h
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 &

 E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 t

o
 t
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
; 

·
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
fr

e
q

u
e
n
c
y
 &

 q
u
o
ru

m
);

 a
n
d
 

·
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 R

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o
 A

C
 f

o
r 

re
v
ie

w
, 

e
.g

. 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

; 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

; 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 R

e
g

is
te

r;
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

; 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t;
 a

n
d
 R

is
k
 M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 

W
h
ils

t 
w

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

b
o
v
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 (

i.
e
. 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 &
 q

u
o
ru

m
) 

is
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
, 
th

is
 

is
 n

o
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 A

C
's

 T
o
R

. 
 

T
h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 w

a
s
 r

a
is

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 w

e
 n

o
te

 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

Page 85



 
 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 –

 F
in

a
l 
IA

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1

6
/1

7
 

P
a
g

e
 5

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 (
c

o
n

t'
d

) 

M
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

 

R
is

k
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
R

is
k
 O

w
n

e
r 

&
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
d

a
te

 

W
h
e
re

 
th

e
 

A
C

's
 

T
o
R

 
is

 
n
o
t 

s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 

a
n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 

re
v
ie

w
 
th

e
re

 
is

 a
n
 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 
ri
s
k
 
th

a
t 

th
e
 c

o
n
te

n
t 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
t 

th
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
. 

W
h
e
re

 
th

e
 
c
o
n
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 
T

o
R

 
e
x
c
lu

d
e
s
 
k
e
y
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 

th
e
re

 
is

 
a
 
ri
s
k
 

th
a
t 

it
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

it
s
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 

T
h
e
 
A

C
 T

o
R

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 
w

it
h
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 

g
iv

e
n

 
to

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
u
g
g

e
s
te

d
 
c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 
fr

o
m

 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

k
e
y
 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

, 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

a
n
d
 

A
C

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

. 

A
ll 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

th
e
 

re
v
ie

w
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

fo
rm

a
lly

 
a
p
p
ro

v
e
d

 
w

it
h
 

a
n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 

re
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

th
e
 

T
o
R

 
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 A

C
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 
P

la
n
. 

A
c
c
e
p
te

d
; 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 A

C
 T

o
R

 
is

 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 

O
n
c
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
, 
th

e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
it
h
 

a
 

v
ie

w
 

to
 

a
 

re
p
o
rt

 
o
n
 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 

to
 

th
e
 

T
o
R

 
b
e
in

g
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 o
f 

th
e
 A

C
. 

T
h
e
re

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 

b
e
 

a
n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 

it
e
m

 
o
n
 

th
e
 

A
C

 
F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
C

 T
o
R

. 

L
lo

y
d
 W

h
it
e
, 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 

3
1

s
t  D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

R
is

k
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
R

is
k
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
* 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

��
  

T
R

E
A

T
 

*P
le

a
s
e
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C
 f
o
r 

R
is

k
 R

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
s
. 

 
 

Page 86



 
 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 –

 F
in

a
l 
IA

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1

6
/1

7
 

P
a
g

e
 6

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 (
c

o
n

t'
d

) 

M
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

 

N
o

. 
K

e
y
 F

in
d

in
g

 

2
 

W
h
ils

t 
w

e
 w

e
re

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

n
e
w

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
 i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p

a
c
k
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

n
 e

le
c
ti
o
n

, 
it
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 f

o
rm

a
l 

in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

o
 n

e
w

 a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 A

C
. 

R
is

k
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
R

is
k
 O

w
n

e
r 

&
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
d

a
te

 

W
h
e
re

 n
e
w

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
p
p

o
in

te
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

C
 d

o
 

n
o
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
 

a
 

fo
rm

a
l 

in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

is
k
 t

h
a
t 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 m
a
y
 

n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
; 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 

ri
s
k
s
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 
k
e
y
 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
A

s
 
a
 
re

s
u
lt
, 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
m

a
y
 b

e
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 s
c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 a

n
d
 f
u
lf
il 

th
e
ir
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 a

s
 a

n
 A

C
. 
 

A
 
fo

rm
a
l 

in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 a

ll 
n
e

w
 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 (
in

c
l.
 

s
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
s
) 

to
 

th
e
 

A
C

. 
T

h
is

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
e
n
c
o
m

p
a
s
s
 

b
u
t 

n
o
t 

b
e
 

lim
it
e
d
 

to
 

th
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
: 

A
n
 

in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

p
a
c
k
 

c
a
p
tu

ri
n
g

 
th

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
:  

·
 

T
h
e
 A

C
 T

o
R

; 

·
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
&

 E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
s
; 

·
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 R

e
g

is
te

r;
 

·
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
; 

a
n
d
 

·
 

L
a
te

s
t 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

s
. 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 w

it
h
: 

·
 

A
C

 C
h
a
ir
 &

 A
C

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

; 

·
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
; 

·
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
; 

a
n
d
 

·
 

O
th

e
r 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

. 

A
g

re
e
d
; 

a
n
 i

n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

fo
r 

a
ll 

A
C

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
w

ill
 

b
e

 
in

tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 

b
y
 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 
in

c
lu

d
e
 

a
 

p
a
c
k
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 f

o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 

A
C

. 

L
lo

y
d
 W

h
it
e
, 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 

3
1

s
t  D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

R
is

k
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
R

is
k
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
* 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

��
  

T
R

E
A

T
 

*P
le

a
s
e
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C
 f
o
r 

R
is

k
 R

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
s
. 

 
 

Page 87



 
 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 –

 F
in

a
l 
IA

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1

6
/1

7
 

P
a
g

e
 7

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 (
c

o
n

t'
d

) 

M
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

 

N
o

. 
K

e
y
 F

in
d

in
g

 

3
 

A
C

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 h
a
d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 b
e
e
n

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o

n
 a

 '
S

k
ill

s
 M

a
tr

ix
' 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 (

H
B

A
) 

in
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
. 

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
re

 w
a
s
 s

o
m

e
 a

p
p
e
ti
te

 f
ro

m
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 f
o
r 

th
is

, 
w

e
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 
it
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

b
y
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 t
ra

in
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

C
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

w
e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 A

C
's

 F
o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
 a

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i

te
m

 i
s
 i

d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

ta
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

 t
o
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 F
o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
ll 

tr
a
in

in
g

 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 T

ra
in

in
g

 a
n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

R
is

k
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
R

is
k
 O

w
n

e
r 

&
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
d

a
te

 

W
h
e
re

 
a
 

s
k
ill

s
 

m
a
tr

ix
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

is
 

n
o
t 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 
th

e
re

 
is

 
a
 
ri
s
k
 
th

a
t 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

s
k
ill

 
g
a
p

s
 

a
re

 
n
o
t 

p
ro

m
p

tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

o
f 

A
C

 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 
tr

a
in

in
g
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
s
e
. 

W
h
e
re

 
a
 

fo
rm

a
l 

T
ra

in
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 i

s
 n

o
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

is
k
 

th
a
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 
m

a
y
 

n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

s
k
ill

s
 

a
n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
e
ir
 

ro
le

s
 

a
n
d
 

re
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

a
s
 

a
n
 

A
C

 
M

e
m

b
e
r.

 F
u
rt

h
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d

 t
h
a
t 

w
h
e
re

 
th

is
 o

c
c
u
rs

, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
y
 f

a
c
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
m

a
g
e
. 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

a
 

s
k
ill

s
 

m
a
tr

ix
 

fo
r 

A
C

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
 

A
C

 
M

e
m

b
e
r s

. 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

k
ill

s
 m

a
tr

ix
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
h
e
lp

 
in

fo
rm

/ 
d
e
te

rm
in

e
 

th
e
 

c
o
n
te

n
ts

 
o
f 

th
e
 

A
C

 
T

ra
in

in
g

 
a
n
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
. 

T
h
e
 

P
la

n
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

in
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
w

it
h
 
A

C
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 
o
n
 
a
n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 

b
a
s
is

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 s

k
ill

s
 m

a
tr

ix
 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
 
a
n
d
 
b
e
 
fo

rm
a
lly

 
a
p
p

ro
v
e
d

 
b

y
 

th
e
 A

C
.  

L
in

k
e
d
 

to
 

th
is

, 
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
in

g
 

fo
rm

a
l 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 

to
 

a
ll 

A
C

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

A
C

 
S

u
b
s
ti
tu

te
s
) 

o
n
 

a
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 
b
a
s
is

 
a
s
 
a
 
m

in
im

u
m

. 
W

h
e
re

 
fe

a
s
ib

le
, 

tr
a
in

in
g

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 

e
it
h
e
r 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 

A
C

 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 

fo
r 

a
 

m
in

im
u
m

 o
f 

3
0
 m

in
u
te

s
 o

r 
d
e
liv

e
re

d
 o

n
 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
 o

c
c
a
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 A

C
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
. 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

w
ill

 
re

v
ie

w
 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s

k
ill

s
 m

a
tr

ix
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

N
e
e
d
 

to
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 

if
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g

 
a
t 

A
C

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

is
 

th
e
 

m
o
s
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
 o

f 
ta

rg
e
ti
n
g
 a

ll 
th

e
 

A
C

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
s
. 

A
ls

o
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 c

la
ri
fy

 i
f 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 i
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 
ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

. 

O
n
c
e
 

k
e
y
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

fo
r 

a
ll 

A
C

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
, 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
id

e
r 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

a
s
 

a
n
d
 

w
h
e
n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
. 

L
lo

y
d
 W

h
it
e
, 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 

3
1

s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
7
 

R
is

k
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
R

is
k
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
* 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

��
  

T
R

E
A

T
 

*P
le

a
s
e
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C
 f
o
r 

R
is

k
 R

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
s
. 

Page 88



 
 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 –

 F
in

a
l 
IA

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1

6
/1

7
 

P
a
g

e
 8

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 (
c

o
n

t'
d

) 

M
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

 

N
o

. 
K

e
y
 F

in
d

in
g

 

4
 

A
s
 p

e
r 

th
e
 A

C
's

 T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
, 

th
e
 A

C
 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 F

u
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
n
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

 v
ia

 t
h
e
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

, 
o
u
tl
in

in
g

 t
h
e
ir
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 

w
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 l
a
s
t 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
, 

in
it
ia

lly
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 

A
C

 o
n
 3

0
th
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
4
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

n
o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 w
a
s
 s

u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 f

u
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il.

 F
u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
it
 w

a
s
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
a
t 

n
o
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
. 

R
is

k
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
R

is
k
 O

w
n

e
r 

&
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
d

a
te

 

W
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 n

o
t 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
n
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

, 
in

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 A

C
's

 T
o
R

 a
n
d
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
, 

th
e
re

 
is

 
a
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

ri
s
k
 

th
a
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 n

o
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
. 
W

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

A
C

 
a
re

 
n
o
t 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 

th
e
re

 
is

 
a
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 l

ik
e
lih

o
o
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
y
 f

a
c
e
 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
m

a
g
e
. 

T
h
e
 

A
C

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 

o
n
 

a
n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 

b
a
s
is

 
b
y
 

th
e
 

C
h
a
ir
m

a
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

A
C

, 
in

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 

A
C

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
&

 
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

T
h
is

 
re

p
o
rt

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e

 
p
ro

m
p
tl
y
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 f

u
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
n
 a

n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l.
  

A
c
c
e
p
te

d
; 

A
n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 

A
C

 
re

p
o
rt

 
w

ill
 

in
 

fu
tu

re
 

b
e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 

b
y
 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

in
 

lia
is

o
n

 
w

it
h
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

. 
T

h
is

 
w

ill
 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

C
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 
P

la
n
. 

L
lo

y
d
 W

h
it
e
, 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 

3
1

s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
7
 

R
is

k
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
R

is
k
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
* 

MM
EE

DD
II UU

MM
  

��
  

T
R

E
A

T
 

*P
le

a
s
e
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C
 f
o
r 

R
is

k
 R

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
s
. 

 
 

Page 89



 
 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 –

 F
in

a
l 
IA

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1

6
/1

7
 

P
a
g

e
 9

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 

G
o

o
d

 P
ra

c
ti

c
e

 S
u

g
g

e
s

ti
o

n
s
  

 

N
o

. 
K

e
y
 F

in
d

in
g

 
O

b
s
e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 /
 S

u
g

g
e
s
ti

o
n

  
R

is
k
 /
 R

a
ti

o
n

a
le

  
R

is
k
 

R
a
ti

n
g

 

5
 

It
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

is
 

in
 

lin
e
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
l 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 
o
f 

fo
u
r 

e
le

c
te

d
 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 
a
n
d

 
a
n
 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

C
h
a
ir
m

a
n
, 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

V
ic

e
-C

h
a
ir
 

c
o
m

in
g
 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 

m
a
jo

ri
ty

 
g

ro
u
p
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
a
 

b
e
n
c
h
-m

a
rk

in
g

 
e
x
e
rc

is
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

L
B

H
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

n
in

e
 

o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 i

d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
a

t 
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 

A
u
d
it
 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 
c
o
n
s
is

te
d
 

o
f 

s
ix

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

. 
F

u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

' 
a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

to
 

th
e
 

fi
rs

t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

o
f 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
6
/1

7
 

(1
2

th
 

J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
6
) 

h
a
d
 o

n
ly

 t
w

o
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 
re

q
u
ir

e
d
 

tw
o
 

s
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
s
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
is

 w
a
s
 q

u
o
ra

te
. 

C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

A
C

 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 
to

 
re

d
u
c
e
 
th

e
 
ri
s
k
 
o
f 

A
C

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

b
e
in

g
 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 

o
r 

c
a
n
c
e
lle

d
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

th
e
y
 

d
o
 

n
o
t 

m
e
e
t 

th
e
 

q
u
o
ru

m
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
fo

u
r 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

. 

If
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 o
n
ly

 f
iv

e
 A

C
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

re
g
u
la

r 
re

lia
n
c
e
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

s
u
b
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

is
k
 t

h
a
t 

A
C

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 
m

a
y
 
n
o
t 

b
e
 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 
o
r 

h
a
v
e
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 o

r 
c
a

n
c
e
lle

d
 a

s
 t

h
e
y
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

g
o
 a

h
e
a
d
 i
f 

th
e
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 

m
e
e
t 

th
e
 

q
u
o
ru

m
 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

fo
u
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

. 
A

n
y
 

A
C

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

c
a
n
c
e
lle

d
 

a
t 

s
h
o
rt

 
n
o
ti
c
e
 

w
o
u
ld

 
i n

c
re

a
s
e
 

th
e

 
C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 

c
o
s
ts

 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 

c
a
u
s
e
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

d
e
a
d
lin

e
s
 

n
o
t 

to
 

b
e
 

m
e
t/
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
re

p
u
ta

ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
m

a
g
e

. 

LL
OO

WW
  

��
 

 

    

 

 

Page 90



 
 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 –

 F
in

a
l 
IA

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1

6
/1

7
 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 (
c

o
n

t'
d

) 

G
o

o
d

 P
ra

c
ti

c
e

 S
u

g
g

e
s

ti
o

n
s
  

 

N
o

. 
K

e
y
 F

in
d

in
g

 
O

b
s
e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 /
 S

u
g

g
e
s
ti

o
n

  
R

is
k
 /
 R

a
ti

o
n

a
le

  
R

is
k
 

R
a
ti

n
g

 

6
 

O
n
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

A
C

 
M

e
e
ti
n
g

s
, 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 
a
re

 
g

iv
e
n
 

th
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 

to
 

d
e
c
la

re
 

a
n
y
 

c
o
n
fl
ic

ts
 

o
f 

in
te

re
s
ts

 
th

e
y
 

m
a
y
 

h
a
v
e
 

w
it
h
 

a
g

e
n
d
a
 

it
e
m

s
. 

T
h
is

 
is

 
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 
w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 
m

in
u
te

s
 
b
y
 

th
e
 

C
le

rk
 

to
 

th
e
 

A
C

. 
O

f 
th

e
 

la
s
t 

s
ix

 
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

w
e
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

a
 

d
e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
ts

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 

in
 o

n
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

: 

·
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

 2
n
d
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
5
: 

N
o
 r

e
c
o
rd

 
w

it
h
in

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

 
m

in
u
te

s
 

th
a
t 

A
g

e
n
d
a
 

It
e
m

 
2
 

"D
e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

In
te

re
s
t"

 
w

a
s
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 

th
e
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

. 

W
h
e
n
 p

re
p
a
ri
n
g

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

 m
in

u
te

s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

A
C

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
; 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 

th
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

a
g

e
n
d
a
 i
te

m
s
. 
W

h
e
re

 n
o
 

d
e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
s
 
o
f 

in
te

re
s
ts

 
a
re

 
d
e
c
la

re
d
, 

th
is

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
a
ls

o
 
b
e
 
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 
w

it
h
in

 
m

in
u
te

s
 
to

 
e
n
s
u
re

 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

o
f 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 

it
e
m

s
 

b
e

in
g
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
. 

W
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
a
n
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 i

te
m

 
(d

e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
ts

) 
is

 n
o
t 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 m

in
u
te

s
, 

th
e
re

 
is

 
a
 

ri
s
k
 t

h
a
t 

it
s
 u

s
e
rs

 a
re

 u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
s
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

ly
 

d
e
c
la

re
d
. 

W
h
e
re

 t
h
is

 o
c
c
u
rs

, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 
ri
s
k
 
th

e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
y
 
fa

c
e
 
re

p
u
ta

ti
o
n
a
l 

d
a
m

a
g
e
.  

LL
OO

WW
  

��
 

Page 91



 
 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 –

 F
in

a
l 
IA

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1

6
/1

7
 

P
a
g

e
 1

1
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 (
c

o
n

t'
d

) 

G
o

o
d

 P
ra

c
ti

c
e

 S
u

g
g

e
s

ti
o

n
s
  

 

N
o

. 
K

e
y
 F

in
d

in
g

 
O

b
s
e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 /
 S

u
g

g
e
s
ti

o
n

  
R

is
k
 /
 R

a
ti

o
n

a
le

  
R

is
k
 

R
a
ti

n
g

 

7
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 

2
.0

5
b
 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 s

ta
te

s
 "

If
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
o
-o

p
te

d
 

m
e
m

b
e
r)

 
fa

il 
to

 
a
tt

e
n
d
 

a
n
y
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

o
r 

a
d
v
is

o
ry

 
g
ro

u
p

 
to

 
w

h
ic

h
 

th
e
y
 

a
re

 
a
p
p

o
in

te
d
/c

o
-

o
p
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

a
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

o
f 

s
ix

 
c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 m

o
n
th

s
, 

th
e
y
 w

ill
 c

e
a
s
e
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
a
t 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

o
r 

g
ro

u
p
 

u
n
le

s
s
 t

h
e
ir
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 i

s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 r
e
a
s
o
n
 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 a
p
p

ro
v
e
d
".

 

A
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

la
s
t 

1
8
 m

o
n
th

s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t:
 

·
 

T
h
e
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

C
h
a
ir
m

a
n

 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 2

 o
f 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

6
 

A
C

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

(M
a
rc

h
 

&
 

J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
6
);

 a
n
d
 

·
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

O
'B

ri
e
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 t

o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 2

 o
f 

th
e
 

la
s
t 

6
 

A
C

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

(J
u
ly

 
a
n
d

 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
).

 

F
u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
it
 

w
a
s
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

H
e
a
d
 

o
f 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

C
h
a
ir
m

a
n
 

to
 

th
e
 

A
C

 
d
o
e
s
 

n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 

a
 

fo
rm

a
l 

J
o
b
 D

e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 i

n
 p

la
c
e
 o

u
tl
in

in
g
 

h
is

 r
o
le

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
. 

A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 
to

 
a
ll 

A
C

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

m
a
d
e
 

in
 

lin
e
 

w
it
h
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
l 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g

 a
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 r

o
le

 d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 A

C
 c

h
a
ir
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

in
im

u
m

 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

W
h
e
re

 
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
f 

th
e
 

A
C

 
is

 
n
o
t 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 

th
e
re

 
is

 
a
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

is
k
 t

h
a
t 

a
n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

le
v
e
l 

o
f 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 

m
a
y
 

n
o
t 

b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 

th
e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

W
h
e
re

 t
h
is

 o
c
c
u
rs

, 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

to
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 c

o
u
ld

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
m

a
g
e
. 

LL
OO

WW
  

��
  

 
 

Page 92



  

Effectiveness of the Audit Committee – Final IA Assurance Report 2016/17 Page 12 

APPENDIX C 
 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT ASSURANCE LEVELS AND DEFINITIONS 
 

ASSURANCE LEVEL DEFINITION 

SSUUBBSSTTAANNTTIIAALL 

There is a good level of assurance over the management of the key 
risks to the Council objectives. The control environment is robust with 
no major weaknesses in design or operation. There is positive 
assurance that objectives will be achieved. 

RREEAASSOONNAABBLLEE 

There is a reasonable level of assurance over the management of the 
key risks to the Council objectives. The control environment is in need 
of some improvement in either design or operation. There is a 
misalignment of the level of residual risk to the objectives and the 
designated risk appetite. There remains some risk that objectives will 
not be achieved. 

LLIIMMIITTEEDD 

There is a limited level of assurance over the management of the key 
risks to the Council objectives. The control environment has significant 
weaknesses in either design and/or operation. The level of residual risk 
to the objectives is not aligned to the relevant risk appetite. There is a 
significant risk that objectives will not be achieved. 

NNOO 

There is no assurance to be derived from the management of key risks 
to the Council objectives. There is an absence of several key elements 
of the control environment in design and/or operation. There are 
extensive improvements to be made. There is a substantial variance 
between the risk appetite and the residual risk to objectives. There is a 
high risk that objectives will not be achieved. 

 
1. Control Environment: The control environment comprises the systems of governance, risk 

management and internal control. The key elements of the control environment include: 

· establishing and monitoring the achievement of the authority’s objectives; 

· the facilitation of policy and decision-making; 

· ensuring compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations – including 
how risk management is embedded in the activity of the authority, how leadership is given 
to the risk management process, and how staff are trained or equipped to manage risk in a 
way appropriate to their authority and duties; 

· ensuring the economical, effective and efficient use of resources, and for securing 
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness; 

· the financial management of the authority and the reporting of financial management; and  

· the performance management of the authority and the reporting of performance 
management. 

 
2. Risk Appetite: The amount of risk that the Council is prepared to accept, tolerate, or be 

exposed to at any point in time. 
 
3. Residual Risk: The risk remaining after management takes action to reduce the impact and 

likelihood of an adverse event, including control activities in responding to a risk. 

Page 93



  

Effectiveness of the Audit Committee – Final IA Assurance Report 2016/17 Page 13 

APPENDIX C (cont’d) 
 
 

RISK RESPONSE DEFINITIONS 
 

RISK RESPONSE DEFINITION 

TREAT 
The probability and / or impact of the risk are reduced to an acceptable 
level through the proposal of positive management action. 

TOLERATE The risk is accepted by management and no further action is proposed. 

TRANSFER 
Moving the impact and responsibility (but not the accountability) of the risk 
to a third party. 

TERMINATE 
The activity / project from which the risk originates from are no longer 
undertaken. 

 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATION RISK RATINGS AND DEFINITIONS 
 

RISK DEFINITION 

HHIIGGHH  

�� 

The recommendation relates to a significant threat or opportunity that 
impacts the Council’s corporate objectives. The action required is to 
mitigate a substantial risk to the Council. In particular it has an impact on 
the Council’s reputation, statutory compliance, finances or key corporate 
objectives. The risk requires senior management attention. 

MMEEDDIIUUMM  

�� 

The recommendation relates to a potentially significant threat or 
opportunity that impacts on either corporate or operational objectives. The 
action required is to mitigate a moderate level of risk to the Council. In 
particular an adverse impact on the Department’s reputation, adherence to 
Council policy, the departmental budget or service plan objectives. The 
risk requires management attention. 

LLOOWW  

��  

 

The recommendation relates to a minor threat or opportunity that 
impacts on operational objectives. The action required is to mitigate a 
minor risk to the Council as a whole. This may be compliance with best 
practice or minimal impacts on the Service's reputation, adherence to local 
procedures, local budget or Section objectives. The risk may be tolerable 
in the medium term. 

NNOOTTAABBLLEE  

PPRRAACCTTIICCEE  

�� 

The activity reflects current best management practice or is an 
innovative response to the management of risk within the Council. The 
practice should be shared with others. 

 

Page 94



PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

Audit Committee – 15 December 2016 

Audit Committee Forward Programme 2016/17 and 2017/18 
 

Contact Officer: Kate Boulter  
Telephone: 01895 556454 

 
 

REASON FOR ITEM 
 
This report is to enable the Audit Committee to review planned meeting dates and the 
forward programme. 
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 

1. To confirm dates for Audit Committee meetings; and 
 

2. To make suggestions for future agenda items, working practices and/or 
reviews.  

 
 
INFORMATION 
 
 
All meetings to start at 5.00pm 
 

Meetings Room 

12 July 2016 CR3 

22 September 2016 CR4 

15 December 2016 CR5 

16 March 2017 CR4 

tbc June 2017 tbc 

Agenda Item 12

Page 95



PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

Audit Committee – 15 December 2016 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Forward Programme 2016/17 and 2017/18 

Meeting Date Item Lead Officer 

12 July 2016    *Private meeting with Head of 
Business Assurance to take place 
before the meeting 

 

 Appointment of Chairman  

 Training Item - Statement of 
Accounts 

Chief Accountant 

 Draft Annual Governance 
Statement 2015/16 

Head of Policy 

Annual Internal Audit Report & 
Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
Statement 2015/16 

Head of Business Assurance 

Internal Audit 2016/17 Quarter 1 
Progress Report & Quarter 2 
Operational Internal Audit Plan 

Head of Business Assurance 

Corporate Fraud Team Progress 
Report 

Corporate Fraud 
Investigations Manager 

Risk Management Report & Q4 
Corporate Risk Register - Part II 

Head of Business Assurance 

Audit Committee Forward 
Programme 

Democratic Services 
Manager 

 

Page 96



PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

Audit Committee – 15 December 2016 

 

Meeting Date Item Lead Officer 

22 September 
2016              

*Private meeting with the 
Corporate Director of Finance to 
take place before the meeting 

 

 Training Item - Role of the External 
Auditor 

 

 Approval of the 2015/16 Statement 
of Accounts and External Audit 
Report on the Audit for the year 
ended 31 March 2016 

Corporate Director of Finance 
/Ernst & Young 

External Audit Report on the 
Pension Fund Annual Report and 
Accounts 2015/16 

Ernst & Young 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
2016/17 Quarter 2 & Operational 
Internal Audit Plan Quarter 3 

Head of Business Assurance 

 

Annual Review on the 
Effectiveness of Internal Audit 
2016/17 

Head of Business Assurance 

Corporate Fraud Team Progress 
Report 

Corporate Fraud 
Investigations Manager 

Risk Management Report & Q1 
Corporate Risk Register - Part II 

Head of Business Assurance 

Audit Committee Forward 
Programme 

Democratic Services 
Manager 

 

Page 97



PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

Audit Committee – 15 December 2016 

 

Meeting Date Item Lead Officer 

15 December 
2016 
 

*Private meeting with the Head of 
Business Assurance to take place 
before the meeting 

 

 External Audit Annual Audit Letter Ernst & Young 

Internal Audit Charter 2016/17 Head of Business Assurance 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
2016/17 Quarter 3 & Operational 
Internal Audit Plan Quarter 4 

Head of Business Assurance 

Corporate Fraud Team Progress 
Report 

Corporate Fraud 
Investigations Manager 

National Scheme for Auditor 
Appointments 

Deputy Director Strategic 
Finance 

Risk Management Report & Q2 
Corporate Risk Register - Part II 

Head of Business Assurance 

Annual Review of the 
Effectiveness of the Audit 
Committee 2016/17 

Head of Business Assurance 

Audit Committee Terms of 
Reference 

Democratic Services 

Audit Committee Forward 
Programme 

Democratic Services 

 Risk Management Report and Q2 
Corporate Risk Register 

 

Page 98



PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

Audit Committee – 15 December 2016 

 

Meeting Date Item Lead Officer 

 16 March 2017 
 

*Private meeting with External 
Audit (Ernst & Young) to take place 
before the meeting 

 

 Training Item - tbc tbc 

 Annual External Audit Plan 2015/16 
(Ernst & Young) 

Corporate Director of Finance 
/Ernst & Young 

Annual Governance Statement 
2015/16 – Interim Report 

Head of Policy 

Balances and Reserves Statement  Corporate Director of Finance 

Revisions to the Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement 
and Investment Strategy 2017/18 to 
2021/22 

Corporate Director of Finance 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
2016/17 Quarter 4 

Head of Business Assurance 

Annual Internal Audit Plan 2017/18 
& Operational Internal Audit Plan 
Quarter 1 

Head of Business Assurance 

External Quality Assessment of 
Internal Audit 206/17 

Head of Business Assurance 

Corporate Fraud Team Progress 
Report 

Corporate Fraud 
Investigations Manager 

Risk Management Report & Q3 
Corporate Risk Register - Part II 

Head of Business Assurance 

Audit Committee Forward 
Programme 

Democratic Services 
Manager 

 

Page 99



PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

Audit Committee – 15 December 2016 

 

Meeting Date Item Lead Officer 

tbc July 2017    *Private meeting with Head of 
Business Assurance to take place 
before the meeting 

 

 Appointment of Chairman  

 Training Item - TBC Chief Accountant 

 Draft Annual Governance 
Statement 2016/17 

Head of Policy 

Annual Internal Audit Report & 
Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
Statement 2016/17 

Head of Business Assurance 

Internal Audit 2017/18 Quarter 1 
Progress Report & Quarter 2 
Operational Internal Audit Plan 

Head of Business Assurance 

Corporate Fraud Team Progress 
Report 

Corporate Fraud 
Investigations Manager 

Risk Management Report & Q4 
Corporate Risk Register - Part II 

Head of Business Assurance 

Audit Committee Forward 
Programme 

Democratic Services 
Manager 

 
 

Page 100



Agenda Item 13

Page 101

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 103

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



P
a
g
e
 1

0
5

B
y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t (A
c
c
e
s
s
 to

 In
fo

rm
a
tio

n
) A

c
t 1

9
8
5
 a

s
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 1

2
2

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e

 is
 in

te
n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Page 123

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2016
	5 External Audit Annual Audit Letter
	161215 - 05 - Annual Audit Letter (appendix)

	6 Internal Audit Charter 2016/17
	161215 - 06 - Internal Audit Charter 2016-17 (Appendix 1)
	161215 - 06 - Internal Audit Charter 2016-17 (Appendix 2)

	7 Internal Audit Progress Report 2016/17 Quarter 3 and Operational Internal Audit Plan Quarter 4
	161215 - 07 - IA Progress Report Q3 and Q4 IA Plan (Appendix)

	9 National Scheme for Auditor Appointments
	10 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee 2016/17
	161215 - 10 - Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Audit Committee 2016-17 (appendix)

	12 Audit Committee Forward Programme
	13 Risk Management Report and Quarter 2 Corporate Risk Register
	161215 - 13 - PART II - Corporate Risk Register Q2 (Appendix 1)
	161215 - 13 - PART II - Corporate Risk Register Q2 (Appendix 2)
	161215 - 13 - PART II - Corporate Risk Register Q2 (Appendix 3) - pdf


